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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market desighed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of L & A International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief, the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group principally derives its revenue from the following
business arms: (i) OEM business segment, which entails product
design and development, raw materials sourcing and procurement,
manufacturing and product quality control management (the “OEM
Business”); (ii) apparel retail business segment, which entails
designing, procuring, manufacturing, marketing and retailing of pure
cashmere apparel and other apparel products as well as accessories
through the retail network in Hong Kong under the Group’s own
brand and high-end fashion brand (the “Retail Business”); (iii) money
lending business segment, which provides financing to customers
for interest income (“Money Lending Business”); (iv) wholesaling
business segment, which covers the wholesaling and distribution
of seafood (“Wholesaling Business”); (v) financial quotient and
investment education business segment, which provides financial
quotient and investment education courses for the customers in
return of tuition fees from them (“Financial Quotient and Investment
Education Business”), and (vi) property investment business
(“Property Investment Business”).

OEM Business

The garment sector of the consumer market has experienced a
downturn in recent years. Nonetheless, the Group had stepped
up the efforts in securing new customers and orders, controlling
expenses and looking for ways to improve the business. During the
year ended 31 March 2021, the Group continued to implement the
operation model for placing orders with other OEM manufacturers,
while maintaining the quality control standard, which attributed to
the substantial reduction in the costs of operation.

Retail Business

While the economic slowdown in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") and the outbreak of coronavirus in Hong Kong eroded
consumer confidence, the shifting of pattern to online shopping
further negatively impacted the Retail Business.

L & A International Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Under such an unfavorable ambience, the Group has adopted
a prudent approach in restructuring its sales network aiming at
minimising the operating costs amid meeting the shift of consumers’
preference towards shopping online.

Money Lending Business

The Group obtained the money lender licence and commenced
Money Lending Business from June 2016. During the year ended 31
March 2021, the Money Lending Business had generated interest
income of approximately HK$4.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately 57.5% as compared to that of last financial year.

Wholesaling Business

The Wholesaling Business commenced operation during the year
ended 31 March 2019. During the year ended 31 March 2021, there
was no revenue generated from Wholesaling Business, which was
mainly due to the outbreak of the coronavirus in Hong Kong.

Financial Quotient and Investment Education
Business

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group established the
Financial Quotient and Investment Education Business. The Group
provides financial quotient and investment education courses for
the customers, aiming at enhancing their knowledge in the areas of
finance and investment.

The Group in return earns tuition fee income from the provision
of courses. During the year ended 31 March 2021, certain courses
were completed with inspiring achievements and revenue of
approximately HK$68.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately 21,730.1% as compared to that of last financial year.

Property Investment Business

The Group also established the Property Investment Business during
the year ended 31 March 2020. The Group acquired a property
in Japan in June 2019 and the property was disposed during the
year ended 31 March 2021 and gain on the disposal of investment
property of approximately HK$87,000 was recognised.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROSPECTS

For the OEM Business, the management of the Group (the
“Management”) is committed to strengthening the customer base.
The Group will continue to find new orders and customers. Also, with
the implementation of this OEM operation model, the Management
expects that there will be a better control of costing.

For the Retail Business, the Management will closely monitor the
consumers’ behaviour and will continue the promotion campaigns.
The Management is also closely monitoring the movement of rental
for the retail outlets and will adjust the business plan for the Retail
Business if necessary. Because of the outbreak of coronavirus
in Hong Kong, there was an adverse impact to the Group and
accordingly, the Management will actively keep monitoring the
performance of the Group, and will implement appropriate strategy
in a timely manner. Despite the uncertainties, the Management still
remains positive towards the Retail Business in the long run.

For Money Lending Business, the Group will continue to expand in a
prudent and balanced risk management approach.

The Group will (i) invest resources to expand the share in the
financial quotient and investment education market, and (i) strive to
broaden its customer base. The Group is also seeking opportunities
of asset appreciation and cash flow return in the property market
within Hong Kong and in the Asia-Pacific region.

The Group will cooperate with the stakeholders in the market when
necessary, so as to diversify and expand its businesses.

L & A International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased from approximately HK$74.3 million
for the year ended 31 March 2020 to approximately HK$96.5 million
for the year ended 31 March 2021, representing an increase of
approximately 29.9%. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the
social unrest and the outbreak of corona virus in Hong Kong eroded
customer confidence, the revenue of OEM Business significantly
decreased by approximately 40.8% to approximately HK$23.8 million
for the year ended 31 March 2021 as compared to the year ended
31 March 2020. The revenue from Retail Business significantly
decreased by approximately 94.8% to approximately HK$0.4 million
for the year ended 31 March 2021 as compared to the year ended
31 March 2020. On the other hand, the Money Lending Business and
Financial Quotient and investment Education Business contributed
revenue of approximately HK$4.1 million and HK$68.1 million
respectively during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

EXxpenses

Selling and administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March
2021 was approximately HK$29.2 million (2020: HK$18.5 million),
representing an increase of approximately HK$10.7 million. The
increase was due to the increase in share option expenses of
approximately HK$5.4 million and marketing and administration
expenses relating in financial quotient and investment education
courses of approximately of HK$8.9 million.

Profit for the year

The profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 was approximately
HK$40.4 million. The loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 was
approximately HK$34.0 million.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Capital structure

As at 31 March 2021, the share capital and equity attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to approximately HK$154,000 and
HK$176.8 million respectively (2020: HK$51.2 million and HK$52.6
million respectively). Details of the capital management are set out in
the Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Cash position

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s unpledged
bank balances and cash was approximately HK$72.9 million (2020:
HK$2.1 million), representing a increase of approximately 3,324.6%
as compared to that of at 31 March 2020.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 March 2021, the Group's total borrowings (including the
promissory notes) were HK$68.6 million (31 March 2020: HK$16.5
million). The gearing ratio was approximately 39.4% as at 31 March
2021 (31 March 2020: approximately 31.4%).

L & A International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Exchange Rate Exposure

The Group’s business operations are denominated mainly in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") and United States Dollars (“USD"). The Group's
assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in HK$. Currently, the
Group has not entered into agreements or purchased instruments to
hedge the Group’s exchange rate risks.

The Management considers that the foreign exchange risk with
respect to USD is not significant as HK$ is pledged to USD. The Group
manages foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the movement
of the foreign currency rates.

Significant Investments Held, Material
Acquisitions or Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Affiliated Companies, and Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

During year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has disposed of an
inactive subsidiary and a gain of approximately HK$99,000 was
generated.

On 11 May 2020, Able Glorious Limited (“Able Glorious”), a direct
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the vendor entered
into an agreement, pursuant to which, Able Glorious has agreed to
acquire and the vendor has agreed to sell 100% equity interest of
Bewisekid Holding Limited (“Bewisekid Group”), at the Consideration
of HK$33,250,000, which would be satisfied by the issue and
allotment of the shares at the issue price of HK$0.135 per share by
the Company. The acquisition was completed on 10 August 2020.
Bewisekid Group is principally engaged in provision of seminars
on the UK property investment sharing in Hong Kong, together
with the provision of play-based learning activities to enhance the
overall development for children aged from 6 to 14 years old in
Hong Kong. Details of the transaction were set out in the Company'’s
announcement dated 11 May 2020.
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On 17 August 2020, Able Glorious and the vendor entered into
an agreement, pursuant to which, Able Glorious has agreed to
acquire and the vendor has agreed to sell 100% equity interest of
Zone Galaxy Limited (“Zone Galaxy Group”), at the Consideration of
HK$40,000,000, which would be satisfied by the issue the promissory
notes by the Company. Zone Galaxy Group is principally engaged in
the development of the business in provision of financial quotient
and investment experience-sharing seminars in Hong Kong. Details
of the transaction were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 17 August 2020.

On 27 October 2020, Able Glorious and the vendor entered into
an agreement, pursuant to which, Able Glorious has agreed to
acquire and the vendor has agreed to sell the remaining 70% equity
interest of Prestige Concord Limited (“Prestige Concord Group”), at
the Consideration of HK$80,000,000, which would be satisfied by
(i) as to HK$41,000,000 by issued of the promissory notes by the
Group, (i) as to HK$29,000,000 by the assumption of the liabilities
from the Vendor to the Group; and (iii) as to HK$10,000,000 by cash.
The acquisition was completed on 31 March 2021 and Prestige
Concord Group became the wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group.
Prestige Concord Group is principally engaged in the development
of the business in provision of financial quotient and investment
experience-sharing seminars in Hong Kong. Details of the transaction
were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 27 October
2020, 11 December 2020, 30 December 2020, 26 February 2021 and
31 March 2021 and the circular of the Company dated 12 March
2021.

Save for the above acquisitions and disposal and as disclosed
elsewhere in this report, there were no significant investments,
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no future plan for material
investments or capital assets as at 31 March 2021.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2021
(2020: Nil).

Capital Commitments
The Group had no material capital commitments as at 31 March 2021
(2020: Nil).

Employees and Emolument Policies

The Group had approximately 60 employees (including Directors)
as at 31 March 2021 (2020: 30). The Group recruits and promotes
individuals based on their performance and development potential
in the positions held. In order to attract and retain high quality staff
and to enable smooth operation within the Group, the Group offers
competitive remuneration packages (with reference to market
conditions and individual qualifications and experience) and various
in-house training courses. The remuneration packages are subject
to review on a regular basis. The emoluments of the Directors
and senior management are reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Group's operating results, market
competitiveness, individual performance and achievement, and
approved by the Board.

CAPITAL REORGANISATION
The Company had completed the capital reorganisation on 12
October 2020 which include the followings:

(@ capital reduction (“Capital Reduction”) whereby the share
capital of the Company reduced by (i) the cancellation of
HK$0.0399 paid-up capital on each issued share such that
each issued share shall be treated as one fully paid-up share
of HK$0.0001 each (the “New Share”) in the capital of the
Company; and (i) the reduction of the par value of each and
every unissued share from HK$0.04 to HK$0.0001;

(b) share premium cancellation whereby upon the Capital
Reduction becoming effective, the entire amount standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the Company had
been cancelled (“Share Premium Cancellation”);
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the credit arising from the Capital Reduction and Share
Premium Cancellation had been applied towards offsetting the
accumulated losses of the Company as at the effective date of
the Capital Reduction. The balance of credit after offsetting, if
any, had been transferred to a distributable reserve account of
the Company and be applied for such purposes as permitted
by all applicable laws and the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company and as the board of directors
considers appropriate; and

immediately following the Capital Reduction, the
authorised share capital of the Company increased from
HK$1,250,000 divided into 12,500,000,000 New Shares of
par value of HK$0.0001 each to HK$500,000,000 divided into
5,000,000,000,000 New Shares of par value of HK$0.0001 each,
by the creation of 4,987,500,000,000 additional New Shares of
par value of HK$0.0001 each.

Details of the above transactions were set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 14 February 2020, 19 June 2020, 31 August
2020, 11 September 2020 and 7 October 2020 and the circular of the
Company dated 28 February 2020.
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Legal Proceedings SEEREA

Details of the legal proceedings of the Group as at 31 March 2021 AEER-ZZT=—F=F=+—HZEEFLHF
are set out in Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements. IBERERE B RER T 5E46 o

Securities Investment Held by the Group rEBRGESFRE

Details of the investment performance for the year ended 31 March BHZEZZT=Z—F=A=+—HIEFE  F@ELSE
2021 in respect of equity securities listed in Hong Kong and New  E#AHREE LML EHHRAZFHNRER
York held by the Group are as follows: WEIBIT
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Notes:
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Cool Link (Holdings) Limited (“Cool Link") and its subsidiaries (“Cool Link
Group”) is principally engaged in food supplies business in Singapore.
According to Cool Link’s annual report for the year ended 31 December
2020, Cook Link Group recorded revenue and net loss of approximately
Singapore Dollar (“S$") 27.4 million and S$0.3 million respectively.

In view of the volatile market conditions and the trend of the share
price of Cool Link, the Management disposed of all shares of Cool Link
and recorded a realised loss of approximately HK$6.2 million during the
year ended 31 March 2021.

This investment represented 382,000 shares, which was approximately
0.03% of the total issued shares of Ju Teng International Holdings
Limited (“Ju Teng") as at 31 March 2021. Ju Teng and its subsidiaries
("Ju Teng Group”) is principally engaged in the business of manufacture
and sales of casings for notebook computer and handheld devices.

The Group recorded an unrealised fair value loss of approximately
HK$0.3 million in respect of its investment in Ju Teng for the year
ended 31 March 2021. According to Ju Teng's annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2020, Ju Teng Group recorded revenue
and net profit of approximately HK$10.0 billion and HK$157.0 million
respectively.

The Management would also continue to monitor the performance and
share price of Ju Teng.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chun Kavan (%] &), aged 41, was appointed as an
executive Director on 16 May 2018. He obtained a bachelor degree
in fashion design from Central Saint Martins College of Art & Design
in 2001 and a master degree in fashion design from Royal College of
Art, London in 2003. Mr. Lau is a UK trained designer with extensive
international experiences of the US, European and Asian fashion
industries. He has experience in various design positions both
internationally and in Hong Kong, and is also involved in a creative
academic institution. His notable posts include Chief Designer of
China Ting Group and head of design in the Asia Pacific region for
Lacoste.

He is the member of the remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) and nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”),
of the Board and the authorised representative (“Authorised
Representative”) and the compliance officer (“Compliance Officer”)
of the Company as at the date of this annual report. Mr. Lau is also a
director of several subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Yuen Yu Sum (=X # %), aged 33, was appointed as an
executive Director on 24 October 2019. He obtained a bachelor
degree in Social Sciences (Honours) in Administration and Public
Management from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yuen has
over four years' experience in event management and organizing
investment experience-sharing courses and seminars. Mr. Yuen
currently serves as a director of associated company of the Group.

Mr. Chan Lap Jin Kevin (BR3Z&), aged 36, was appointed as an
executive Director on 3 August 2020. Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor
degree in Dental Surgery from University of Hong Kong and diploma
in Higher Education, School of Dentistry from University of Liverpool.
Mr. Chan has over 10 years of experience in corporate strategy,
business development and management where he was a founder
of a chain of dental clinics in Hong Kong with over 7 dentists and 6
clinics in 2014 (the “Dental Chain”). Mr. Chan was responsible for
formulating corporate strategies, business development plans and
major corporate decisions for the Dental Chain. In addition, Mr. Chan
has over 6 years of experience in financial quotient and investment
education business. He is an instructor of various property
investment courses and seminars with an average of 300 attendees
per month. In addition, he is an instructor and course director for
memory improvement courses and speed-reading courses with an
average of 60 attendees per course. Mr. Chan also involves in the
development of tutorial and training businesses in relation to the
financial quotient and investment education programs for over 6
years.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Law Wing Chung (#&:kEg), aged 43, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 2 June 2021. Mr. Law obtained a master
degree of journalism and a bachelor degree of laws from the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Law was an award winning journalist
who has served in the newsroom for over 12 years. Mr. Law has
substantial experience in the media industry. He has set up two
public affairs consulting companies which are principally engaged
in the provision of various consultancy services including public
affairs, public relations, social media, news media and stakeholder
engagement advices. Mr. Law was appointed by the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR") Government as the Political
Assistant to the Financial Secretary in 2012 and had also assisted a
candidate to run the Hong Kong Chief Executive election in 2017.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai Eddie (BR#I#), aged 49, FCCA, CPA (Practising),
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 6 June
2019 and is a chairman of the audit committee (“Audit Committee”)
of the Board. He holds a master degree in Professional Accounting
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a Diploma in
Accounting from Kwai Chung Technical Institute. He has engaged
in the accounting industry since 1993 and has over 20 years of
extensive experience in accounting and auditing. He is the sole
proprietor of PASICO CPA & Co.

Mr. Ng Chi Ho Dennis (R %), aged 62, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director and a member of each of
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee on 6 June 2019. Mr. Ng has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting, financial management and corporate affairs. He
is a chartered accountant of The Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia) as well as a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a practising
certified public accountant.

Mr. Ng is how a company secretary of MEIGU Technology Holding
Group Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 8349). He is also an independent
non-executive director of Media Asia Group Holdings Limited (HKEx
Stock Code: 8075), an independent non-executive director of Kirin
Group Holdings Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 8109) and an independent
non-executive director of China City Infrastructure Group Limited
(HKEX Stock Code: 2349).
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Mr. Chung Chin Kwan ($Z2g3#), aged 31, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 October 2020. He is also
a chairman of each of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Board and a member of the Audit Committee.
He obtained a bachelor degree in Business Administration (major
in accounting) from Lingnan University. Mr. Chung has over 7
years of experience in accounting and taxation services. He also
has extensive experience in company secretarial matters. Mr.
Chung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a chartered tax adviser of The Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr. Chung is the founder of CK Tax Company Limited, a
taxation company granted by the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong as
“Chartered Tax Adviser Accredited Employer”.

Mr. Chung Kwok Pan (#El3g), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 2 June 2021. Mr. Chung
obtained a bachelor degree in Quantity Surveying from Robert
Gordon’s Institute of Technology, Scotland (currently known as
Robert Gordon University, Aberdeen) in July 1986 and a master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Stirling,
Scotland, United Kingdom in May 1988.

Mr. Chung has been responsible for the business management of
Chungweiming Knitting Factory Limited since early 1988. Mr. Chung
also has several social positions, including a member of the 5th and
6th Legislative Council of Hong Kong (Textile and Garment Sector),
Leader of Liberal Party, Honorary Life Chairman of Hong Kong
Apparel Society Limited, a member of Honorary General Committee,
The Chinese Manufacturers’” Association of Hong Kong, an advisor of
New Territories General Chamber of Commerce, a director of Hong
Kong Design Centre, Chairman of Design Discipline Advisory Board
of Vocational Training Council, Chairman of Fashion Industry Training
Advisory Committee, Education Bureau of the HKSAR and a member
of the Advisory Group on Implementation of Fashion Initiatives, The
Commerce and Economic Development Bureau of the HKSAR. He
was also a member of the 9th Guangdong Provincial Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in 2005.

Mr. Chung is currently an independent non-executive director of
High Fashion International Limited (stock code: 608), Planetree
International Development Limited (stock code: 613) and Esprit
Holdings Limited (stock code: 330) respectively, their respective
shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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The Board is pleased to present their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group principally derives its revenue from six business arms: (i)
OEM Business, which entails product design and development, raw
materials sourcing and procurement, manufacturing and product
quality control management; (i) Retail Business, which entails
designing, procuring, manufacturing, marketing and retailing of pure
cashmere apparel and other apparel products as well as accessories
through the retail network in Hong Kong under the Group’s own
brand and high-end fashion brand; (i) Money Lending Business,
which provides financing to customers for interest income; (iv)
Wholesaling Business, which covers the wholesaling and distribution
of seafood; (v) Financial Quotient and Investment Education Business,
which provides financial quotient and investment education courses
for the customers in return of tuition fees from them; and (vi)
Property Investment Business.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2021 are set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to
242. 0On 8 February 2021, the Board declared an interim dividend of
HK$0.0066 per share in the form of cash for the nine months ended
31 December 2020, totaling approximately HK$10,137,494.40 (2020
interim dividend: Nil). The interim dividend has been paid in cash in
three equal instalments of HK$3,379,164.80 each on 23 April 2021, 25
May 2021 and 25 June 2021 respectively.
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The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.0072 per share totaling approximately HK$11,059,084.80 based
on the 1,535,984,000 issued shares of the Company as at 31 March
2021 (2020: Nil). The final dividend will be paid in three instalments of
HK$3,532,763.20 (HK$0.0023 per share), HK$3,686,361.60 (HK$0.0024
per share) and HK$3,839,960.00 (HK$0.0025 per share) on 12 August
2021, 25 August 2021 and 24 September 2021 respectively to
shareholders whose names appeared on the Register of Members of
the Company at the close of business on 10 August 2021, 19 August
2021 and 15 September 2021 respectively. The payment of the final
dividend is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company (the “2021 AGM").

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there was no arrangement
under which any shareholder waived or agreed to waive any
dividend.

Further details of dividends are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its financial performance and financial position
can be found in the "Management Discussion and Analysis” set out
on pages 4 to 14.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group commits to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources,
energy saving and waste reduction. The Group also commits to the
principle and practice of recycling and reducing. To help conserve
the environment, it implements green office practices such as
redeployment of office furniture as far as possible, encourages use
of recycled paper for printing and copying, double-sided printing
and copying and reduces energy consumption by switching off idle
lightings, air conditioning and electrical appliances.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During the year, the Group has complied, to the best of our
knowledge, with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ"),
the GEM Listing Rules, the applicable employment ordinance both in
the PRC and Hong Kong, the local standards and regulations for our
project works as well as other relevant rules and regulations. Save
as disclosed elsewhere in this report, there was no material breach
of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2021.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS
AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers, customers and other stakeholders to
meet its immediate and long-term goals. Save as disclosed elsewhere
in this report, there were no material and significant dispute between
the Group and its suppliers, customers and/or other stakeholders
during the year ended 31 March 2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the memorandum and articles of association (“Articles of
Association”) of the Company, the applicable laws and regulations,
every Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets and profits of the Company against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur or sustain in the execution of their duties in their offices.
Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout the
year. The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers'’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2021 AGM will be held on Friday, 30 July 2021. A circular
containing the details of 2021 AGM and the notice of 2021 AGM and
form of proxy accompanying thereto will soon be despatched to
shareholders.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021 the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to approximately HK$129.3 million (2020: Nil). The
amount includes the Company’s share premium, special reserve
and accumulated losses which may be distributable provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in Note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2021.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group, as extracted from the consolidated
financial statements, is set out on page 242 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s share capital and movements during the
year are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for
approximately 27.9% of the total sales for the year ended 31 March
2021 (2020: 79.4%) and sales to the largest customer included
therein accounted for approximately 24.7% of the total sales for
the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: 54.2%). Purchase from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 82.1% of
the total purchase for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: 73.5%)
and purchase from the Group's largest supplier included therein
accounted for approximately 74.9% of the total purchase for the year
ended 31 March 2021 (2020: 57.4%).

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chun Kavan

Mr. Yuen Yu Sum

Mr. Chan Lap Jin Kevin (appointed on 3 August 2020)
Ms. Wang Tsz Yue (resigned on 30 November 2020)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Law Wing Chung (appointed on 2 June 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kim Fai Eddie

Mr. Ng Chi Ho Dennis

Mr. Chung Chin Kwan (appointed on 30 October 2020)
Mr. Chung Kwok Pan (appointed on 2 June 2021)

Mr. Chan Pak Qiu (resigned on 30 October 2020)

By virtue of Article 16.18 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Yuen Yu Sum, Mr. Chan Lap Jin Kevin, Mr. Law Wing
Chung and Mr. Chung Kwok Pan shall retire at the 2021 AGM and,
being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election at the said
meeting.

L & A International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

FEEFRMER
AEEUAAREFPHNHEEREBEE_S -_—F=
A=+ —BHIFERBEEELN27I% (=T
F:794%)  EFHEAREPHHEEREHEC

—F=A=+—HILFEMRHEEREL247%
(ZZTZTF : 54.2%) - AEBE R AKX EEOR
BELBE-_ZE-—F=-A=+t—RHLFENE
FAEREA821% (T =4 : 73.5%) - HP AL
ErsAREENREREHE_S-_—F=H
=T HILFEBRBEN74% (ZEZTF
57.4%) °

ERYRETAETHEASEMRER GRESMR
RAGER AR BEBEITIRAERBS%) BIEN A%
BAhREP MM EE T EE T E S -

S
BE-Z- A=+ BULFEREEAF
HEH EER:

HITES

Bl st

RINRIEE

@4@%&(% i
-z

TENA=ZRAEZMT)

—ZF+—A=1+BRHE)
FHTES
BABEE (N_B-—FXA-ABEE)
BYFHITES

FRAlE S

REFRE

BRELE (RoB-EFETASTAREE)
BEREE (R-B-—FAAZBRED)
BEELE (R-E-FF+ A=+ HEH)

REAQBABEREAMNE1618F - RIKRE
A BRURSEA - BKIRE A RERN AR
TR -FRRBEFRGRME MRSEFEER
RFEERRNZAE LE&EBE -



DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 15 and 17 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract or an appointment letter (as the case may be) with
the Company for an initial term of one year.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, none of the Directors
being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five individuals
with highest emoluments are set out in Notes 11 and 12 to the
consolidated financial statements. For the year ended 31 March
2021, the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
whose details are included in the "Biographical Details of The
Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report fell
within the following bands:

FNEE

Remuneration Bands
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
As at 31 March 2021, the Company did not enter into or have any
management and administration contracts in respect of the whole or
any principal business of the Company.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

In order to attract and retain high quality staff and to enable
smooth operation within the Group, the Group offers competitive
remuneration packages (with reference to market conditions and
individual qualifications and experience) and various training courses.
The remuneration packages are subject to review on a regular basis.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Group's operating results, market competitiveness, individual
performance and achievement, and approved by the Board.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in
Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Details of the share option scheme of the Group are set out in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statement.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for share option scheme of the Group, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or
that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issues shares were entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

Saved as disclosed under the section “Connected Transactions”
below, no contract of significance to which the Company, or any
of its holding company or subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 March 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors and their respective associates had an interest
in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2021 or as at 31 March 2021.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’' INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the change in
information of the Directors for the year ended 31 March 2021 and
up to the date of this annual report is set out below:

(i) Mr. Chan Lap Jin Kevin was appointed as an executive Director
on 3 August 2020;

(i) Mr. Chan Pak Qiu resigned from his office as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of each of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee on 30 October 2020;

(i)~ Mr. Chung Chin Kwan was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee on 30 October 2020;

(iv)  Ms. Wang Tsz Yue resigned from her office as an executive
Director on 30 November 2020;

(v)  Mr. Chung Kwok Pan was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 2 June 2021, and

(viy Mr. Law Wing Chung was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 2 June 2021.

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in this report, there is no
other information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1)
of the GEM Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to
the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO™), which are required () to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Division 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii)
pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (jii) pursuant to the Model Code to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in Shares and underlying shares
of the Company:

ESERIETHAERE QTR EAGH
ZENRG - HEROIESPHER
5979}
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TR8D BB ME AN A 7] R Bk 22 BT ) i 25 T
2 (BEREES RAERIEBGEE EX
BEBEMEZIKE)  (NVMBIEESH XS &G
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Percentage of
the Company’s

issue share
Number of Number of as at
Name of Directors Capacity Shares held Options held Total 31 March 2021
(%)
R=B=—-%
=A=t—H
BARARB#IT
- 51 FEROHE MiSERERE #st BRAHBAE
(%)
Chan Lap Jin Kevin Beneficial owner 154,644,000 - 154,644,000 10.07
R R ERBEEA
Yuen Yu Sum Beneficial owner - 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.65
(Note 1)
Cozap)
RIR EnAA
Chung Chin Kwan Beneficial owner 4,872,000 - 4,872,000 0.32
BRI EnAA
Interest of spouse 720,000 - 720,000 0.05
B (Note 2)
(Kts32)
Law Wing Chung Beneficial owner 960,000 - 960,000 0.06
oK ERERA
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Note:

(1) On 14 July 2020, a total of 10,000,000 share options were granted to
Mr. Yuen Yu Sum.

(2) 720,000 shares are owned by Ms. Lam Ka Yee, who is the spouse of
Mr. Chung Chin Kwan.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) as required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFQ), or (i) as required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Sections 352 of the SFO, or (i) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as
referred to in Rule 5.46 to Rule 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME", as at 31 March 2021, neither the company, holding
company nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors and chief executive of the company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities, including debentures, of the company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors and chief executive of the
company or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for the securities of the company, or had exercised
any such rights.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 March 2021, other than
the Directors or chief executives of the Company whose interests
or short positions are disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives' Interests and Short Positions in the
Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures of the Company and Its
Associated Corporations” above, the following parties have interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which have to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, and who
were expected, directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company are
listed as follows:

Long Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

Name of shareholder  Capacity/Nature of interests

RRES LB

510 HEmiHE

Lau Lan Ying (Note)
B e,

Interest in controlled corporations
REEEE R ER

Wong Kwan Mo (Note)
HER (M)

Interest in controlled corporations

REZ LB S

Strong Light Investments Beneficial owner
Limited (Strong Light”)
(/\lote)

E/u Xﬁﬁ’zﬁ
(l—EI/L,J) (/Wuf)

ERmBEBA

Note:

299,694,000 shares are owned by Strong Light. Strong Light is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The entire issued share capital of Strong Light is
owned as to 50% by Lau Lan Ying and 50% by Wong Kwan Mo. Lau Lan Ying
is the spouse of Wong Kwan Mo.
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249,994,000 16.3%
249,994,000 16.3%
227,373,200 14.8%
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors or
chief executives as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares or Debentures of the Company and Its Associated
Corporations” above) who had, or deemed to have, interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company which has to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO,
or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
March 2021.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save for the key management personnel compensation and as
disclosed elsewhere in the annual report, the Group did not have
other significant related party/connected party transactions entered
into during the year ended 31 March 2021.

INTEREST OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed Central China International Capital Limited (“CCIC")
as the compliance adviser. CCIC has declared its independence
pursuant to Rule 6A.07 of the GEM Listing Rules. None of CCIC or its
directors, employees or close associates (as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules) had any interests in relation to the Company or in the
share capital of any member of the Group which is required to be
notified to the Group pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules
as at 31 March 2021.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, the Directors are
not aware of any significant event requiring disclosure that has taken
place subsequent to 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms which are the same as the
required standard of dealings set out in Rule 5.48 to Rule 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company periodically issues notices to its
Directors reminding them of the general prohibition on dealing in
the Company's listed securities during the blackout periods before
the publication of announcements of financial results. The Company
has confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the Directors, that
all the Directors have complied with the required standards of
dealings throughout the year. The Company was not aware of any
noncompliance during the year ended 31 March 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Details of the Company'’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company maintained the
amount of public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 25 September
2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment or reappointment
and removal of external auditors; review financial statements of
the Company and judgments in respect of financial reporting;
oversee internal control procedures of the Company; and review risk
management and internal control system of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee consists of 3
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Eddie, Mr. Ng Chi Ho Dennis and Mr. Chung Chin Kwan. Mr. Chan
Kim Fai Eddie is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Group's results for the year ended 31 March 2021 had been
reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the Board
for approval. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
March 2021 comply with applicable accounting standards, GEM
Listing Rules and that adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR

On 30 April 2021, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe (HK)") resigned
as auditor of the Group and MCM (HK) CPA Limited was appointed
as auditor of the Group to fill such casual vacancy following the
resignation of Crowe (HK) as auditor of the Group. Crowe (HK), who
acted as auditor of the Group for the financial year of 2020.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 have
been audited by MCM (HK) CPA Limited, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of MCM (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the 2021 AGM.

By order of the Board
Yuen Yu Sam
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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The Board has adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of the CG Code under Appendix 15 of
the GEM Listing Rules. For the year ended 31 March 2021, save for
the deviations as further explained below, the Company has fully
complied with all applicable provisions of the CG Code. The Company
will continue to enhance its corporate governance appropriate to
the conduct and growth of its business and to review its corporate
governance from time to time to ensure they comply with the
statutory and the CG Code and align with the latest developments.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight members, of which three are
executive Directors namely Mr. Lau Chun Kavan, Mr. Yuen Yu Sum
and Mr. Chan Lap Jin Kevin and one non-executive Director namely
Mr. Law Wing Chung and four are independent non-executive
Directors namely Mr. Chan Kim Fai Eddie, Mr. Ng Chi Ho Dennis and
Mr. Chung Chin Kwan and Mr. Chung Kwok Pan.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, to the best knowledge of the
Board, there is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material relationship(s)) among the Board members.

Save for as the resigned and removed Directors, each of the
Directors’ respective biographical details are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

L & A International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

32

EFERORMBERR - UBFRETCEMLETR
AIFENSPT M DR EATRIMSFANEX - B E
TECHF-A=1+—RIFE  ETXMilz
RBERRSN - ARRIE2EMETEEEATRME
BRGEX - ARRBEBRITHEEERTRN
RaxBHLERER S8 TRHRIEEEE
A MEREMEERFRTAEIREEER
STRIMMRE - BRRERRENSHER

Exg

EEgMAM

EEREN A \BREER - R REZENT
BE - BBEEE  RIREERRIRELE ;
—RIFNITES - BFEKIELE A RIIEET
FWTEE - MRENESLE  RESEL  BR
5T A B ERST A o

BRAFHREEEI  BLEFSMAMN  EFHK
B EBEIARE (BEMT - X755 - REIE
EARRER) -

BREERKRRESI  RLEETTAZBEF
BEREFRIEFRSREREREFE] —

£ o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association
(the "Articles of Association”), at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years and any director appointed to fill a causal
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election at that meeting. The procedures and process
of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors are laid down in
the Articles of Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the Board composition, considering and formulating
the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors
and monitoring the appointment and succession planning of
Directors and assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(“CEQ")

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the
chairman and the CEO should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Yuen Yu Sum was appointed
as the chairman of the Board on 14 April 2021. The Board is in
the process of finding an appropriate person to fill the vacancy of
the CEO as soon as practicable. Meanwhile, the Board considers
that the existing Board members are able to share the power and
responsibilities of CEO among themselves.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his/her independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules for the year ended 31
March 2021.

Each of the independent non-executive Director has entered into
a service contract or an appointment letter (as the case may be)
with the Company for an initial term of one year and is subject to
termination provisions therein and retirement and re-election at the
annual general meetings of our Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company or any other applicable laws
from time to time whereby he/she shall vacate his office.

ROLE AND FUNCTION OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for overall management of the Group’s
business, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group by directing and supervising its affairs.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the
Group, including the approval and monitoring of major policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the executive Directors and senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are reviewed
from time to time. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior
to any significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned
officers.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) and revised in 2018 setting out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to
achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and industry and regional experience. The ultimate decision will be
based on the merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Company also adopted a nomination policy (The “Nomination
Policy”) on 20 December 2018. The purpose of the Nomination Policy
is to identify candidates who are suitable to become a member
of the Board and to make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of candidates nominated for directorships. The Board
shall be composed of members with balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to accomplish the Group's
business development, strategies, operation, challenges and
opportunities. The core criteria for selection include gender, age,
cultural and education background, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and industry and regional experience, number
of directorship in other listed/public companies and in case of
independent non-executive Directors, the number of years they
have already served. According to the nomination procedure,
the Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new Directors and recommends to the Board for decision. The
appointment shall be subject to the approval by the Board in
accordance with the Articles of Association, the GEM Listing Rules
and the Nomination Policy.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS
All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding
the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws
and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of
interests and business of the Group and such induction materials
will also be provided to the newly appointed Directors before
their appointment as Directors. All Directors have been updated
on the latest developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
There is a procedure agreed by the Board to ensure Directors, upon
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/in-house briefing/
reading materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
and provided a record of training to the Company. These covered
a broad range of topics including Directors’ duties, corporate
governance and recent updates on the GEM Listing Rules.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Notice of at least 14 days have been given to all Directors for all
regular Board meetings and the Directors can include matters for
discussion in the agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying
Board papers in respect of regular Board meetings are sent out
in full to all Directors within reasonable time before the meeting.
Draft minutes of all Board meetings are circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings are
kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and
all Directors have access to Board papers and related materials, and
are provided with adequate information on a timely manner, which
enable the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed
before it.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE
RECORDS

For the year ended 31 March 2021, 19 Board meetings were held,
out of which 4 were regular Board meetings for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Group. The
attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings and
Board committees’ Meetings are set out in the table below:
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Mr. Lau Chun Kavan Bl 19/19 N/ANER 3/3 33 33
Mr. Yuen Yu Sum RIRREE 19/19 N/ANER N/ANER N/ANE 33
Mr. Chan Lap Jin Kevin RURLAE 1MN5 N/ARER N/ATER N/ATER 212
Ms. Wang Tsz Yue TERTE 13/13 N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER 33
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Law Wing Chung Bt 0/0 N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER 0/0
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Chan Kim Fai Eddie BRElBE s 19119 4/ N/ANER N/AREH 313
Mr. Ng Chi Ho, Dennis REREE 19/19 4/4 33 33 33
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BOARD COMMITTEE

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 25 September
2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28
and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The written terms of reference
of the Audit Committee was adopted in compliance with paragraph
C3.3 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules. On 31 December 2018, the Board adopted a set of the revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee in line with the GEM
Listing Rules requirement. The revised terms of reference setting
out the Audit Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are
available on both the GEM website and the Company’s website. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee, among other things, are to
assist the Board in overseeing and reviewing () the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
and regulatory compliance of the Group; (i) the integrity of the
Company’s financial statements and application of accounting
standards and significant judgements contained in the financial
statements; and (jii) the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors.

As at 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Eddie, Mr. Ng Chi Ho Dennis and Mr. Chun Chin Kwan. Mr. Chan Kim
Fai Eddie was the chairman of the Audit Committee. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, 4 meetings of Audit Committee were held
for, inter alia, reviewing the Group's quarterly, interim and annual
results, the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the risk
management and internal control systems, and considering the
appointment of auditors of the Company.

On 20 October 2020, Mr. Chan Pak Qiu resigned as the member
of the Audit Committee, Mr, Chun Chin Kwan was appointed as a
member of the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 25
September 2014 with written terms of reference in compliance
with paragraph B1.2 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules. On 31 December 2018, the Board adopted
a set of the revised terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee in line with the GEM Listing Rules requirement. The
terms of reference setting out the Remuneration Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the GEM
website and the Company’s website. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to make recommendation to the
Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating
to all Directors and senior management of the Group and ensure
none of the Directors determine their own remuneration, which is
paragraph B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted the operation model where it performs an advisory role
to the Board, with the Board retaining the final authority to approve
the remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior
management.

As at 31 March 2021, the Remuneration Committee consists of two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng Chi Ho Dennis,
Mr. Chung Chin Kwan and one executive Director, Mr. Lau Chun
Kavan. Mr. Chung Chin Kwan was the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

Details of the remuneration of Directors are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, 3 meetings of Remuneration
Committee were held for, inter alia, reviewing the remuneration
policy and structure and determining the annual remuneration
packages of the Directors and the senior management and
determining the annual remuneration packages of the newly
appointed Directors and senior management, if any.

On 20 October 2020, Mr. Chan Pak Qiu resigned as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee, Mr. Chun Chin Kwan was appointed
as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 25
September 2014 with written terms of reference in compliance
with paragraph A5.2 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules. On 31 December 2018, the Board adopted a
set of the revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
in line with the GEM Listing Rules requirement. The revised terms
of reference setting out the Nomination Committee’s authority,
duties and responsibilities are available on both the GEM website
and the Company's website. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on
nomination and appointment of Directors and Board succession, with
a view to appoint to the Board individuals with suitable experience
and capabilities to maintain and improve the competitiveness of the
Company.

As at 31 March 2021, the Nomination Committee consists of two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng Chi Ho Dennis,
Mr. Chung Chin Kwan and one executive Director, Mr. Lau Chun
Kavan. Mr. Chung Chin Kwan was the chairman of the Nomination
committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, 3 meetings of Nomination
Committee were held for, inter alia, considering the retirement and
re-election of the Directors and the appointment of the new Directors
and senior management, if any. The Nomination Committee has also
reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered that the Group achieved the effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy during the year.

On 20 October 2020, Mr. Chan Pak Qiu resigned as the chairman of
the Nomination Committee, Mr. Chun Chin Kwan was appointed as
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is also delegated with corporate governance functions
under code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board has reviewed
and discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and is
satisfied with the effectiveness of the corporate governance policy.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions of the Company. Upon
the Company’s specific enquiry, each Director had confirmed that,
they had fully complied with the required standard of dealings and
there was no event of non-compliance for the year ended 31 March
2021.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the fees paid/payable to the
auditor of the Company, and its affiliate companies in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by them to the Group were as
follows:

SEERRE

22 Gl ke
BE-Z-—FZA=+—BUFE A2AR
ELEH B R S SR 1 K S R R R B AR 7S B
FRBMBMEN R RS2 ERMT

Fees paid/payable HK$

Service rendered FriR 4t AR A% BN/ BEERET
Audit services ZE PR 800,000
Non-audit services: FERZBURTS

Other services AR 729,000
Total 4@t 1,529,000

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement or
loss. Given the relatively simple corporate and operation structure,
the Group currently does not have an internal audit department.
The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
as well as overseeing the formation, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems. In addition, the
Group engages an independent professional advisor with the aim of
setting up and maintaining an effective internal audit function. The
independent professional advisor assists the Board and the Audit
Committee in conducting an annual review of the effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control system in various
material aspects, including strategic, financial, operational and
compliance controls at entity and operational levels.
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The Group reviews the internal audit charter to define the scope,
duties and responsibilities and reporting protocol of the internal
audit function. The Group also conducts an annual risk assessment
to identify potential strategic risks, operational risks, financial
risks and compliance risks of its major business. The identified
risks are analysed, rated and prioritised based on the likelihood of
occurrence and their impacts on achieving corporate objectives.
Respective internal control measures are proposed to mitigate the
consequences of the potential risks to the Group. A continuous
three-year audit plan is devised upon the results of the risk
assessment and under a risk based approach. An annual internal
audit project is executed by the independent professional advisor
according to the three-year audit plan with a view to assisting the
Board and the Audit Committee to evaluate the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems. The risk
assessment report, three-year audit plan and internal control report
are submitted and reviewed by the Audit Committee at least once a
year. Summary of findings and recommendations are discussed at
the Audit Committee meeting with a view to improving the Group’s
operations.

The Company has also formulated policies on handling and
dissemination of inside information that set out procedures in
handling inside information in a secure and proper manner and to
avoid mishandling of inside information of the Group.

The Board has received a confirmation from management on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board, through its Audit
Committee, with result of the annual internal audit project executed
by the independent professional advisor, is satisfied that the Group's
risk management and internal control systems (i) are effective and
adequate to meet the needs of the Group in its current business
environment; and (i) comply with the code provisions on internal
control as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group and ensure
that the consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong have been
adopted, appropriate accounting policies have been used and
applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates have been made. Having made appropriate enquiries, the
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt over the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board
has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The statement of external auditor of the Company, MCM (HK) CPA
Limited, about its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’'s Report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company encourages two-way
communications with both its institutional and private investors.
A shareholder's communication policy was adopted by the Board
on 25 September 2014 aiming at providing the shareholders and
potential investors with ready and timely access to balanced
and understandable information of the Company. Extensive
information about the Company’s activities is provided in its interim
report, quarterly reports and this annual report, which are sent
to shareholders of the Company. The AGM provides a valuable
forum for direct communication between the Board and the
Company'’s shareholders. The Board as well as Chairmen of the
Board committees together with the auditor will present to answer
shareholders’ questions. The circular of the AGM is distributed to
all shareholders at least 21 clear days before the meeting. Separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each separate
issue and voting of which are taken by poll pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules. Any results of the poll are published on both the GEM
website and the Company’s website. All corporate communication
with shareholders will be posted on the Company’s website for
shareholders’ information.
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The 2020 AGM was held on 31 July 2020 and two extraordinary
general meetings were held on 7 September 2020 and 31 March
2021 respectively. Save as the attendance of the Board disclosed
under the paragraph headed “Number of Meetings and Attendance
Records” above, the auditor also attended the 2020 AGM to answer
questions of the shareholders. The Company keeps on promoting
investor relations and enhancing communication with the existing
shareholders and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from
investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s head office or by
email to info@Ina.com.hk.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Subject to the approval of the shareholders and requirement of
the relevant law, the Company shall pay annual dividends to the
shareholders if the Group is profitable, operations environment is
stable and there is no significant investment or commitment made
by the Group. The Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend payout ratio and the Board has the sole direction as to the
declaration and payment of dividends. The dividend policy allows the
Company to declare special dividends from time to time in addition
to the annual dividends.

The Company’s ability to pay dividends will depend upon, among
other things, the Group’s current and future operations, financial
position, development pipeline, prevailing economic environment,
contractual restrictions, capital and other reserve requirements,
dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries and associates,
as well as any other conditions or factors which the Board deems
relevant and having regard to the Directors’ fiduciary duties.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary (“Company Secretary”) of the Company,
Mr. Leung Tze Wai (“Mr. Leung"), was appointed on 12 August 2020.
Mr. Leung is @ member of Hong Kong Institute of certified Public
Accountants. The role of the Company Secretary is responsible for
facilitating the Board meeting process, as well as communications
among Board members, with shareholders and Management. During
the year ended 31 March 2021, Mr. Leung undertook not less than
15 hours of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

In order to promote transparency, accountability and responsibility
in respect of the operation of a listed company, and for the
maintenance of good corporate governance, the Company, assisted
by legal advisers and financial advisers, would notify the Stock
Exchange and make relevant disclosure to the public as soon as
practicable of any inside information of the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong).

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of
any two or more shareholders’ holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 3
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the head office of the Company at Unit
No. D, 5th Floor, Wing Hong Centre, No. 18 Wing Hong Street,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding information of
the shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/she
intends to put forward at general meeting regarding any specified
transaction/ business and its supporting documents.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary at the head
office of the Company at Unit No. D, 5th Floor, Wing Hong Centre,
No. 18 Wing Hong Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong, or send email to
info@ina.com.hk. Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at the general meetings of the Company.

Constitutional Documents
There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

MCM

McM (HK) CPA Limited

MCM (HK) CPA Limited
3/F., Parklane Building
233 Queen'’s Road Central
Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF L & A INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of L & A
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 241, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

REEFETEH
RREFFERRERMANERHE - RAYE
MG AR BREANEARAEENTR - FLF
HAEHRMEERAMEHRRERETENLVKE
ROBRTETRIE  BRATEELEREHRE
BER -

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

HARESEE BEMNETNAEEZER

Impairment assessment of loan receivables FEWR B AR E RS

Refer to the significant accounting policies in note Our audit procedures included the following:
2, significant accounting estimates in note 4 and the HFIEZIEFEFEUTEIE

disclosure of loan receivables in note 24 to consolidated

financial statements. o Assessing controls over the origination, segmentation,
SRR EMBEWMENT2EZSBUR « MF4E Rt hEt ongoing internal credit quality assessments, recording
N PsE24FE R B SRR TR - and monitoring of loan receivables;
o FHMEHEKERWEL - 5 BEABEEEETE
S8R EE RIS

o Engaging the external modelling specialist to assist us
with our assessment of the Group’'s methodology of
ECL model and its appropriateness;

. ZEINBEREIR BB M EE REEREEEHEER
KA REEE M
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

BRETEE

B M AR R

BRETER (F)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN E R B ZE1E

Impairment assessment of loan receivables
(Continueq)

The measurement of expected credit loss (“ECL")
requires the application of significant judgement which
include the identification of exposures with a significant
deterioration in credit quality, and assumptions used in
the ECL models, such as the probabilities of default, loss
given default, expected future cash flows and forward-
looking macroeconomic factors.

BEEEEE ((BHREEEE] N2 KEREXRH
i HeE#rlEEEREERER - UEBHEEE
BERREANMRE - PINEAOE  BLBAE  JHER
KIE M E RAREREBKBREE -

Due to the significance of loan receivables (representing
20.7% of total assets) and the corresponding subjectivity
inherent in the estimation of ECL allowances, we
considered this as a key audit matter.
HREREFRBEEA (HREE207%) RE@EBHREER
EEBEETTOEEEEN - RMRRIL D —EERSEAS
18 o

FEW &R RE R G ()

Assessing the effectiveness of key controls over
the application of the impairment methodology,
the governance for the ECL models, inputs and
assumptions used by the Group in calculating the
ECL and the mathematical accuracy of the ECL
calculations;

FHEEZEHERERENER  HHEEEEREE
A BB EEHEEEEMANE SR RRRE LA
HEEEETENSEERENE L ;

Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL
models, including the model input, model design,
model performance and calculation;

M EEETEAEEBERINEEN - REELEAY
1’ RARET  BRRRRETE

Assessing the reasonableness of the Group's criteria
for assessing if there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets
should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the
qualitative assessment;

M EEEN G EERRESEEEL NS E e HEEN

BiepRREPERERBREENE LT EMRER
BEME

Challenging whether historical experience is
representative of current circumstances and of
the recent losses incurred in the portfolios and
assessing the reasonableness of the forward-looking
adjustments,
ERELEBEERRENBEAARREEEREENN
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRETEE (F)

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

HARENEE BN ETNAEEZER

Impairment assessment of loan receivables EWERKRETL (£)
(Continued)

o Reviewing the Group’s assumptions on the expected
future cash flows, including the value of realisable
collateral based on available market information; and

. BB S EHTEMAKEERENERR - AEERTS
SERNATZRERAREE &

o Assessing the financial statement disclosures relating
to the Group’s exposure to credit risk.
. FEEEEEERBM OMEENYT ERREE -

Acquisition of Bewisekid Holding Limited, Zone Uif#Bewisekid Holding Limited - Zone Galaxy Limited
Galaxy Limited and Prestige Concord Limited K Prestige Concord Limited

Refer to the disclosure of acquisition and disposal of With respect to the acquisition of 100%, 100% and 70%
subsidiaries in note 39 to the consolidated financial equity interests in Bewisekid Holding Limited, Zone Galaxy

statements. Limited and Prestige Concord Limited, respectively, we
20476 B TSR M RESOULIE I & M B A B RO 258 - inspected the sale and purchase agreements gave rise to

control of Bewisekid Holding Limited, Zone Galaxy Limited
and Prestige Concord Limited under HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements. Regarding the estimation of fair
value at acquisition date of the assets and liabilities of the
acquired entities, we had engaged the external modelling
specialist to assist us with our assessment of Group’s
methodology of fair value model and its appropriateness and
assessed management’s identification and determination
of the fair value methodology applied and the assumptions
underlying the acquisition date valuation and input data.

9 Bl Uk BEBewisekid Holding Limited + Zone Galaxy Limited &
Prestige Concord Limited 100% *100% K 70%%#EMm S » H 2
BEREBE BV EME LR F109RERE I & &5 Bewisekid
Holding Limited - Zone Galaxy Limited}Prestige Concord
LimitediZHIEN E Bz - RATKBEE 2 EERBERIE
AHZ AFEMGEME - RMERFEINIEEERIGE RN T
HEEENATERXFERAEEEADTHEEEMREA
RETEE DN TEN BRI R ETE R EWE B L ERENRE
RO ABIR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

BRETEE

B M AR R

BRETER (F)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN E R B ZE1E

Acquisition of Bewisekid Holding Limited, Zone
Galaxy Limited and Prestige Concord Limited
(Continued)

On 10 August 2020, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Bewisekid Holding Limited
at consideration of HK$33,250,000 which satisfied by
issue and allotment of the shares at the issue price
of HK$0.135 per share by the Company. Upon the
completion, Bewisekid Holding Limited became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. This acquisition has been
accounted for using the acquisition method. The amount
of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
HK$31,752,000. Bewisekid Holding Limited is engaged
in provision of financial quotient and investment
experience-sharing seminars on property investment of
United Kingdom in Hong Kong.

RZZTEZZFN\A+TH  EEE U EBewisekid Holding
Limitedz & #F A% # - X {& £&33,250,000%8 7T * B E A &%
BITEER0IBDABTLEITREEROFTAZNM « WET
FX7% - Bewisekid Holding Limitedil BE£BH2EH B A
A o LB R G ANEEAR - WIETFEENEESER
31,752,000/ 7T  Bewisekid Holding Limited= BRE B =
RV R B FIRENIRELR D TR -

On 17 August 2020, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Zone Galaxy Limited at
consideration of HK$40,000,000 which satisfied by issue
promissory note by the Company. Upon the completion,
Zone Galaxy Limited became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group. This acquisition has been accounted for
using the acquisition method. The amount of goodwill
arising as a result of the acquisition was HK$32,989,000.
Zone Galaxy Limited is engaged in provision of financial
quotient and investment experience-sharing seminars in
Hong Kong.

RZZFE_ZFNA++H  &%E5KEZone Galaxy
Limitedz 2 #RARRE AUk BE - B %40,000,0007 7T » Tyik s
TERAFAREENF NI - WETAH % - Zone Galaxy
Limited X REEENEZEWB AR - IBKE D RAUKE
SENER o YL R E A A P B £ BH A32,989,000/8 T © Zone
Galaxy LimitedE= ZER BB U FIRUEMERIRELR Y =8
PEH)ZEF -

W iEBewisekid Holding Limited - Zone Galaxy Limited
K Prestige Concord Limited ()

In particular, we reviewed the future cash flow forecast
prepared by management on whether it is agreed to the
budget approved by the board of directors of the Company
and compared the budget with actual results available up
to the report date. We also challenged the appropriateness
of the assumptions, including the sales growth rates and
gross margin, against latest market expectations. We also
challenged the discount rate employed in the calculation
of value in use by reviewing its basis of calculation and
comparing its input data to market sources.

LHZ ZMMERTREESSECBEHEHEES R
HERSHHIEAEScERARETLEE  AGHBEERE
REZRRBERETER o BMITE L BAMISERAESRE
(BEHERERERENK) WEEMN - RATEBERETE
BEEREHE ARG RREBAREHAE AT EMREA
ZRRIRE o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRETEE (F)

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

HARENEE BN ETNAEEZER

Acquisition of Bewisekid Holding Limited, Zone UWf#Bewisekid Holding Limited - Zone Galaxy Limited
Galaxy Limited and Prestige Concord Limited KPrestige Concord Limited (4)
(Continued)

On 31 March 2021, the Group completed the acquisition
of the remaining 70% equity interest in Prestige Concord
Limited at consideration of HK$80,000,000 which
satisfied by issue of HK$41,000,000 promissory note
by the Group, offset against liabilities of HK$29,000,000
from the vendor to the Group and HK$10,000,000 by
cash. Upon the completion, Prestige Concord Limited
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. This
acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition
method. The amount of goodwill arising as a result
of the acquisition was HK$70,330,000. Zone Galaxy
Limited is engaged in provision of financial quotient
and investment experience-sharing seminars and
consultation services in Hong Kong.
RZEBE-Z—F=ZA=+—8  &%E %K HPrestige
Concord Limitedgs T70%J% # &9 4g & - X {8 480,000,000
VST B S E R B B 17 5 TE 241,000,000/ 7T Y 7 =
XA B RER R E S E A (529,000,000 7T &R &
10,000,000FT# 84 - UkBE5ER 1% - Prestige Concord Limited
KAREEBENZEWNBAR - WBWESEAREZEA
B o UrBE R E AR B4 %8 470,330,000/ 7T ° Zone Galaxy
Limited= ERE B FREM B RIREL RS =B RIT
I ARFS B TS ©
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

BRETEE

B M AR R

BRETER (F)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN E R B ZE1E

Acquisition of Bewisekid Holding Limited, Zone
Galaxy Limited and Prestige Concord Limited
(Continued)

The accounting for the completed transactions of
Bewisekid Holding Limited, Zone Galaxy Limited and
Prestige Concord Limited involved business combination
under HKFRS 3 Business Combination and estimating
the fair value of the assets and liabilities of the acquired
business, including the identification and valuation,
where appropriate, of the contingent consideration
at acquisition date. Significant judgment is involved
in relation to the assumptions used in this valuation
process. We therefore consider the acquisition of equity
interest in Bewisekid Holding Limited, Zone Galaxy
Limited and Prestige Concord Limited a key audit matter.
# 2 52 Ak HBewisekid Holding Limited ~ Zone Galaxy Limited
KPrestige Concord Limited 5 ABRHIRIEE B W&
FERIEIREBE O RMEAFTREEENEERBENAT
B BERIE B BRE R ARENBR RMEE (ER) -
RIGERFATARES RERHAE - Hit - RABRUE
Bewisekid Holding Limited + Zone Galaxy Limited X Prestige
Concord LimitedJy— I EF T H18 -

W kEBewisekid Holding Limited - Zone Galaxy Limited
K Prestige Concord Limited (4)

RTEZERERATE
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18 M AR R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

BRETEE

BRETEE (F)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN E R E ZE1E

Impairment of goodwill

Refer to the significant accounting policies in note
2, significant accounting estimates in note 4 and the
disclosure of goodwill in note 17 to consolidated
financial statements.
2R E B RERNT2E 2GR
RME17R BRI R -

HEABA R

The Group has goodwill of HK$135,071,000 as at the
end of the reporting period, which was recognised from
acquisition of Bewisekid Holding Limited, Zone Galaxy
Limited and Prestige Concord Limited. An assessment is
required annually to establish whether any impairment
iS requires.

&£ B R ® S HI R /9 g 2135,071,0000 7T - Jh B IR
Bewisekid Holding Limited ~ Zone Galaxy Limited &z Prestige
Concord Limited #32 - FEFHESHEL T IREETT
al

The Group’ assessment on impairment of goodwill
is a judgmental process which requires estimates
concerning the forecast future cash flows associated
with the goodwill, the discount rates and the growth rate
of revenue and costs to be applied in determining the
value in use. The selection of valuation model, adoption
of key assumptions and input data may be subject to
management basis and changes in these assumptions
and input to valuation model may result in significant
financial impact.
EEEHEHEREN T AMN A B EE SRR
KEeRE  MRERBAEREREEERABEMAKAR
BHIETRTE o BEBMAEES - RAERER RE AR
ARBEREREEETT Mz FRELREEERNE AR
MEEREEEEAMBTE -

The extent of judgment and the size of the goodwill
resulted in this matter being identified as a key audit
matter.
UL SBIBARTS B H IR E A R B R R/ NS R R E T
R
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BAERE

In order to address this matter in our audit, we obtained
management’s assessment and the one prepared by their
valuation specialist and challenged the reasonableness
of the selection of valuation model, adoption of key
assumptions and input data. In particular, we engaged
the external modelling specialist to assist us with our
assessment of the Group’s methodology of valuation model
and its appropriateness and reviewed the future cash
flow forecast prepared by management on whether it is
agreed to the budget approved by the board of directors
of the Company and compared the budget with actual
results available up to the report date. We also challenged
the appropriateness of the assumptions, including the
sales growth rates and gross margin, against latest market
expectations.

REEZRREBIHEE  HACREEEENGEEERMERE
RIS - WS EREEEDN  RABRER LB AZEBNS
B LAER  BMEBFEIINSREZR B EMTEEERE
MEEERN T EZREEEHEERERRREERRESSIHE
ZTEEWKEMBEENEZRE QBRI EE BERERET
ELE - ORI AR RIEB R E TR o HAVIPE L fi hi5 T8 813
ERR (BEBEEEREREMNE) (EEE -

We also challenged the discount rate employed in the
calculation of value in use by reviewing its basis of
calculation and comparing its input data to market sources.
B AP TR A B B EL A S L N EL ) A\ B B T 3% SRR L EUBA
AEHERNTEMRAZMERE o

As any changes in these assumptions and input to valuation
model may result in significant financial impact, we tested
management’s sensitivity analysis in relation to the key
inputs to the impairment assessment which included
changes in the sales growth rate, gross margin and discount
rate employed.

ZEBRILAERANBABBNE SN SELERUBE
Z - R EREEERAEN G EREASIR (RIEMRA
B RE « EMERERENEH) HERE I -
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2021, were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 29 June
2021.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

B M AR R

Hih=15

EREBE_F-—F=A=+—HILERNE
AUBRRNMS - BREBEE KA
—ERAT AR RS RRERMETER -

FEVMBBRRREBETRE U2 ER

BERREFAHEMENEE - HBWENEET
BREFROMEER - BETBREGAMB]RER
P BE R E -

BMEEANBRRFLHERLRBERE
B TRATE SR AR EREDTR

LA
i o

MERPIH R AP BRERNFTMS - LANEE
REEEMER - Wt EERMERE T RER
EUBHRRIBMINETPAEERBREAT
—HUER - RHEBREABRERAL -

WERBEMEATZTIE  HMARRBLEEMLE
HHRBRERRL  RAFTERSZEE - K
EEITTE - AP AR o

ESNASMBERRAKENEL

BERFEFAARARBBGHMAREMNE
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HARMREEMAFHNEAMBRE  YHEER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B AHENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

B M AR R
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

MCM (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
3/F., Parklane Building

233 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021

Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy
Practising Certificate Number P07560
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I
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEBRERAMEEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_Z-_—F=A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —E T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
KiaF FHET T
Revenue Wz 56 96,468 74,271
Cost of sales SHEE R AN (30,242) (66,608)
Reversal/(provision) for expected BHEEEERD (BE)
credit losses 9(c) 5,265 (4,337)
Other income Hib U A 7 440 2
Other net gains/(losses) Hip w558 (E518) 8 150 (17,636)
Selling and distribution costs THE R 53 SRR AR (2,924) (133)
Administrative expenses THRY (26,291) (18,368)
Profit/(loss) from operations EESER(B18) 42,866 (32,809)
Finance costs EAFE AR AR 9(a@) (1,733) (829)
Share of profits less losses of BRI E A A
associates Bia 5,077 1,190
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBLADER,(EE) 9 46,210 (32,448)
Income tax expenses FriSEifs 10 (5,785) (1,567)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(EHE) 40,425 (34,015)
Other comprehensive expense HSRrEM2HEES
for the year, net of income tax  HIBRFTEH
ltem that will not be reclassified to ~ Fe@&E#FHHEEIE
profit or loss: FIER
Fair value loss on investment in BAFEFARMEE
equity instrument at fair value WA T A E
through other comprehensive K AFEEE
income (14,000)
Other comprehensive expense FREM2EA
for the year, net of income tax  HIBRFTEH (14,000
Total comprehensive income/ FREZEBA (X)) B8
(expense) for the year (48,015)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBm R HMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_Z-_—F=A=1+—HLFE

2021 2020
B —TIEF

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET

Profit/(loss) for the year THALEEER

attributable to: =R (F5R) -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE SN (31,600)
Non-controlling interests PR A (2,415)
(34,015)
Total comprehensive income/ TIATEEFREZE
(expense) for the year WA (Ba%) #8458 :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RATHBA (45,600)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR AR (2,415)
(48,015)
HK cent
il
Earnings/(loss) per share BRER (FHE)
Basic AR 14 (2.47)
Diluted s 14 (2.47)
The notes on pages 67 to 241 form part of these financial statements. F67E20 B 2 M REKZEM G HmERA—HH o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets EREBEE

Property, plant and equipment YE - R NS

Investment property wEME

Goodwill EES

Interests in associates NG X

Equity instrument at fair value BAHEARMBEE
through other comprehensive WA A T B
income

Rental deposits HEZe

Loan receivables W E R

Current assets REEE

Financial assets at fair value BAFER ABED
through profit or loss TRMEE

Inventories FE

Trade and other receivables 5 M EAEWRGRIE

Loan receivables W E R

Amounts due from directors FEWEER

Amount due from an associate JELI&H%%/AT 18

Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY

Tax recoverable BEEEEE

Assets classified as disposal group  S¥EAEELE 2 HEAR)
held for sale BE

Current liabilities REBAE

Trade and other payables B 5 N H A fERTEIE

Contract liabilities aHaE

Other borrowings HifgE

Lease liabilities HEAaE

Tax payable JERHRIR

Provision for litigation ARG

Dividend payable FERTAR 2

Liabilities directly associated with HORRFIELE T HER

assets classified as disposal group

held for sale

AEEEZRMAENER

Net current assets RBEEFRE
Total assets less current EEABERABERE

liabilities

e MR R R

At 31 March 2021
KRB —F=ZA=+—H

HK$ OOO
39571

8,208
838

16,590

144
19,460

45,240

7,850
940
8,629
24,573

2,130
174

44,296

184,608 44,296

45,294 12,938
29,808 3,075
11,200 1,800

2,352 1,047
13,626 1,087

1,735 1,735
10,137 -

114,152 21,682

114,152 21,682

70,456 22,614

239,026 67,854
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE AR R &

At 31 March 2021
KRB —F=ZA=+—H

Non-current liabilities

FRBEE

ks '000

?/EE

Lease liabilities HEAE 31 3,033
Deferred tax liabilities LL%RI,EE% 32 122
Promissory note payables FERIEE R 33 -
Other borrowings HmEE 30 5,000
Loans from a shareholder RE—RBRRERAER 29 9,720
65,007 17,875
Net assets EEFE 174,019 49,979
Capital and reserves BRKHE
Share capital &N 37(a) 154 51,200
Reserves Ei= 176,604 1,377
Equity attributable to owners AATEE AEGER
of the Company 176,758 52,577
Non-controlling interests IR S (2,739) (2,598)
Total equity RSB 174,019 49,979

June 2021.

Yuen Yu Sam

Lau Chun Kavan

RIAE 2%
Director Director
EE2 EF

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 RZ-ZZ—F XAt N BEEE & RRE

The notes on pages 67 to 241 form part of these financial statements. F67E201 B 2 WKL M G mER e —H o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MEERSER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_Z-—4F=ZA=+—ALtFE

Attributableto onners of the Company

RAAEE AR
Fair
Value
teserve Share Non-
Share Share (non- Special Option Other ~ Accumulated controling
capital premium recycling Tesene TESeNes reseve  profitloss) Total interests
I
s hfsR  (FuEE) KiRE  RRERE BfRE 3 R & FERER
HK$000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$1000 HKS 000
ThR 7 Tin Thn ThR 7 T Thn TAn
At A 209 RIE-nEmA-H 5,00 18,13 09 B8 - K 595980 sl 19 B
Los or e e i - - - - - - 140 140 4 B

Chrgesnfavalie Ofeqiyrstument AT AR 2T
atfirvale fiogh o competensie W 2R T A
income, et ot LTERE TRRE - - (14000 - - - - (14000 - (14000

Toil comprehensiieepenses for e jear - EREEFRER - - (14000 - - - (31,600 {i5600 (2419 (18019)

Disposal of non-wholl-omned subsidary

o) - - - - - - - - %) (3
A 31 Nach 2000 R5-BE-F=1-H 5120 #1813 ] B4 - 181 7590 557 5% 19979
A1 A 2000 H-F-TEME-A 50 813 0oy B8 - 13 (k) 557 059 199
Proft o theyear S ) 40566 045
To compreiershe ncome for ey ERAEHALE I 40566 10425
It dvidend L (10437) (10,137) (10,437
Captl rergaiston hrgg (618,133) } - -
Pling s [350) 8289 8315 8315
Futyseted e opfimanengement  REGEERER (Hpy)

03 5437 543 5437
131 Narh 2021 H-E--E=F=1-7 78152 192) B3 5437 430 82181 17675 (2739) 174019
The notes on pages 67 to 241 form part of these financial statements. FOTE2M B 7 B S BHREN— D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEBRERBR

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_Z-_—F=A=+—HILFE

2020
—T-TF
Notes HK$'000
FAT
Operating activities REEH
Profit/(l0ss) before taxation BEADEF(BE) (32,448)
Adjustments for: LTI B EITHE
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BEKRETE
and equipment 15 1,300
Depreciation of investment REMERE
property 16 6
Finance costs BIISARA 9a) 829
Bank interest income BITFEWA 7 (1)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE BB A AR 8 (141)
Gain on disposal of property, plantand ~ HE&EWE « BELREZ
equipment Wi -
Gain on disposal of investment property — HHERE W Y Iz -
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial BRFEF BN
assets at fair value through CREENLNTE
profit or 10ss B8 () 8 (400)
Loss on disposal of HERAFETA
financial assets at fair value through BaNepEEN
profit or loss EiE 8 6,183 252
Share of profits less losses of associate 15w FIjRE: 4 A 7
&8 (5,077) (1,190)
(Reversal)/provision for expected credit  FEHMEEEE (@), /B
losses (5,265) 4,337
Inventory written off i EETEacy 22 570 336
Trade receivables written off W3HE 5 R E 8 16 5,230
Impairment loss for trade receivables 4 5 RENEUE 2 R EE R 1,284
Deposit and other receivables written %4 K E 4 e Y 2 B i 5
off 8 3,025
Loan receivables written off s E R 8 2,645
Impairment loss for property, mE - BEREHEZ
plant and equipment BIEEE 15 924
Loss on written off of property, plant WM - R RSE
and equipment ZEB 8 33
Equity-settled share option arrangement it S B E L HE -
Written back of long outstanding trade  #IEIREIREEZE R EM
and other payables e 5RIA -
Recovery of loan receivable written off I EIRBAFE M2
in previous years U E TR -
Recovery of trade and other receivable  UgEIRBIEEE IS
written off in previous year B 5 REMERHIE -
Modification loss upon extension of loan  FtiEHAFEU BRI E
receivable EE 8 4,443
(9,531)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
i R

2021 2020
—E-—F —T=%
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kz FEx FHT
Changes in working capital BELSEH
Decrease in inventories FERD 370 5,211
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 M E b FEYGRIE
other receivables w,/(3Ehn) 21,407 6,714)
(Increase)/decrease in loan receivables  fEME 2R (3€11),/ F (16,918) 6,467
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BBz A FEzH A8
through profit or loss HEREE (1,855) -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets H &1z A FEz B
at fair value through profit or loss SREEMBIE 1,667 1,332
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other & 5 K H i fE 348
payables A /(E) (8,852) 401
Decrease/(increase) in contract liabilites  &#1&&m4/(3L0) (8,113) 2,940
Increase in amounts due from directors J@iﬂ&ﬁ%ﬂlﬁiﬁ n (5,662) -
Increase in amount due from an associate i Uk« 22 71308 1 i (6,230) -
Cash generated from operations REMBRE 22,145 106
Income tax paid BATETEH (530) (27)

Net cash generated from operating &K% IEFMERSTE

activities 21,615 79
Investing activities RETEH
Acquisition of an associate Y — upg’ A (15,400)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WeEERTE 2 39 -
Bank interest received E%Eﬁﬂ% 1
Net proceed from disposal of subsidiaries H &} E A S HIEFE 39 468
Payment for the purchase of investment BEEREMEZ HF

property (844)
Proceed from the purchase of property, EBEY% - BE RBERE

plant and equipment IR -
Payment for the purchase of BEDE  BER

property, plant and equipment B PANEA (1,209) (4,053)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RE&EZEBFE /(FiA) B

investing activities BE (19,828)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n Ké‘iﬁ,ﬁf}ﬁ%%

2021 2020
ZEB--fF —ECTF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiet FET FHTT
Financing activities MEEH
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENHEES ZERESH (2,055) (1,073)
Interest element of lease rentals paid =ENE] ,\E‘i@Zﬂ SH#5 (212) (300)
Repayment of other borrowings EREMES (18,258) (3,680)
Repayment of loans from a EERE—BREZER
shareholder (11,612) (10,280)
Repayment of promissory notes BH BB (23,560) -
Shareholder’s loan cost paid EMBEES ﬁﬁm (104) (269)
Other borrowing costs paid BITEMEER A (578) (260)
Promissory note cost paid B HG ZEAR AR (839) -
Proceeds from loans from a shareholder ®E—&ZRREFH 2
FriSsIAE 1,892 22,000
Proceeds from other borrowings HifEEMBHE 11,000 10,480
Placing shares [ ) 88,315 -

Net cash generated from financing ®&EEFHE
activities R&F8 43,989 16,618

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%

cash equivalents B (R) = 70,814 (3,131)
Cash and cash equivalents at FORERBRELEEN

beginning of the year 5,261
Cash and cash equivalents at FRESRBLEEY

end of the year 72,994 2,130
Analysis of balances of cash RERASEZEYEH

and cash equivalents VR
Cash and bank balances Re RiFITHR 26(a) 2,130
Cash and cash equivalents as stated HaBE&FRERT

in the consolidated statement of  Fi5IRHWELR

cash flows REZEY 2,130
The notes on pages 67 to 241 form part of these financial statements. FOTE2M B BN EHBIREN—F D -
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[
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

L & A International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are P.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and Unit No. D, 5th
Floor, Wing Hong Centre, No. 18 Wing Hong Street, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from the initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group's interests in associates.

Items included in the financial statements of each entity
in the Group are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$") which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency, and all value are rounded to the
nearest thousand HK$ except where otherwise indicated.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that equity securities (note 2(f)) are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Non-current assets and disposal group classified as held
for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell (see note 2(w)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(c)

statements (continuea)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 4.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Changes in the Group's interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(j)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see
note 2(w)). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate that forms part of the Group's equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’'s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment (see note 2(j)). Any acquisition-
date excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in profit or
loss, whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate (after applying the expected credit loss model
to such other long-term interests where applicable (see
note 2()(M)).

(d)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Goodwill continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently whenever
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-
generating unit within a group of cash-generating units),
the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the
basis of the relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit (or the group of cash-generating units)
retained.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Other investments in equity securities
The Group's policies for investments in equity securities,
other than investments in subsidiaries and associates,
are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) for
which transaction costs are recognised directly in profit
or loss. For an explanation of how the Group determines
fair value of financial instruments, see note 42(a). These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an irrevocable election
to designate the investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made
if the investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer's perspective. Where such an election is made,
the amount accumulated in other comprehensive income
remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal,
the amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to accumulated losses. It is
not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(t)(v).

L & A International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

2,

FEETEE @)

(f)

RBEAEFHEAMMRE
REBMHOPBRAFEHENIRE FRHH
BRI RS ARRE) BERNT

RIRAFEH IR E IR AN R E
ASHEZSRERPERKIE
HR - ZEREVNPRATEINERE
FEIER SRS - MR AFEETA
B (BATESAAEBR) T2 2%
EREBRIN  HRGRAEENER
WR - AN EENEEES/RIITA
NHEMNEE - RisT420) - ZEFER
BHBETEDER T HF AN -

RARE
BRABFREDGW D BRI ATE
FHARRE - BRIFRBAIRE T RRE
BE  YHEIRERRERAEEE
AR BEE R R R IEE R AT EETA
Hip 2w s (szﬁjrﬁuﬁk/ﬁ\’mi
mER) (TATEmE) - URRER
BEEFHEEMEE WS T ER - Eifr
BEAERTAEEEL  BERAE
REMEETAAE TORAEERE
AT o BEHULERE - ERIRE
WHEER > REMEERET ZFTH
SRINRBEXHERE (TH#EE)
e EHER  ATERE (THE
E) FRANSESHEARER

BTe@ B - RERAFSFKE
S - TRED D BARATER
ABSZHIBR A FEFALMBEERK
& PR 20)() TR IR SR A 1B s
PR AEAMUA



n [
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g8) Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising land and
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both. The Group adopts the
alternative treatment by using the cost model provided
under the HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Investment
properties are initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation of investment properties, except for the
freehold land which is not subject to depreciation, is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives of 50 years.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(EﬁzE T—F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EE&FBER (#)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (h) %1% - BERZE

The following items of property, plant and equipment AN - RS R 5418 B ISR

are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and KB ERBEEBEYRR (LK

impairment losses (see note 2())): 2())

- Right-of-use assets arising from leases over - BRESYEELEOMERILIE
leasehold properties where the Group is not the MEREROTMEES ANER
registered owner of the property interest; and HEE &

- ltems of plant and equipment, including right-of- - HWERXREBRIER - BiEHE
use assets arising from leases of underlying plant W E R ENEEEENE
and equipment (see note 2(i)). FAEEE (RMEE2()) -

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items WEFE N RERAEGEMRE

of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated [ 55 R 55 M8 TE B B AN R I8 5 2 T AT

residual value, if any, using the straight line method over FRAFHRANGFGER  T2F
their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates for EREERHIIINT :

depreciation are as follows:

Estimated useful lives
fEEt Al E A EEHA

Leasehold land HEL Over the unexpired term of lease
1RoRfE mAE ER
Buildings situated on leasehold land  i7ATHE + 89S Over the shorter of the unexpired term

of lease and the buildings’ estimated
useful lives, being no more than

50 years after the date of completion
RADEEE RIEFH
HETAEEAER (REE) -

iBim ek A Bif& 505

Furniture and equipment ERINET 20% per annum
BF20%

Office equipment PR 20%-33% per annum
FF20%-33%

Leasehold improvements HEMEEE Over the remaining term of the

lease or 5 years, whichever is shorter

RFISTAE R ST - B E A%

Motor vehicles SR 20%-30% per annum
B F20%-30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment W - BB R EHIE AN EE S A
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is FRAFEHTE - BIZEANRAEE
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and BEESEERLD  MELDEE
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life e - —IHEEMERAFHRER
of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed MHEME (NE) EBFEITERH -
annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net proceeds on disposal
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
—F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

(%ZE T

2.

/8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

(i)

(i) As alessee

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is
the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(BE-Z=—F=A=1+— Eiif)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EESFBX (@)
(i) Leased assets (continued) iy HEEE#®
(i) As a lessee (Continued) (i) EHREBAE)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
Lease liabilities are recognised at the REEMRBEHZEEE
commencement date of the lease at HABIELRHEE R
the present value of lease payments to RE®RREEERE-
be made over the lease term. The lease HENRBIEEEK
payments include fixed payments (including (BIEEEEENT) A
in-substance fixed payments) less any £ o] 72 & 48 B JE LK

lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS R R AL

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leased assets (continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
of office premises (that is those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(ii) As alessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with note 2(t)(ii.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption described in note 2()(), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() cCredit losses and impairment of assets

)

Credit losses from financial instruments
The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLS) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and
loan receivables, which are held for the collection
of contractual cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest).

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities measured at FVPL
and equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-
recycling), are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLS

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

)

Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLS (Continued)

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLS, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLsS: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

In respect of all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month ECLS unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLS.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

)

Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’'s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2(t)(iv) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)
At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.

Credit losses from financial guarantees
issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(BEZZ=—F=A=+— Eiif)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FEEFER (&)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets () FEEBEEREERE#®)
(Continued)
(ii) credit losses from financial guarantees (i) SREBHERZEEEE
issued (Continued) (&)
Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised BB MBERVSEAT
within “trade and other payables” at fair value, EREZMEMEMNKIE] A
which is determined by reference to fees R MZEFEAFEELR
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar BERRAERTHEEE R A
services, when such information is obtainable, EHER N EERT B EK
or to interest rate differentials, by comparing ER A {6 51 F 2 (W B B8 & KL AT
the actual rates charged by lenders when the TEH Al SEfbET) 18 - 28U
guarantee is made available with the estimated R KA F 22 5 FTUEL A 2

rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount
initially recognised as deferred income is amortised
in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as
income from financial guarantees issued (see note
2(t)(vi)).

The Group monitors the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract and recognises
a provision when ECLs on the financial guarantees
are determined to be higher than the amount
carried in “trade and other payables” in respect of
the guarantees (i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees

issued (Continued)

To determine ECLS, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default of the specified debtor since
the issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is
measured unless the risk that the specified debtor
will default has increased significantly since the
guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is
measured. The same definition of default and the
same assessment of significant increase in credit
risk as described in note 2(j)(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the specified debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, an ECL is estimated based on the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the
guarantee, the specified debtor or any other party.
The amount is then discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

- investment property;,
- prepayments;

- interests in associates,
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company'’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(iii) Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying amount of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(iv) Interim financial reporting and
impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report
in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, every three months. At the end of
the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see notes 2(j)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed in
a subsequent period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end
of the financial year to which the interim period
relates.

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, in the process of production
for such sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be
consumed in the production process or in the rendering
of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

0

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 2(t)). A
contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 2(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see note
2(0(v)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(0)

(p)

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see note 2())()).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
2(V)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(j)(ii), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for expected credit losses (ECLS) in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2())().
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in share option reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the Binomial Model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the share options, the total estimated
fair value of the share options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
accumulated losses).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided that
those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Provisions, contingent liabilities and
onerous contracts

)

(ii)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has
a contract under which the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be received
from the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts
are measured at the present value of the lower of
the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the net cost of continuing with the contract.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

100

Ann

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services
or the use by others of the Group's assets under leases
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business. Revenue
from other sources is arising from interest income from
money lending business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration
for any effects of a significant financing component if the
period of financing is 12 months or less.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Revenue and other income (continued)
Further details of the Group's revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

0]

(if)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the
products are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract, allocated
between all the goods promised under the contract
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

Provision of seminar

For the seminar services, the Group provides
seminars through on-site and online platforms for a
fixed fee. The seminar services are paid in advance
and in full during the registration process, which
must occur prior to the attending the first seminar.

The seminar services are divided into membership
fee and seminar fee. For the membership fee,
the revenue is recognises for one year from the
payment date of the customer. For the seminar
fee, the Group recognises revenue at a point in
time when the services have been delivered to the
customer. A contract liability is recognised for fees
whereas revenue has yet been recognised.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(t) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Provision of seminar (Continued)

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the services
underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the
price at which the Group would sell a promised
services separately to a customer. If a stand-alone
selling price is not directly observable, the Group
estimates it using appropriate techniques such
that the transaction price ultimately allocated to
any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation. The progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
in seminar are measured based on output method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of the services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of services.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e.
gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2()(i)).

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income from
listed investments is recognised when the share
price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Income from financial guarantees issued

Income from financial guarantees issued is
recognised over the term of the guarantees (see
note 2())(ii).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statements of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred.

e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(BE-T——

iﬂﬂ—ﬁiif)

2. FESHEE#
(t) WEREAMBA @)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

GASCLON

MBS A BB A FOX - &
HeRMEENRRARERY
TREERASZPAMBERK
RenBETHRMTRTE
TaHE - HRAELREER
ENRBHEKATENERE
EME BEREANXEAREE
MEEEARE  AHBREERE
MEREEMS @ BERFXE
RREENEFEKA AIRE
mENREERE) (RRE2)
M) °

e

K EFFLEMEREHRIWAR
% 3B HE UCE AR B 3K
R kKB EMIREHRIUA
PR E 7 IREBIR SRR ©

BEELMBRERZBA
BB HMBERZIWARER
HAREER (RLMTRE20)M) -

2GS

el FT & TR AR 8 75 52 B R U BUER
JiT /8 B B 75 & BT A 151 - R
BT B & 1) 25 e & B 75K
MRMER - MERKEELH
X H) B AR R R S E R VAR
FIEAfE B Rt N E = h R
BN -




n |
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS R R AL

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(%ZE T

—F=A=t+—HILFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

104

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency
borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign
operation which are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
HK$ at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 April 2005, are translated into HK$ at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the translation
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 April 2005 is translated at
the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(v)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Company are reclassified to profit or l0ss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

2. FESHEE#

(u)

(v)

INEE R (&)

RHEEEIER (BIEERKENE
SNEIEH R BB - P MR A BT
BAR (BREINER) EHENH
E HEMHHEBE AR (BB
) ks (AP REESERS
BMEE)) B - RARBEA ARIGZ
EBMRBRARNEELEZEE
FoEERR -

AN - FRER Y B MY B A R AR E R
AEBREHHE R B OZEG M
5 RETEXEEMAMELANEIE

MBI - A TENES
MR - A EMEY HE (BT g

BYREERREATENNBER
MAHE) ME - RELEZEN
MERELL I B EF B =8

CE 2%

ERRAEEREYE  RRREE
DB B IR T A R AR
SRR EEROEEL TIUERL

REBAERAN—#5 - BiEE

AR HEE SRR S -

EERANREEREEELRAS
EERERARETHREEEN A
RREMGBHIHEMEBLTHED
IR EANMEREBEER R DA © fif
HNEAEREENANRERZRN
HEMSBUT BB AR T
BB ek - AEERAE R
B -




n |
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS R R AL

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(ESZE T—F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

2.

106

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that
will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when
the above criteria for classification as held for sale are
met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale,
the measurement of the non-current assets (and all
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is
brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the non-
current assets (except for certain assets as explained
below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy
so far as the financial statements of the Group and the
Company are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial assets (other
than investments in subsidiaries and associates) and
investment properties. These assets, even if held for sale,
would continue to be measured in accordance with the
policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale,
are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current
asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the non-
current asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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2. FESHEE#

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(x) Related parties

@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(viiy A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viiij The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group'’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

108

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’'s executive directors (the chief operating decision
maker) for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,

Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1

Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

@

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive
set of concepts for financial reporting and standard
setting, and provides guidance for preparers of financial
statements in developing consistent accounting policies
and assistance to all parties to understand and interpret
the standards. The Conceptual Framework includes
new chapters on measurement and reporting financial
performance, new guidance on the derecognition
of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions and
recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also
clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence and
measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts
or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(o)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of activities
and assets to be considered a business, it must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of
the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.
The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business
and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is
on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The amendments have also
narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods or
services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to transactions or other
events that occurred on or after 1 January 2020. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

©

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the period
before the replacement of an existing interest rate
benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate ("RFR"). The
amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable
hedge accounting to continue during the period of
uncertainty before the introduction of the alternative
RFR. In addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties. The amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group
as the Group does not have any interest rate hedging
relationships.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality
will depend on the nature or magnitude of information,
or both. The amendments did not have any significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES
(a) Critical accounting judgements

112

Principal versus agent consideration
(principal)

The Group engages in trading of OEM garment products
and wholesaling of seafood. The Group concluded that
the Group acts as the principal for such transactions as
it controls the specified good before it is transferred to
the customer after taking into consideration indicators
such as the Group is primarily responsible for fulfilling
the promise to provide the goods. The Group has
inventory risk. When the Group satisfies the performance
obligation, the Group recognises trading revenue in
the gross amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled as specified in the contracts.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
recognised revenue relating to trading of OEM garment
products and wholesaling of seafood amounted to
HK$23,832,000 (2020: HK$40,241,000) and HK$nil (2020:
HK$23,449,000) respectively.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i)

Impairment allowances on loan
receivables

The measurement of impairment losses under
HKFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets
requires judgement, in particular, the estimation
of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment
losses and the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes in which can result in
different levels of allowances.

The Group’s ECL calculations are outputs of
complex models with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs
and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL
models that are considered accounting judgements
and estimates include:

° The Group's internal credit grading model,
which assigns probabilities of default to the
individual grades;

° The Group's criteria for assessing if there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
so allowances for financial assets should be
measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the
qualitative assessment;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

114

(Continued)

)

Impairment allowances on loan
receivables (Continued)

The segmentation of financial assets based
on risk characteristics of the customers and
by product types when their ECL is assessed
on a collective basis,

Development of ECL models, including the
various formulas and the choice of inputs
over determination of the period over which
the entity is exposed to credit risk based on
the behavioural life of the credit exposures,
loss given default and collateral recovery of
the credit exposures;

Determination of associations between
macroeconomic scenarios and, economic
inputs, and the effect on probabilities of
default, exposures at default and losses given
default; and

Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios and their probability weightings,
to derive the economic inputs into the ECL
models.

It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review
its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of loan
receivables is HK$73,095,000 (net of allowances
for doubtful debts of HK$8,525,000) (2020:
HK$44,033,000) (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of HK$13,790,000).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(i)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and
credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
In addition, the Group uses provision matrix to
calculate ECL for the trade receivables which are
individually insignificant. The provision matrix is
based on the Group'’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that
is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group's trade receivables are disclosed in note
A2(b)(ii).

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$1,403,000 (net of allowances
for doubtful debts of HK$1,299,000) (2020:
HK$4,733,000) (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of HK$1,284,000).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

116

(Continued)
(iii) Estimated impairment of property, plant

and equipment and investment property
Property, plant and equipment and investment
property are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has
to exercise judgment and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash
flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-
use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or the
growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, and investment
property are HK$13,419,000 and HK$20,000,000
(2020: HK$8,208,000 and HK$838,000) respectively,
after taking into account the impairment losses of
HKS$nil and HK$nil (2020: HK$924,000 and HK$nil)
in respect of property, plant and equipment, and
investment property that have been recognised
respectively. Details of the impairment of property,
plant and equipment, and investment property are
disclosed in notes 15 and 16 respectively.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(iv) Estimated useful lives and estimated

(v)

residual values of property, plant and
equipment and investment property

In determining the estimated useful lives and
estimated residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment and investment property,
the Group has to consider various factors, such as
technical or commercial obsolescence arising from
changes or improvements in production, or from
a change in the market demand for the product or
service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar
limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the
useful life of the asset is based on the experience
of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. Additional depreciation is made if the
estimated useful lives and/or the residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment and
investment property are different from the previous
estimation. Useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period based
on changes in circumstances.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash
generating unit calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of
goodwill is approximately HK$135,071,000 (2020:
Nil) as detailed in note 17. No impairment loss
was recognised during the year ended 31 March
2021 and no provision for impairment losses was
recognised as at 31 March 2021.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(BE-T——

iﬂﬂ—ﬁiif)

4. EXRETTHERAMAE &)

(b) A FERERZZERR (&)

(iv)

V)

M- BERRBERRED
Rt A EAF R
FEREE

BEWE BMELERBIEE
WEREB MR AERFHR
MERSREER  AEEAZ
BEZHRE - fImEEENE
BRBERTIZHEREER
HOERKRBELFREM
PR T B A O A T Sl R B N
BE - BEBEHMAE A
KRB BEHERRE R
EREEMZ B R ERIEE
BRI o EFHEE R AL A
B AEERBELREERU
REmBELEE - WYE W
FERh&EREEYMEEB NG
AR ERERR S RRBREE
BT R E R - BIE R RSN
e - JERAFHERREE
RIS MRIRIGERECRE

A BRI E
EERERTRER - HBAF
EocmEBZRSELEMZ
EREE ERXAEEFEM
AR eEEEMEHMEL
MARRERERASBENR
T GHFERRE - WEK
ARBESREENEHE - B
AREELEBERRERE - N
E-—F=ZA=+—8 " W
HVAEFEE BEZEREE
#9 /135,071,000 7t (ZF =
TE ) - NEBEE_T_—F
“A=tT—HIFE  BERE
RBEBEBRIR T _—F=
A=1+—8 #SEERBER
1B -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(%ZE T

5.

118

—F=A=t+—HILFE)

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines (products and services). In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s executive directors (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following six reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

(i)

(i

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

OEM Business: manufacturing and sales of OEM garment
products;

Retail Business: retailing and wholesaling of garment
products under the Group's own brand and high-end
fashion brand;

Money Lending: provision of loan services to generate
interest income,

Wholesaling Business: wholesaling of seafood for year
2020;

Financial Quotient and Investment Education Business:
provision of financial quotient and investment education
courses; and

Property Investment Business: investing properties in
Asia Pacific region to generate rental income and to gain
from the appreciation in the properties values in the long
term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(@) Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
executive directors monitor the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following basis:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments or which otherwise impairments losses of loan
receivables arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments.

Segment results represents pre-tax profit/loss incurred
from each segment without allocation of other
income, other net gains and losses, certain corporate
administrative expenses, share of profit/loss of associate,
certain impairment and central finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
of the Group for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Segments assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of investments
in financial assets and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include provisions, lease liabilities and trade
and other payables attributable to the activities of the
individual segments and borrowings managed directly by
the segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit/(loss), the Group’s executive directors are
provided with segment information concerning revenue,
interest income and expenses from cash balances
and borrowings managed directly by the segments,
depreciation and amortisation, impairment losses, and
additions to non-current segment assets (other than
financial instruments and deferred tax assets) used by
the segments in their operations.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5.
(@) Segment results (continued)

120

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition, as well as
information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s executive directors for the
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020 is set out below:

D EPERE (1)

(a)

FEEE ()

BE_ZT_—FR-_F_FTF=A
=+ HIEFE - RKEEREREE
DHEP & KR RAEIRD B &
EOMRRANMAANKENTES

REBHEAKETZ

HgAR

Year ended 31 March 2021
pzcE

OEM Retail
Business Business
B
REEK EERZE HE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Thn Thn TR

Money
Lending

Reportable segment revenue: TERAMUE:
Disaggregated by fiming of evenue FEMaREAR
reCogtion
Pointn time NE-REE 1383
Revenue from ofher sources AR =
Revene from extermal customers REfdEPHIR 1B,832
Reportable segment profit T2RADER 820
Share of profts less losses of associates A aRFELATES
Other incomeote /) ERIA (1)
Other net gans (rof2 §) ERREE (1)
Corporate administraive expenses PHIIAR
Centrel finance costs RARBTAA
Reversalfor expected creditlosses ElEEEELE

Consolidated profi before axaton FERRAER

Assets i
Reportable segment assets (ncludng —— F2HAPEE (R
inerest in associate) BENTIE) } 3 119,084
Goodiwl &
Financial assetsat farvalue through —— ATE A ESH
profitorloss tHER
Unallocated head offce and corporate.— FARBBROLEE
a5sels
Consolidated total assets GREEGE

L & A International Holdings Limited
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Wholesaling

Z-§ZR=t-RLER

Financial
Quotient and
[nvestment
Education
Business
HERRE
YE%E
HKS'000
Thn

Business
EES

HKS'000
TR

68,110

68,110

51,742

55,550

o a2 BRI

Property

[nvestment
Business Total

NERE
L3 a3t
HKS$'000 HKS'000
Thn Thn

92,342
4126

96,468

55,532

5011
40
150

(19,246)

(1,008)

5,265

46,210

15,584 192,404

135,011
1,594

2,109

383178



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(EﬂzK T —F=A=+— Eljtif)

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. 2H®E #)
(@) Segment results (continued) (@) DEBESE (&2)

Liabilties
Reportable segment liablties

Promissory note payables

Other payable for acquistion of a subsiciary

Unallocated head offce and corporate iabilties  AAEEBRAZARE

Consolidated tofal fabilties

Other segment information

Additions to non-current Segment assets dur

e year
Unallocated

Depreciation for the year
Unallocated

Interest income from bank dgposits
Ungllocated

Finance cost
Ungllocated

Depositand otfer receivables wrtten off
Ungllocated

Reversalfor expected credit losses

Trade receivables writen off

Iventory written off

Loss on writen offof property, plant and
equipment

Recovery of oan receivables writen off

(Gain on disposal of property, plent end equity  HEDE - BERREZ NS

Writen back long outstanding trade and oth
nayables

Share of profts less osses of associates

Recovery of trade and other receivable

Year ended 31 March 2021
BE-Z--F=f=f-ALEE
Financial
Quotient and
Investment Property
OEM Retail Money Wholesaling Education Investment

Busmess Buisiness Lending Business Business Business
HERRE

SE2 i Hazs HERE 3

HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

7 Tin T 7 T

&

1280866 58 ! 11,290
S

[ e e

FARkEE

AfAgEA
g EMFENRENNAR

RERABRIATNE
AE

EHEERID
HHEARNA
i

%{iﬁﬁg% ERREL

WEE e

o HERSRERERRED
Ffi3E
AR LTEE
UAI@“@”%&EW‘%@

REEBEE AR l 121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(EﬁzE T—F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(@) Segment results (continued)

OEM
Business

HKS000

T

Reportable segment revenue; EEELED S
Disaggregated by timing of evenue REINERENE

Retall
BUsingss

5. oEHE &)
() DEPHELE (&
Year ended 31 Mad 2000

Money  Wholesaling
Lending Busingss

HE

HKS 000
THL

Financil
Quotient and
nvestment
Education

A%
HKS 000
T

Property
Investment
Business

HKS 000
AL

recogniton

Paint n time 0w 7650 - B9 3 - 71622

Revenue from other sources - - 269 - - - 2619
Revenue from external customers 0w 7650 2619 B9 3 - W
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 172 131 862 (1.874) 627 - 316
Share of profits ess osses of associates 119
Otfer income (e /) 2
Other netlosses oe ) (7630
Corporate adminisiraive expenses (1196)
Centralfinance costs il
Provision for expected credit [osses (4330
Consolicated oss before taketon FekREE 2.4
Assets
Reportable segment assets (ncluing

Interest i associate) 9501 940 10 1166 120 82 80843
Equity instrument &t fair valle trough

Other comprehensive income -
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 780
Unallocated head office and corporate

2SS 83
Consolicate ol asses heREER 85%

L & A International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS ERAR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. oIEHE &)
(a) Segment results (continued) (a) “‘B%ﬁ (#)

Fanci
Quotient and
Investment Property

OEM Rl Money  Wholesalng Edicaon ~ Investment
Busiess Busiess Lending Busiess Busiess Busiess

Liabilties .
Reportable segment lbilfes 451 173 1032 7690 8278 - 25
Unlocated head office and corporate. %3 El
libilties 70
Consolidated total lbilties ki)
Other segment information RfgpdEn
Addiions tonon-current segmentassels  ERFESERDADEE
uring the year 5 - % 757 7 84 9528
Unallocated R B
9,163
Depreciaton for the year EhiE 19 - I [ 106 8 1210
Unalocated FAR %
1306
Interest income from bank deposits R L - - - . - _ _
Unalocated AR !
1
Finance cost R 1 - m I 19 - 808
Unalocated il i
89
Deposit and other recelvables writen off - 4 REHEMEER - - - (3001 - - (3001
Unalocated AR )
(3025
Modifcaton loss Lpon extension ofloan - e RN ETBTER
fooghatle - - (1443 - - - {1443
Loan receivables writen of HENES - - 849 - - - (269
Provision for expected credit osses - - (033 - - - (£330
(Gain on disposal of suosideries 3 1% - - - - (1
Trade receivatles writen of - {30 - (%30 - - (230
Inventory witen off - (%) - - - - 8%)
Loss on written of of property, plant and
equioment - - - () - - (%)
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment ‘ - - - o) - - o)
Share of profits ess sses of associates - - - - 119 - 119
Interestnassociate - - - - 18,59 - 1659
Impairment o trace receivables - - - (1,280 - - (1,280
There are no inter-segment revenue for the years ended REBEE_ZE-_—FR-_T_FF=H

31 March 2021 and 2020. =t+—HIEFEIES IRk E




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(ESZE T—F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. DEHE &)
(b) Revenue from major products and (b) REFEEMREREBEHKE
services
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from THRHFIIREEFEERRRBOHARE
its major products and services: B Wzm oA

2020

— = — FEEF

—=—=

HK$'000
TR

Garment products AREEE M 47,891
Seafood picgieed
Interest income from loan receivables — FEUREZRFI| B U A

Tuition fee from financial quotient and R E 87 RIEEH A RIZH

investment education courses 28
(c) Geographical information (c) EEFR

The following is an analysis of geographical location of AT RO EEREINBEF Z K
(i) the Group's revenue from external customers and (ii) RNVREE 2% - BEREHE - &
the Group's property, plant and equipment, investment Y% HERS BERRBEA
property, rental deposits, goodwill and interests in AIERMHIBA B DT - KPHIENR
associates. The geographical location of customers BENERREHERBIEMIT 2
is based on the location at which the services were BhoWE  BELRRE REMER
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical HEReHWHIBMEERMZERE
location of property, plant and equipment, investment EZ%W&E c BAEEMmE - JIiRHE
property and rental deposits is based on the physical DLz EEETE ?ﬁﬁ’%ﬁ%@
location of the asset under consideration. In the case ng MmE - JIRZEENRIE

of goodwill, it is based on the location of the operation HhE, o

to which they are allocated. In the case of interests
in associates, it is the location of operations of such
associate.

(i) Revenue from external customers i) REIBEEzWKE
2021 2020

— — — T —
—EB-—F =T

HK$°000 HK$'000
FH THR

Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB (KERTEH) 96,468

USA ESE
PRC H
Europe oM

L & A International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

SEGMENT REPORTING (continuead) 5. o%®/E &)
(c) Geographical information (continued) (c) HEEH (&)
(ii) Non-current assets (i) FERBEE

2021
—E_—4F

HK$°000
TR

Hong Kong (place of domicile) EHE (BEFTEHD) 168,570
Japan A7 =

168,570

(d) FEEEEFZEH
B BB R B 10% A 2 &
PlgzsanT

(d) Information about major customers
Revenue from customers contributing 10% or more of
the Group’s revenue are as follows:

OEM Business [RER M RGE T
— Customer A —ZPA 40,241
Wholesaling Business BB
— Customer B —X%FB 7,995
REVENUE 6. Wz
The principal activities of the Group are disclosed in note 5. IREEE E E RS RIS o

SEEBRIZRERA ]
2021 5§




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS R R AL

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(%:t —F=A=+— ElJtiF )
6. REVENUE (continued) 6. Wz (&)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (@) W=D
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers EXTEERIRBEEINEFLELH
by major products or service lines is as follows: WA T

2020

— =% —=F
—=—=

HK$'000
T

Revenue from contracts with e BB HEERE155
customers within the scope of HEMEFLA LW
HKFRS 15:

Manufacturing and sales of OEM Bl N IHE RERERE
garment products PR 2= i 23,832

Retailing and wholesaling of REBBEE SR SRR
garment products under the mEREERTE
Group's own brand and high-end &Iy
fashion brand

Wholesaling of seafood G E

Provision of financial quotient and R RIEEHRE RE

investment education courses

Revenue from other sources: R A E AR Yk
Interest income from loan ERERZ
receivables MEMA
Note: Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers et - RIS TEREE R E TS E 58
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic B A HUE D FMT 5 EE o

markets is disclosed in note 5.

L & A International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

6. REVENUE (continued) 6. W= (&)
(b) The following table shows the amounts of revenue (b) TERARARBEHIFAAWAR
recognised in the current reporting period that were W AR HARER 2 WA £ 58 -

(c)

(d)

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included in RSP ASLBEY
contract liabilities at the beginning of EREZUA -
the reporting period:

Provision of financial quotient and REMEREEHERE

investment education courses (Ht5t28)

(note 28) 135
Revenue expected to be recognised in (c) FAHEMRERRENES
the future arising from contracts with BERFEEFITVEN EI’JLBU\
customers in existence at the reporting
date
All sales contracts with customers within the scope BB EWE LR E 155 0 E AR
of HKFRS 15 are for periods of one year or less. As BEPHEAN ZHRE A —F I
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price T o BN E A B 7% R & 4E Rl 51555
allocated to these contracts for the remaining unsatisfied FIAEET - BLBR T RBITZBAEEM
performance obligations is not disclosed. PREZFENZ X HERART AR

5% o
For the year ended 31 March 2021, total amount (d) #z—2-——4=A=+—AL%F
of interest income on financial assets measured at B RBERATENSREERNR
amortised cost, including bank interest income (note 7), WA (BIERTHEMA) (M5
was HK$4,128,000 (2020: HK$2,620,000). 7) B41280008 T (ZE Z T F

2,620,000 7T) °




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS R R AL

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(ESZE T—F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HflA

2020

—F — =
— ==

HK$'000

TAET

Interest income on financial assets BB EK AT E 2

measured at amortised cost SREENSWA
- bank interest income — HRITF B A
Government subsidy BT 8D
Management fee income from related party 3k 5 @875 89218 BUA
Sundry income FEIAUA
* Government subsidy have been received from Employee * EaEES) BT 2R B ZFED
Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund to support the BEBUTHE  ZHMEEIRHEERE
eligible employers for paying wages of employees from June FTHEZZZBFRNAZ T AREXNE
to November 2020. Employers are required to undertake and B & o EFEEREWRINHBEFK
warrant that they will not implement redundancies during the TEERHEE  WHEMBLAMANE
subsidy period and spend all the wage subsidies on paying NEI#H® RZTZ—F=A=1+—
wages to their employees. As at 31 March 2021, there are no A REMIERER 2 GESHAE
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to this subsidy. %o

L & A International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER NET GAINS/(LOSSES)

Loss on written off of property, plant and
equipment (note 15)

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Gain on disposal of investment property

Impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment (note 15)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
(note 39)

Written back long outstanding trade and
other payables

(Loss)/gain from changes in fair value
of financial assets mandatorily
measured at FVPL
— Held for trading

Loss on disposal of financial assets
at FVPL

Recovery of loan receivable written off in
previous year

Recovery of trade and other receivable
written off in previous year

Inventory written-off (note 22)

Trade receivables written off

Impairment loss of trade receivables

Deposit and other receivables written off

Modification loss upon extension of loan
receivable

Net exchange gains

Loan receivables written off

(Eﬂzz‘é

e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
—F=A=+— Eiif)

8. Hftulz ~(&18) B

MY - BB RREZEE (B

i#15)
HEME - BB MR

HEREMEZ WS

M - E KRR EEE
(K1z£15)

HEHBRRWE (A1:#39)

MERAREER S REM
JE& 5RO
SRR A ER ABEAEN

Bz W

CREENAFEEBELZ

(&18), Wz

— FHEER
HEZAFEFABENSR

BEER
H&EW@{IE?W%Z?H&Z

umwuﬁrmﬁzm%&
HL A & YK
WHFE ( ﬂ/ﬁf‘zz)
WIHE 5 YRR
B 5 MR RER 18
R N B At PR YR IA M 3
PRI HE R ESIE IE
&R
VEE 5 W ek AR
s e W B R

REEBEE AR ”29



n
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS R R AL

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(Eizz‘é —F=ZA=+—HILFE)

9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 9. BBALER (E5E)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRIALETR(E18) Tk GTA) T3
(crediting) the following: HERBER :
(@) Finance costs (@) BB

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000

FTERT

Interest on loans from a shareholder TE—ZBREER T B

(note 26(b)) (Ktzt26(b)

Interest on other borrowings HifEEFE (Mat26(b)
(note 26(b))

Interest on promissory notes EHEERN B

Interest on lease liabilities (note 26(b)) HEBERE (FiF26(0))

Total interest expense on financial RIZATFEFABRE SR
liabilities not at fair value through BEN S M B
profit or loss

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EIRAE (BRERESHMH)
emoluments)

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMEFR 5,235
Equity-settled share option expense LAHﬂ&i“”E’Jﬁ%Hﬂ&ﬁﬂi 5,437
Contributions to defined contribution TE R RUR ARG IR

retirement plans 204

10,876
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(E!zz T —F=A=+— Eiif)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 9. BBIEEF (&E) &)
(c) Other items (c) EHbEE

Auditor’'s remuneration 2% B B

— audit service — EER

— other service - gmw
Cost of inventories (note 22) BFERA (K1:#22)
Depreciation of investment WEWMEITE (Kit16)

property (note 16) e .
Written back on disposal of investment ~ Hi & REWEME (AiE16)
property (note 16)

Depreciation charge (note 15) FERX (Mat15)
— owned property, plant and equipment  — BRI B Kk
— right-of-use assets —(EAEEE
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss SN (Jﬂlﬁ){ BRI
(Reversal)/provision for expected credit BHEEEIE () /B
losses

RERBEEERAT l 131



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(%ZE T

10.

132

—F=

A=+—HILFE)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES
Income tax recognised in the consolidated statement of

@)

profit

Hong

or loss represents:

Kong Profits Tax BEAFEH
— Current year — BRIFE

Deferred tax-origination and reversal
of temporary differences (note 32(a))

10.

BB
RiFABRRNERZFAEHE

@

BIERIR — EA R EER
Z8 (/532())

Income tax expenses

PSR

Notes:

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for 2021 is
calculated at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary
of the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the
two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime.

For this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million of the assessable
profits are taxed at 8.25% and the assessable profits
above HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated
at the same basis in 2020. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime are
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

L & A International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

2020

HK$'000
THR

AEBERRBERAERANEEKER
R B K 2 E T RO BLA M [
EAREUS RN BRAEHR -

R FEENEHRIREFEAMG
FTERBABZI65% (ZE-F
F 1 165%) 2 HEFHREE - A%
BB AR (RMAFISHE

EHETH—HAEREE) B -

ZHIBRRZ E2E BB ERE
S K| $228.25% 2 i R 4NFH - 0 B B2
BEEILZ ERFEFIE16.5%2
TEME - ZHMBRRINEBFG
BN =T — FE AR A%
B TREMBAEHBEEHEE
12 EEE 2 % FR16.5% 2

— KA -
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n [
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(E!z —F=A=+—HILFE )
INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 10. FBBiREX (&)
(@  (Continued) @ (&)

Notes: (Continued) Bt - (48)

(iiiy  Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman (i) BERASHSIEBRLAS ([&
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is BRAHS]) 2REIRRM - K&
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and BE&EESRNHASHES R EBEX
the BVI respectively. BHEBNEMFTEE

(b)  Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting () WERAXERBERAREFENST SR
profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates: I (E518) MHEER

2021
—E_—F E_BF

HK$°000 HK$'000
Fi# FHT

Profit/(l0ss) before taxation BRATEF, (E51E) 46,210

Notional tax calculated at Hong Kong 1£16.5% 2 BAFISHR R

Profits tax rate of 16.5% FFEBEPIE
Tax effect of: LATXIEZM%E“
Share of profits less losses of associate 5 i FIFE: & A B &5 18
Income not subject to tax BERPIUA
Expenses not deductible for tax LIk b
Temporary differences not AIERE R 58
recognised
Utilisation of tax loss BB ABIEEE
Tax losses not recognised RERIHIAEREE
Statutory tax concession ETERIAESE
Under-provision in prior years WTFERETZ
Income tax expenses FriS ik

%ﬁﬂ%§%§§§§|133



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS R R AL

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(%:t;zé —F=A=+— EIJJ:EF)

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383
(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2021

Fee

HK$'000
TAR

Executive directors HTES
Mr. Lau Chun Kavan il )
Mr. Yuen Yu Sum RREE (i)
Mr. Chan Lap Jin Kevin BERE (ii)
Ms. Wang Tsz Yue R (v)
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Law Wing Chung Bidars (i)
Independent non-executive By EHTES
directors
Mr. Chan Kim Fai Eddie PRI v)
Mr. Ng Chi Ho, Dennis REFRE v)
Mr. Chung Chin Kwan ERME (v)
Mr. Chan Pak Qiu BRI LE (vi
Mr. Chung Kwok Pan EERELE (xii)

1 34 L & A International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

1. EEME
RIEES D AEDIF3BNER AR (KB
ERARER) AOEHEBEZESHE
T

BE-ZE--S=ZA=1+—-BHLFE

Retirement

Salaries Equity-settled benefit
and other share option scheme Total
allowances expense contributions emoluments

FER UREEE RAIER
Hir2R MERERX HE 8 ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TER THT TER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS ERAR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE=T=—F=A=+— Eiif)

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 11. §$@H% (&)
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-_Z_ZEF=A=1+—HLFE
R EE
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fee allowances contributions emoluments
e ) IRIRER
e TR
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
AL TEL THEL
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Lau Chun Kavan i (i 240 - 12 252
Ms. Wang Tsz Yue TERLL (iv) 360 - - 360
Mr. Yuen Yu Sum RWARKE (i) 158 - - 158
Mr. Ng Ka Ho REFTHE
(former chief executive) (FIEEHTE) (Vi) 50 - 2 52
Independent non-executive B kHTES
directors
Mr. Chan Kim Fai Eddie BRI E (V) 201 - - 201
Mr. Ng Chi Ho, Dennis RERTHE ) 98 - - 98
Mr. Chan Pak Qiu et gt (vii) 28 - - 28
Mr. Li Kin Ping TREY%E 09 185 - - 185
Ms. Guo Yan Xia PEELL ) 11 - - 11
Mr. Ma Chi Ming EEmks (x) 24 - - 24

1,355 - 14 1,369




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(%ZE T

—F=A=t+—HILFE)

11. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

136

Notes:

0]

(xi)

(ii)

(xiii)

Appointed as an executive director on 16 May 2018

Appointed as an executive director on 24 October 2019

Appointed as an executive director on 3 August 2020
Resigned as an executive director on 30 November 2020

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on 6 June
2019

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on 30
October 2020

Resigned as an independent non-executive director on 30
October 2020

Resigned as an executive director on 7 May 2019

Resigned as an independent non-executive director on 8 January
2020

Removed as an independent non-executive director on 6 June
2019

Resigned as an independent non-executive director on 7 May
2019

Appointed as non-executive director on 2 June 2021

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on 2 June
2021

L & A International Holdings Limited
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1. EEME &)

ez

(0]

(i)

(vii)

(xii)

(xiii)

—NEFERATRNEREZEERNTE

E-NF+ATHRERERNT

TECTE)\AZBEZEARNTES
MN_ZE-ZFE+—A=+HEINTES
Z-NFARNANAERERBIIFH
R-E_TFE+A=+RHEZERBELIHE
WiTE=S

R-ZF_ZTF+ A=+ HEHEEIFT
EF

T NFRALRBHERTES

RZZB-ZTF—A)\BEHEBIIERTE

T FRAZREZERENTE

—FRAZBEZERBIIEY



12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(E#= —F=A=+— Eiif)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 12. BEFHFMAL
The five highest paid employees during the year included one
directors (2020: one director), details of whose emoluments
are set out in note 11 above. Details of the emoluments of the
remaining four (2020: four) individuals are as follows:

RERN AERaRTMATERE—2EE
—E-TE . —REF) ﬁM%Fﬁ
R EXEET « EfppaE (ZF2FF : Iy
) AT Z2HBEFIBOT

2021 2020

—EB-—F ZETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHETT

Salaries and other allowances Fhe M EAERL 3,580
Equity-settled share option expense AR 45 B M B AR 2 -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions — EHREHIEH 2t 2% 67
3,647

The emoluments of the four (2020: four) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

ME(ZE-ZF: %) KafMAL
HENSBENT -

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-FF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
N AEK
HKS$nil to HK$1,000,000 T 751,000,000/ 7T 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 1

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no
emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or any of
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors or any of the five highest paid individuals
has waived or agreed to waive any emolument for the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

BE T —FR_ZF-EF=A=1+—H
LHFE AEBRYTEXNFMTESRE
MARREHMATERINARE B
AR R - SERBERERE - RBE-T

T FRCRCEF AT HUEFE
WEEEREMARRSHHMALHRENF
BEEAH o
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(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(ESZE T
13.

14.

138

—F=A=t+—HILFE)

DIVIDEND

The Board of directors declared an interim dividend of
HK$0.0066 per share for 1,535,984,000 issued shares of the
Company of approximately HK$10,137,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

The Board of directors recommend a final dividend of
HK$0.0072 per share for 1,535,984,000 issued shares of the
Company of approximately HK$11,059,000 for the year ended
31 March 2021 (2020: Nil). The proposed final dividend is
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on the profit attributable to the owners of the Company
of HK$40,566,000 (2020: loss attributable to the owners
of the Company of HK$31,600,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,350,132,603 (2020: 1,280,000,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.
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13.

14.

BRE
EEERBE_T-_—F=A=1+—ALF
JE AR a)1,535,984,0000% 2 2170 (BRI
% 150.00667%8 7T) = ik 4910,137,000/%5 7T 2
FHIRE (ZE_ZTF &) -

EEeRAMARREESZ—F=
B=+— A% & 2155359840008 C 2
17 1% 9 R 1+ R B i B & AR0.00727%8 7T - 4
11,059,000 7 (ZE=FF : T) - E&
HARR BB IR A B AR R B G K gt E -

BRERN (FHE)

(@) BRELRER (FE)
GIREART /(F1B) ZetE=E
EAZIS“ﬂ%*ﬁ/\JE 157 #1)40,566,000
BL(ZEZTF : ARFHBARE
17 /5 #831,600,000/8 7T) R F A E B
17 B AR hn e 5 0/51,350,132,603
(ZZ=Z4 :1,280,000,000) °
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(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(E!zz T —F=A=+— Eiif)

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 14. BRER (&H#E) ©)
(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (b) SREHRR (FE)
For the year ended 31 March 2021, diluted earnings per HE T - —F=A=+—HI#F
share is based on the profit attributable to the owners of B EERANDREEE-S - —F
the Company of HK$40,566,000 and the weight average ZA=ZT—HRIEFEEARRREEAA
number of ordinary shares of 1,359,387,266 in issue FE A& & 740,566,000/ 7T R B 817 2
during the year ended 31 March 2021. For the year ﬂD*é?i’ﬂ%m 359,387,266 5T & -
ended 31 March 2020, diluted loss per share is the same E-ETF=A=+—HIEFE"
as the basic loss per share as there were no potential HREBE-ZT-TF=A=+—H1t
ordinary shares outstanding during the year ended 31 FEVESMABITEINNELLE
March 2020. i - R EEBEGRERER
LEIEI

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per SREARESREN (B18) 258
share are based on: SETHER

Earnings &F|
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary §+§gﬂxﬁ$l—?ﬁ FETAZ

equity holders of the parent, used NEEERERFEEA

in the basic earnings per share FE(EER] ()

calculation 40,566
Shares Bﬁ’ﬁ
Weighted average of number of AEEREREFMAZ

ordinary shares in issue during the FAB BT EBARINE

year used in the basic earnings per gk

share calculation 1,350,132,603 1,280,000,000
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEERUE — B

number of ordinary shares g

Share options RBHE 9,254,663

1,359,387,266 1,280,000,000

RERBEEERAT ”39
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(ESZE T —F=HA=+— EIJtEF)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% - BERRE

Furniture and Office Leasehold Right-of-use
equipment equipment  improvements  Motor vehicles assets

BB HOSE  ERNESE iR hAREE

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

TEL

TEL TEL

Cost

A1 April 2019

Additions

Written-off

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 39)

A
R-Z-NEmA-R
HE

i

hE-FHELA (1)

{31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 WZECEEZA=T-A

SRR JRCEERAE

Additions AE

Disposal e

Writien-off i

Acouistion of subsidiaries (note 40) WEMBLE (i)

{31 March 2021 NEZ-EZA=1-H

Accumulated depreciation and ZHITERNE

impairment

A1 Aprl 2019 R-F-nEmA-H

Charge for the year ERfiR

Impairment loss recognised in profit orloss R ERMET AR

Writen-off it

Eiminatec! on disposal of a subsiary E-FEMBARRS

(note 39) (%)

{31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 \:;:'ﬁ A=+-A
R-Z-ZEMA-A

Charge for the year EfFR

Written back on disposal HEHD

Written-off i

{31 March 2021 WZE--£=f=1-A

Carrying amounts Rk

t 31 March 2021 WZFZ-F=A=1-f

t 31 March 2020 ey o s

1230 1609 168
- 53 265
- - (169
- (199 -

(1,230)
204

3,630

108 1,582 66
1% 3 163
L - -
- - (130
- (184) -

- 580 2553

630 %7 394
828 4,866 8919
- - (169

- - (199

12,524

8,560

(855)

- (1523)
i 663

12,066 19,369

650 - 2406
3 853 1300
- - L
- - (130
- - (184)

715 4300 8208
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(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(BE_Z-_—F=A=1+—HBILFE )
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. M%¥ - BERRE ®)
Right-of-use assets FEREEE
The analysis of the carrying amount of right-of-use assets by FRAEEENREES T GREEEEER
class of underlying asset is as follows: glo) -
31 March 1 April
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
=A=+-H mA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FAT
Properties leased for own use, TEEANEEDE -
carried at depreciated cost RITERARARR 0] 4,300
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised B AERNEEEENELIEE ST
in profit or loss is as follows: T

2020
—E-EE

— ==

(Note)

(Wi32)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH FBT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets  {FAEEEMTEL Y

by class of underlying asset: (IZEEEEERNES)

Properties leased for own use fEE A EDE 853
Interest on lease liabilities (note 9(a)) HEEENE (HiT9%a) 300
Expense relating to short-term leases and g FHEIR —T T4 = A

other leases with remaining lease term =+ —HBZ B RAE E

ending on or before 31 March 2020 HEREMHEERBNRAS 114
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(ESZE T—F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) ~ 15. 1% » BERRE (4)

142

Right-of-use assets (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, additions to right-of-use
assets were HK$7,351,000 (2020: HK$4,866,000). This amount
related to the capitalised lease payments payable under new
tenancy agreements.

The cash outflow for leases in the year ended 31 March 2021
was disclosed in note 26(c).

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is set out in note 31.

(i) Properties leased for own use
The Group has obtained the right to use certain
properties as its offices through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 5 years.
The leases do not include option to renew the leases
after the end of the contract term and variable lease
payments.

Impairment assessment

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the directors of the
Company conducted a review of the Group's property, plant
and equipment and determined that certain of the Group's
furniture and equipment are specially identified to be impaired
because the segments for which these assets are used, mainly
the wholesaling business, sustained continuing loss and in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, these items of
furniture and equipment have no or little commercial value.
Accordingly, an impairment loss of HK$924,000 in respect of
these furniture and equipment have been recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2020.
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EREEE (&)
HE-_ZTZ—F=-A=+—BLFE &
FAHEB B IN7,351,000/8 T (Z T -Z4F -
4,866,000/ 7T) - &AM AEREET
MEME A EAENRER -

BHE—_Z-—F=A=+—HULtFEZHE
ZIRE R TR EE R FE26(C)

HE & BOREIERD &SRS -

() FERANEEYWE
AEBECEEHEBERB THET
%%f’ﬁﬁ/ﬁﬂ#"ﬁ@)ﬂﬂ’]@éﬂ Gk
— R F RE2E5F - HETBER

BRHRERR 2 EHREERAE
HERK -

WAE L
HEZ-ZHE-A=+—HIEE &Q
RIEFHAEE 2 YE  BERZRBETT
=69 WEEAREEE THRMEZERFRIE
TERRE  REREAZEEENDE (£
EAMBER)) HRBEBE  MARXR]
EERR  ZERMERBEB WERES
NEEEEE Bl REBEEZT-TF=
A=+—BItFEREREEZSRMIE
R (E E518924,000/8 7T °
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(E!zz‘é —F=ZA=Z+—HBILFE )
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16. REWE
HK$'000
FAIT
Cost B
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—hFE™A—H -
Additions NE 844
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZZEZZTF=A=+—HRK
ZE_EEEH H 844
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39) WHEMT B A F (H17E39) 20,000
Disposal e (844)
Accumulated depreciation e
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—hFMNA—H -
Charge for the year FRRAS 6
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZE-EF=A=+—8BK
—ZE-ZFMYA—H 6
Charge for the year FRFY 13
Written back on disposal L EME (19)
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ—F=A=+—H
Carrying amounts BRTEIE
At 31 March 2021 R-ZE-_—F=A=1+—H 20,000
At 31 March 2020 RZZE-ZTF=A=+—H 838

The Group had no unprovided contractual obligations for future RZZZ—FR_ZZF_ZTF=A=+—H K%
repairs and maintenance as at 31 March 2021 and 2020. EImEE B s HERRERBCRBEESNR
ffo

RERBEEERAT “43
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16.

144

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

(a)

(b)

At 31 March 2021, the Group's investment property is
a leasehold residential property situated in Hong Kong
(2020: freehold residential property situated in Japan).

Fair value measurement of property

The following presents the fair value of the Group’s
investment property and information about the fair value
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

J Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs, i.e, observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

L & A International Holdings Limited
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16. BEYE (&)

(a)

(b)

RZTF-_—F=ZA=+—H  Fx&H
BRENMEEEMERUREE (ZF
ZRE  THEEXEWEMRAR) o

ME 2 N FEE
TX2IAEERBERRZIKED
ELRVEBRBREENNAFE
WREE B 1S R B 13/ AF
B EAMRENRFHERE D B=
EE#R - A HEFHEESEHERIN
FIEMNBABBNAERERER
MEIDRTREER  FHBEOT

e EB-RMAE:EERE AW
ABEZ (AIEFHERMERE
EXBEEEET S EREH
EHRE) fFENAFE

o FoAME:ERAF-RBA
BUERTEMAFE - AMEAT
NAEE-—RRENTERGA
giE BYEFERERNTAE
R AR - TR BEH AR
BATAREMSEENEA
28

o F-MMHE:EREAIAER
S BB ENQFE



n [
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of property

(Continued)

At 31 March 2021, the fair value of the Group’s
investment property was approximately HK$20,000,000
(2020: HK$849,000) based on the valuations performed
by Ravia Global Appraisals Advising Limited (2020:
CHFT Advisory and Appraisals Limited), independent
professionally qualified surveyors with recent experience
in the location and category of property being valued.
The fair value of investment property disclosed at the
end of the reporting period was categorised as level
2 fair value measurement which was determined by
the surveyor at the end of each reporting period using
market approach by reference to recent sales price
of comparable properties on a price per square meter
basis using market data which is publicly available. The
directors of the Company have discussion with the
surveyor on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim
and annual reporting date.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2020: nil). The Group's policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

16. REWE (&)
(b) MEZAFENE &)

RZE-Z—F=A=+—H ' ££H
& & W) 21 1B 49 420,000,0007 7T
(ZZT=ZF 1 849,000/87T) « HJvE
RS EY T KRR 2 A8
AR B EEA BRI EA
ERNFIABABRAR (22
TF - EHERTEAERAR) ATE
H1E - RBEARBEENIREYED
AFERFEAE L ATFEFE
HI B AZMNEREBRRZM S
% BERALARASTISEENE
FORER RBELEZ P LR Y 23T B
EEMET - NEFHRFERER
%Lﬁ%@ﬁ~$@ﬁ%$5ﬁﬂ
b ERR REEER

HE-Z-—F=RA=+—HItF
B B—RNE Kz B EEE
RE=RA|EASEL (ZT=F
Fm)  AEBMIBRABRATFE
BR s MEEEBHRERRER
B o
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(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(ESZE T—F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

17. GOODWILL

Cost: AR

17. B&

2020

—F —F
—= =

HK$°000
TAET

135,071

135,071

At beginning of the year NG
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39) W BERT I A 7
(K17%39)

At end of the year RER
Accumulated impairment losses: it RESE
At beginning of the year RREA)

At end of the year RER
Carrying amount at end of the year RERZBREE

135,071

Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the financial quotient and investment education business
cash-generating unit for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the financial quotient and
investment education business cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is ranged from 16%-17%.
The long-term growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
of the financial quotient and investment education business
beyond the five-year period is 2%. This growth rate is based
on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.
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EER AR
BBEHACESOEBARTHAREE
B LGRS E £ B ORERR -

MR RREHEFBREEEELN IO
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit is as follows:

Carrying amount of goodwill 2z REE
— financial quotient and investment

education business

— WA RREBEED

e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

17. B8 (%)

%—*@ﬂﬁ/ﬂ nit (%)
SETHREEEFENNBECEEELNT

2021 2020
—E_—4F —F—

— = —=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR

135,071

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
financial quotient and investment education business cash-
generating unit for 31 March 2021. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based its
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is based on the
past performance of cash-generating unit and management’s
expectations for the market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, management of the
Group determines that there is no impairment on the cash-
generating unit. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of the cash-generating unit
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit.

HENRREARE EHR T —F= A
S+—BrReELENNEREERA
TRE - TSR E AR TAEREN
3 TR SR R A e s
B

BHEENE -ErREENXEENEE
DERRSELEUNBERARERES
M ERATEL -

FIRE — FEAMITIRE BRI 2 8E
I S ek B AR R BE AL AR R B R LR o

REBE-F-_—F=-A=+—RHLFE K
SEEREHERELSMMERNE B
EERE  EMZERENEGIEREEEY
TeEYReELEUNREAEBLRS
EABEM AR OIREE o
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(ESZZE —F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 18. REFE N EIAVER

Cost of investment in associates i /NCIIEOE = D RN

(note (a), (b) and (c)) (M@ ~ ) &) 487,788
Share of post acquisition profits less l0sses (g & A FIUEE %

and other comprehensive income/ i MRS 1R N EAth

(expense) of associates 2EEA (%) (38,570)
Transfer to acquisition of subsidiaries EYZWENB AR (Hita@)

(note (a)) (21,667)

427,551

Less: accumulated impairment loss B - REDRERE (427,551)

Particulars of associates all of which are unlisted corporate i
entities whose quoted market price is not available, as at 31 =N
March 2021 and 2020 are as follows: EER) FBENT
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2020

— = — EE‘EE
=z

HK$'000
T

487,788

444,141
(427,551)

—FR-E-TF=-A=+—H"
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(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(E#= —F=A=+— Eiif)

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Name of
company

NCIEY

Prestige Concord
Limited (hote a)

Prestige Concord
Limited (#f#ta)

Red 5 Studios, Inc.
(note b)

Red 5 Studios, Inc.
(Hi7zb)

Quick Capital Limited
(note ¢)

Quick Capital Limited
(Hiatc)

Place of
Incorporation/

Registration and

operation
ML B
AR 1 B

BVI/Hong Kong

RBRUES

&5

United States

EqE

BVI

HERLES

Full paid-up share/
registered

capital and
number of shares
BERE EHER
RRGEHE

1,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

1,0008% &A% E &
1RTTH & A

65,567,709
Common stock
of US$0.01 each
and 10,180,553
Preferred Stock
(Series B)

of US$0.01 each

65567709H Hﬁ
EE0.015ETHE Bk
&10,180,5531&&
TEH0.013E LB R
B(BERFI)

150 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

15008 AR B
1ETTHE B

Percentage

of equity
interests and
voting power
attributable to
the Company
AATELBRER
REENBED

2021: Nil
(2020: 30%)

—E-—F |
(ZZE=FF : 30%)

2021: 47.63%
(2020: 47.63%)

TR 1 47.63%

(ZZ =T : 47.63%)

2021: 33.33%
(2020: Nil)

—EF——14 :33.33%
(ZZE=—ZTF + )

18. REENRIMER (&)

Principal
activities

EEEK

Investment
holding

B

Inactive

EESE S

Investment
holding

BEZER
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(Et
18.

150

—F=A=t+—HILFE)

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(@) Prestige Concord Limited

On 8 October 2019, the Group entered into sales and
purchase agreement ("Agreement”) with Mr. Yuen
Yu Sum, who was appointed by the Company as an
executive director on 24 October 2019, pursuant to which
the Group agreed to purchase 30% of equity interests
in Prestige Concord Limited (“Prestige Concord”), a
limited liability company incorporated in BVI, at the cash
consideration of HK$15,400,000.

Prestige Concord and its subsidiaries mainly generate
revenue through YH Group Limited (“YH"). YH is
principally engaged in provision of financial quotient
and investment experience-sharing seminars and
consultation services which mainly cover (i) property
investment; (i) securities investment; and (i) financial
quotient in Hong Kong. The acquisition was completed
on 8 October 2019.

As at 31 March 2020, Prestige Concord is held as to 70%
by Mr. Yuen Yu Sum, a director of the Company.

As the Group also commenced its business of provision
of financial quotient and investment education courses
during the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
acquired the interest in Prestige Concord in order to
invest resources to expand the share in the financial
quotient and investment education market and to
broaden its customer base as Prestige Concord and
its subsidiaries possess a large customer base and
an extensive network of experienced experts and
professionals in property and stock investment industry.
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18. REENRIRER (&)

(a)

Prestige Concord Limited

RZZT—hF+ANR  REEHRZR
WREEE (RZE—NE+A= 1K
BEARQRRZEANITES) 512
BEWRZ ((HBE) BUEAEER
Z DI 4 K {815,400,0007% 7T & A
Prestige Concord Limited (([Prestige

Concord]) * REBIE LA S LMk
STHERAE]) #I30%A%HE

Prestige Concord & EKiEB A AaE 2
W i@YH Group Limited ([YH]) ZE 4
Wk o YHEZE S RHVE RIRAL
B ZEERITBRYE - £Z81E0)
MEIRE  (DEHRE - k(BB
7o WEEER-_T—NF+ANR
FERK ©

R-ZZT-ZF=F=+—H " Prestige
Concorda AN A R ER IR R o £ 1
B70% °

AR AEETREBE S = A
=T—BIEFERREMAERMRE
RIEEHERBNER  WAEH
Ug 88 7APrestige Concordfy#Ez5 + BA
BABERANBRRV I RIEEHRE
MEHNEARERER LA
Prestige Concord®& EKiIE R RHAE
BANERLEEBEMBREZREST
EBEREZNEREENERAEE
ATLHEE -
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. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(@) Prestige Concord Limited (continued)

On 27 October 2020, the Group entered into sale and
purchase agreement with Mr. Yuen Yu Sum pursuant to
which the Group agreed to purchase the remaining 70%
equity interests in Prestige Concord at a consideration
of HK$80,000,000. The consideration will be satisfied (i)
as to HK$41,000,000 by issued of the Promissory Note
by the Group, (i) as to HK$29,000,000 by the assumption
of the liabilities from Mr. Yuen Yu Sum to the Group;
and (i) as to HK$10,000,000 by cash. The transaction
was completed on 31 March 2021 and Prestige Concord
became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group at the
same date.

A guarantee of audited profit with minimum amount of
HK$17,000,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021 has
been undertaken by Mr. Yuen Yu Sum to the Group for
the Group’s acquisition of Prestige Concord, or in case
there is a shortfall, a compensation would be provided
by Mr. Yuen Yu Sum to the Group as stipulated in the
Agreement. According to the audited results for the
year ended 31 March 2021, the profit has meet the
requirement and therefore there is no compensation
receivable by the Group.

e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(&= —F=A=+— Eiif)

18. REENRIMER (&)

(a)

Prestige Concord Limited
(ﬁg)

RZZBEZZEFTAZ++ER - FA&E
Eﬂza%auk§EéEaTSZE§E§t%aﬁ B
NEEE R E W EPrestige Concord
#: T 70%M% # - X (& /380,000,000
T REFBHONAERZETALER
41,000,000/ 7T ¢ (ii)3= #8 % %t A 1A AR
£ Bl & (£29,000,00078 7T ¢ K (i)
IR 410,000,000/ 7T 2 F R Z A o &2
SER-_ZE-—4F=A=+—H%EK
KPrestigeConcordi & B X B AL E
ZEEWBAT

R RS E B A S E U EEPrestige
Concordm AN & B {E A GE : RELE
TR —F=A=+—HILFENK
A7 F B R 7 A 1K & 8 /317,000,000
BIL - INBER - BIARBALER
B R AEBELHE - BE
KEZEE BE-_T-_—%=A
=+—HIEFE ZAHEEEINE
ko Bt WEREAARER L fHiE o
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(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(ESZE T—F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. REEE AT ER (&)
(b) Red 5 (b) Red 5

152

On 28 April 2016, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with independent third parties
pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed to
purchase 47.63% of equity interests in Red 5 Studios,
Inc. (“Red 5”), a limited liability company incorporated in
Delaware, the United States of America.

Red 5 and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in the
development of innovative entertainment software and
online games in the United States of America, Europe,
the PRC and Southeast Asia. The online game called
Firefall (“Firefall”) was the main product developed by
Red 5. The acquisition was completed on 20 June 2016.
226,022,723 shares of the Company were allotted and
issued to vendors in proportion to numbers of shares
sold by each of the vendors. Cost of investment in Red 5
and its subsidiaries was approximately HK$472,388,000,
which represented the fair value of the ordinary shares
of the Company issued, determined using the published
bid price available on 20 June 2016.

The investment in Red 5 was to provide an opportunity
for the Group to diversify its business into online game
business.
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RZE—R"FMNAZ+NR  A&E
BB F=HEIN BB M - BRI
S E B KR E 8 ARed 5 Studios,
Inc. ([Red 5]+ MEFIEE BB
FEMFMEZOBRAR) #947.63%
&R

Red SREAMBAREFENEFES
SR BUOM - B R R EAIR
IR R A AR I A A B o ARAR RIS
Firefall ([Firefall]) 7Red 5F % #)%
ZEm - WESBER_Z—RFRA
“+HFERK ° 226,022,723/ A~ A i%
DR E 7 P AR BN 1 B 35 Je B
ITFEET °Red SREKE QRN
& & X 7N 4 /3472,388,0007%5 7T+ AP
BE_ZT—XRFENAZTHEAMGEE
BAEEARREBITTAROAT
&

RRed 52 R ETRARERHEZ T
EEEB R R 8 -
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18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(c) Quick Capital Limited

On 9 February 2021, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party
pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed to
purchase 33.33% of equity interests in Quick Capital
Limited (“Quick Capital”), a limited liability company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands, at a consideration
of HK$390.

Quick Capital was principally engaged in investment
holding in Hong Kong. On 16 February 2021, Quick
Capital signed a sales and purchases agreement with an
independent third party to purchase a property located
in Hong Kong at a consideration of HK$18,000,000,
the transaction was completed before year ended 31
March 2021. The payment of the transaction is based on
proportion of shareholdings held by the Group and its
included in the amount due from an associate as at 31
March 2021.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

Summarised financial information of the material associate
at 31 March 2021, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

18. REENRIMER (&)

(c) Quick Capital Limited
RZTEZ—FZANA  AEEHE—
EBUE=FEIN—HEBERE &
I - NEEB A 4R E W EQuick
Capital Limited ([Quick Capital| » 7
EBERELZHSHEMRIZERAF)
33.33% %4 - B AR390E T ©

Quick Capital EZR B ERELE
BER-RZZE=-—F=-A+H
Quick Capitalfi—& ¥ 58 = H5R5]

—MmEEHE - LUZ (518,000,000
BTWE BN EEZME 7R
SR EE-"T-—F=A=+—H
IEFEZRITTRK - ZR ST TE
RASEMFAENRMLES - W E
EHRE_Z-_—F=A=T—HHE
Lk & A RIFRIBH ©

P LillB i R BT AR & B IS IR R A
HEAER

EREHBRERFELRR - LEESUE
i&%é’ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁkﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂéﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬂﬁé_
——F A=t BENUBEREREE
m




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(EﬁzE T—F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REIENRINES (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE-E-_—F=A=1+—HLEE
Quick Capital Limited Quick Capital Limited

At 31/3/202’]
HK$ (0/00)
THT
Gross amounts of the associate’s NS RS

Non-current assets FEREBEE 18,675
Current assets MENEE 1
Non-current liabilities EREEE -
Current liabilities mEAE (18,691)
Equity T (15)

From 9/2/2021
(date of acquisition)
to 31/3/2021

B —%
N

(g R Ra)

HK$ (000)
:F/FLE

Gross amounts of the associate’s Bt AR ERE
Revenue Hﬁz*

Loss and total comprehensive income EE RN EERE (16)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial & it B4 7 & fHEE E 8

information to the carrying amount of the ZERAVERE
interest in an associate recognised in these B RN N E 8
consolidated financial statements: R IREER LR -
Net assets of the associate e NFBESE -

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in AREE R N E B R LB
the associate -

Group's share of net assets of the associate REBS LSRR EEFE -
Goodwill s -
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the REBE RS AR 2 BREE

associate -

L & A International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

154



18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS ERAR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(&= —F=ZA=+— Etif)
INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REEE N TINER (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE-_ZE-_TF=-A=+—HLFE

Prestige Concord & E K& A 7

Prestige Concord and its subsidiaries

At 31/3/2020
HK$ 000
FA&T

Gross amounts of the associate’s BrE AR ER
Non-current assets ERBEE 16,351
Current assets MENEE 36,324
Non-current liabilities ERBBEGE -
Current liabilities BB E (42,988)
Equity 1S 9,687

From 8/10/2019
(date of acquisition)

t0 31/3/2020
—NE+ANE
(MZE% EI Hﬂ)
HK$ (0/00)
?/;F'ETE
Gross amounts of the associate’s Bt N A ERE
Revenue Wz 21,413
Profit and total comprehensive income wA R EE R A 3,966
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial B E R B L S S IRk
information to the carrying amount of the EERNEE A TNERNIREEN
interest in an associate recognised in these HER -
consolidated financial statements:
Net assets of the associate BE R EEFE 9,687
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ARE BB N BT R L
interest in the associate 30%
Group's share of net assets of the associate REEDEBE AR EEFE 2,906
Goodwill S 13,684

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in
the associate

ZIREE

16,590
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(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(ESZE T
18.

156

—F=A=t+—HILFE)

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Red 5

For Red 5, there is no management accounts available to the
Group since the business of Red 5 ceased in 2017 and hence
no financial information of Red 5 disclosed. In addition, the
directors of the Company consider there is no reversal of
impairment required for the year ended 31 March 2021 and
2020.

Impairment assessment

In the impairment assessment of the interest in associates,
goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment in associate is not separately recognised. It is
therefore not tested for impairment separately by applying
the requirements for impairment testing on goodwill. Instead,
the entire carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment as a single asset, by comparing its recoverable
amount, being the higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal, with its carrying amount.
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18.

REE N TRNER (8)

Red 5

BRed 5 E © B ZZF—+FRed SEBLIE
B AEELENESHNERER - FEit
I 4% 35 FERed 52%%%3%4 o AN - ARE]
EERAEHE-_T - FR-_T-TF=A
s Eliiﬂﬁ BEITRERE -

B R AL

FAIRNEEE R B s E T TRUE RS - BB
REERARNRENREE - FoNEE
I R - MBS EETRE
BBEEREMFFETRENR - Bk - &
BNEEREEFRE REEETRENR
A TERBERRE SRR (AMEREEN
RAFEREERAzBSE) REKEE
HEITHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Impairment assessment (Continued)

Red 5

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Firefall sever was
shut down in July 2017. Red 5 did not generate any income
subsequently and Red 5 faced serious financial difficulties and
management of Red 5 requested the Company for financial
support to fund the mobile version of Firefall.

The Board of the Company decided not to provide further
funding to Red 5 after deliberation consideration of the
followings:

()  The associate is only an investment in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group;

(i) There were no other probable and concrete business
plan in generation of income for Firefall; and

(i)~ For the best interest of the Company and its stakeholder,
allocation of resources should be focusing on principal
activities of the Group (i.e. OEM, retail and money lending
business).

The Board passed a resolution on 13 February 2018 concluded
that the Group would not provide further capital injection to
Red 5. As such, the Board decided to provide in full impairment
loss for the interest in Red 5.

Quick Capital Limited

As at 31 March 2021, the recoverable amount of the Group’s
interest in Quick Capital Limited is higher than the carrying
amount and thus no impairment loss is recognised.

e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

18. REENRIMER (&)

WA (&)

Red 5
REBEE-_E-N\FZA=Z+—ALEFE"
Firefal R RBE RN S —+E+ AR
Red SB&ET& AR E AR A LA K Red SHIEGER
EME RS - Red SHBIEEBERA QT
RIS LA E B B hFirefall -

REEEBIATERE  ARFAEESRE
T HFARed SE—FlRRHE S

() BEAREAAERL
AEIIEE

BPBARE

(i) A A RFirefallZE 4 YA B AT 8E &
ERENEBTE &

(i) RTARBREFNENRENZ
BRDEBRAUENRRNEBNEEX
(ANRRBRETENREER) -

ExgR T \F_AT=REERZE
REAEE 2ARed SHE—FRHEE -
Eitt - EE=ERERNRed SHERFTIRS
BURMERE -

Quick Capital Limited
RZEZ—F=A=+—H  AKER
Quick Capital Limited &yt &5 A0 ] Uk [B1 & 585
REREE - B AR HERREEE
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(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
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19.

20.

158

—F=A=t+—HILFE)

EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Unlisted equity investment BEAVEEZ
at fair value FEETRAIEE

— Wealth Power Group Limited

19. BAFEFAHMZEHKENRAR

TH
2020
—E-TF

HK$'000
FiB7T

— Wealth Power Group Limited -

Note: The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers the investment to be strategic in nature. Details of the
fair value hierarchy of the financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are set out in note 42(a)(i).

The Group holds 35% equity interests in Wealth Power Group Limited
("Wealth Power”), an unlisted company incorporated in BVI. Wealth
Power is an investment holding company indirectly investing in dessert
business in the People’s Republic of China. As the Group did not
assign any management personnel to Wealth Power or participate
in any formulation of financial or operating policies of Wealth Power,
the directors of the Group consider that the Group is not in a position
to exercise significant influence over operations of Wealth Power,
accordingly the investment is not equity accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. The
results of Wealth Power are dealt with in profit or loss to the extent of
dividends received/receivable from the investment. A fair value loss on
investment of HK$14,000,000 was recognised in other comprehensive
expense for the year ended 31 March 2020.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets mandatorily
measured at FVPL

Listed securities held for trading:

— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong

EHIE AT EFTAE
THEE
BIEEE 2 E TS

- REB L ZBAE S

Biet - BRI E T A E b E RiE A THE
SPARMEEYE RN ARERAKR
BEBMILE - RAFEF AR MEER
MM EREEZ A FEBRNFISEHNM
w42(a)() °

7N %2 [E#3 5 Wealth Power Group Limited (['Wealth
Power] + — A @ B & B & e A S /9 3 £
MR A]) #I35%A%# - Wealth Powers — 1% &
ZERRAR - HEBERPEARKMERERIHG
%75 o RN AEE R R Wealth Powertg R (E{A]
EIE A B - 32 EWealth Powert B 75 8 48 &
BEOHE  AhANEEEEREAEE L EY
Wealth Powerf) ¥ 5@ E1THEEARTE N - At
RIEEBETERFEFNBE AR REEDE
RIRE - ZIRE W KRR EEHEAR - Wealth
PowerfIEE B TEIRIRE 2R E )*—%EEH\
RAIBZEAR M o A 714,000,000/ LA B A
EEEEREE T -_TF=-A=-1+— Eﬁif
FEHM 2 AR PR o

BAVEFABRSENERHEE

iR

7,850

Note: The above listed investments was classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.
Details of the fair value hierarchy of the financial assets through
profit or loss are set out in note 42(a)().
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE 21. HEHEZHEAR

In March 2019, the Group’s management was committed RZE—NF=ZF ~5EEREDHIT

to a plan to dispose of the entire issued capital of Rex Max —IHETEIA L B RB B RIEE K 5 5 ARex

Investments Limited and its non-wholly-owned subsidiary, Inten Max Investments Limited & EIE2EHIB A

International Co., Limited, within the OEM Business segment. Alinten International Co., Limited2 &&E2

Accordingly, assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries were BATIRAR - Ht - ZEMBRARIZEERSE

presented as a disposal group held for sale. Efforts to sell the BENEYABELEZHEHEA - HEHE

disposal group had commenced prior to 31 March 2019 and BRIZB IR _E-—NF=ZA=+—H2Z7

the disposal completed in April 2019. EEFREHBEEEEEER S —NLFN
R o

Cumulative income or expenses included in FTAHMRE KRG A SR

other comprehensive income 53

There were no cumulative income or expenses included in W e AR RFRRE 2 AT ARt 2 E AR A

other comprehensive income relating to the disposal group. REAKRE -

INVENTORIES 22. 78

2020
—ETF

HK$'000
BT

Finished goods

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an WRRAZ K ABRTFEEESITOT -
expense and included in profit or 10ss is as follows:

2021 2020
—ﬁ—_ﬂz —:=v=\7-=|=~

—_—=<— —=

HK$'000 HK$'000
F7 T

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEHEFEREE
Inventory written-off (note 8) WssFE (A1:8)
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e RS R R AL

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(%z —F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

B RHEmEWTRE

2021
—E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000
:ngfl: :F 7BIT

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance B WA IR EREE 1,403
Other receivables Hfh e GRIE 21,374
Financial assets measured at R AGTE Y

amortised cost TREE
Prepayments TEfIFRIA
Deposits b7 a
Representing: Rk -

Current mE

Non-current IERE

Prepayments and deposits expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense after more than one year is HK$80,000
(2020: HK$144,000).

All of the other trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

The Group allows credit period ranging from 30 days to 60
days to customers from OEM Business. For Retail Business, its
revenue mainly comprises of credit sales. Trade receivables
under credit sales are due within 1 month. The Group allows
credit period ranging from 30 days to 60 days to customers
from Wholesaling Business.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out in note 42(b).
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(BE_Z-_—F=A=1+—HBILFE )
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. ESRHMEWRIE &)
As of the end of the reporting period, an ageing analysis of the AT ARREHRIEEZEAHZEINE S E
trade receivables net of loss allowances presented based on W (kR EIEEE) fRRE DT

the invoice date is as follows:

2020
—=—

— =

HK$'000
T

Within 30 days 30HA 4,537

31 to 60 days 31&260H
61 to 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H A
24. LOAN RECEIVABLES 24. BB

2021 2020
—E-—F —E2-F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHTT

Loan receivables arising from
money lending and accrued interest

KB ME 2 YR R TR

Less: Impairment allowances R RERE

Amounts due within one year PARBEEE N —FNA
included under current assets EIEAFRIA

Amounts due after one year PASERBEEIR N —F1&

included under non-current assets FI#f 08
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(Et

—F=A=t+—HILFE)

24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

162

(i)

(if)

(@)

All of the Group's loan receivables are derived from
money lending business carried out in Hong Kong and
are denominated in HKS.

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s loan receivables with
gross amounts of HK$46,318,000 (2020: HK$28,979,000)
are secured loans with collateral which are mainly
properties and unlisted equity interests. The Group is not
permitted to sell or repledge the collateral in the absence
of default by the loan debtors. There has not been
any significant changes in the quality of the collateral
held for the loan receivables. In addition, the Group’s
loan receivables with gross amounts of HK$35,522,000
(2020: HK$22,176,000) are secured loans with guarantee
provided by independent third parties.

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s loan receivables bear
interest at fixed rates ranging from 5% to 36% (2020: 3%
to 36%) per annum.

A typical loan generally has a term of 6 months to 1.5
years (2020: 7 week to 3 years).

Ageing analysis based on loan draw down
date

As at the end of the reporting period, the maturity profile
of loan receivables, based on loan draw down date, is as
follows:

Within 30 days 30K

31 to 90 days 31HZE90H
91-180 days 91THZE180H
More than 180 days but within 1 year HBiB180H1B1F R
Over 1 year i1
Impairment allowance VERIEEE 4o

()
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24. BWER (#)

AEBE A RRERIRENEER
REMEEY - SWABTTEHE

R-E-—F=ZA=+—0 £&HE
JE UL & 3R 48 5846,318,00008 7T (= &
— T 1 28,979,000 L) A& A KT
BR O HESREEAMERIELT
B4 - ANEEEEHALEENONIG
/RT 15 88 & ok B4 5 B4R P
o P EUE FUE I G 2 IR R I
ﬁéﬁ b o SIS - ANEEERE R
48 %835,522,0008 L (ZE =T F ¢
22,176,000/ 70) AHREILE = Rt
EROBEREN -

MR-ZE-—=ZFA=+—8 A&E@Ez
JiE Uk B BRI A TF-5% 5 36% 2 [E 7 4F A
KB (ZTZFF : 3%E36%) ©

HMAER—REFRIBAERZR1S
(ZZE-ZF : 7HZE3F) -

-

EREFIRE A BRARER 2 47

R|EHR - ERERRERBRAZE
WERE 'JHHEIW%/R%WJZZDT :

2021
T —5F

HK$'000
TET

= 6,701

1,300 -
8,938

12,628

58,754

(8,525)

73,095
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(BE_Z-_—F=A=1+—HBILFE )
24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) . BRER (&)
(b) Maturity profile (b) ZIEBABER
As at the end of the reporting period, the maturity profile REEER - EREHABZEBKRE
of loan receivables, based on maturity date, is as follows: HEHEBRES T

2021 2020
—E_—f —E-F

HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT AT

Due within 3 months or on demand 3ME A REIE kI EkEE 53,232
Due after 3 months but within 3@ A 1518618 A A EIHA

6 months 16,919
Due after 6 months but within 6fEl B 12181218 A A EIHA
12 months 11,469
Due after 12 months 1216 A 12 2 #A =
Impairment allowances PEREERELE (8,525)
73,095
Details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note BRAER EEREHBEHA WS

42(b). 42(p) »
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24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)
(c) Analysed by credit quality

164]

Loan receivables that are credit EERERKER
impaired
— Not past due — R
- Less than 3 months past due - @ EI3E A A
- Over 3 months past due - B AR A3(E A
- Over due rescheduled loans - BB EHER
Impairment allowances RERHE

Loan receivables that are not FEEREEKRER

credit impaired
— Not past due — R HA

— Less than 3 months past due - B EI3ME A A

— Over 3 months past due — @ HAFR A3 (E A
— Over due rescheduled loans - AR EHER
Impairment allowances RERE

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the directors of the Group
consider that the credit risk arising from the credit-
impaired loan receivables is partially mitigated by the
properties owned by certain unlisted companies, the
shares of which are held by the Group as collateral, with
reference to the estimated fair value of the properties
as at 31 March 2021 and 2020. Accordingly, expected
credit loss of HK$6,500,000 (2020: HK$4,931,000) was
recognised for these credit-impaired loan receivables
with gross amount of HK$6,500,000 (2020: HK$23,978,000)
as at 31 March 2021. In addition, no expected credit
loss (2020: HK$1,945,000) was recognised for unsecured
loan receivables (2020: HK$6,335,000) which are credit-
impaired as at 31 March 2021.
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24. BWER (#)

LMEEERSH
2020

—m—m

—= =

HK$'000
AT

28,388

22,753
23,979
(2,025)

73,095

RZEZ—FRZZTE-ZEF=A
=+t—H AEEEERAREEE
BERKERNEERRIDSHEET
FETMRBRHENWERE - HR
MEHAEBER2E_T_—FR=
E-TF=A=+—HBMEZHT
ANTEEERERYFE - Bt
RZBZ—F=A=+—H B8
4838 56,500,000 T (ZE =T F ¢

23,978,000/ 7T) #) % % & BB A &
W& F R T8 AR = B 1E5186,500,0007%
T (ZZ = Z 4 : 4,931,000/ JT) °

o RZEZ—F=A=+—8"

W (=T = F F 1 6,335,000 7T.)
HEEREEERERERERER
FEEE (ZZ=Z 4 :1,945000%
TT) e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)
(d) Expected credit loss of loan receivables

Expected credit loss in respect of loan receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that there is no realistic prospect of recovery, in
which case the expected credit loss is written off against
loan receivables directly (see note 2 (j)(i))

Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying
amount and allowances for loan receivables
The table below provides a reconciliation of the
Group’s gross carrying amount and allowances for loan
receivables for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

The transfers of financial instruments represents the
impact of stage transfers upon the gross carrying
amount and associated allowance for ECL. The net
remeasurement of ECL arising from stage transfers
represents the increase in ECL due to these transfers.

e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

. BWER @)
(d) EBRERBHEEESR

ERER 2 BREERRERERS
BRARR - RIEARBERLEERK
[EIATS - B E 5 3R W S i 35 7R
EEEE (RREE200) -

EWEREmMAENERESEHY
BR
TREYEEZE_—FR T =F
FZAZt+—HIFEAREFIRKE
FRERE BB R

TR TAMNERRRRERERER
EMEEBERRBRNTE - B
HEELNEREEBRENTEF
BRRANZFERMEHWELRE
EEREm -
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(ﬁ —F=A=+—HILFE)
24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) . BIWER (&)
(d) Expected credit loss of loan receivables (d) EWEREHEEEE &)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of gross exposure and allowances EWREHZmEFRIERFHERREZ
for loan receivables Eof 3

Non credit - impaired Credit - impaired Total
FEERE [EHE it
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
F1K8 EHLEE F3KB
Gross  Allowance Gross ~ Allowance Gross ~ Allowance Gross  Allowance

exposure  forECL  exposure  forECL  exposure  forECL  exposure  forECL
B RERE BE RERE BE  RERE Bk FEGE
REAE FERE BOE  FEMR  ARAE  EERE  AEEE  EERR
HESOD  HKSO00  HKSO00 HKSO0 HK$ 000 HKSO0  EKSO0  HKSO0
TRt TEn Thr AT AT i1 TEn TR

Asat 1 prl 2019

Neww loans/francing orgnated

Loansffinancing derecognised o repad during the year
(other than wrte-0f

Modifiation logs

Transterto Zmonhexpece fect credit 0ss 8 fege 1)
Transferto fetime expected creoitoss not credt-mpéired

33 %) 360 @ B3 039 733 3453
pufl (7186) 2680 0 882 o0y %1% (9

T N/ SN 71 N | A 11 N
. - - - - -

Istage 2 ) 1 % ] ] 4
Transfe o feime exogcted credt loss credit-mpared
(tege ) (14,575 B[ (68 O X %)

Total ransfer between stages (14.5% 0 (1589 (I (3 - -
Wre-of 3@1; 61 i - R | R RV 150
\mpact 0n year end expected creditss of exposures e

fransfered between stages during the year

Movements due to changes n crdtrisk - - - - - (198) - (198)

s at 31 March 2000 an 1 April 2020
I8 689%6) 5 (T Ki 6elg 8B (137

New loans/francing orgnated
Lognsffinancing derecogrised or repeic during the year (other

B8 (9 - - 180 123 B0 (172

than i of) (%) 6 () (i (30 bl (1289 il
Modifiation logs - - - - - - - -
Tranfer to 12:month expected cetogs a2 1) RIRIK (6,876 - - 3 6876
Transfer to fetme expected credit oss not credtmpared

(g2 - B }

Transferto lfetime expected credit ogs credi-mpaied (age3)

(5,00 - - - 5000
Total ransfer between stages 533 (6,876) - - B 6876
Impact on yea rend expected oredt loss of expostres

fransfered befween stages durng the year - - - - - - - -
Movements due to changes in credit risk - - - - (489 - 6,255
As &t 31 March 2021 RE-EZA=1-R B R - - 8500 630 K0 B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS ERAR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(BEZZ-_—F=A=+—HIHFE )
24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) . BIWER (&)
(d) Expected credit loss of loan receivables (d) EUERBREESE &)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of gross exposure and allowances EWRENZmGFRIEREHERREZ
for loan receivable (Continued) R (&)

n
—7— g

HK$ Ll
Tin

Change I ECLin satement ofprof or s

(Credi)charge for the year 13
Total ECL (crectcharge for the ear ER(A)/ RrRGEaERLE L
Definitions of Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 are detailed in FIRE  FUERRFEIRBRZER

note 42(b)(i). HABIFE42(b) () FFk




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(Eﬁzﬁ T—F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

25. AMOUNT DUE FROM DIRECTORS/AN
ASSOCIATE
The amounts due from directors and an associate are
unsecured, non-trade nature, interest-free and repayable on
demand. Below is the additional information of amounts from
directors and an associate as at 31 March 2021.

Amounts due from directors

. BRES HERNRRE

JEE S R R RIS REIEN  3FE S
HE  REREEKER - UTHAEE-T
T FZ A=t HEREFELBERFR
B2 FESNERY -

FEWRE = FIH

Maximum

amount
outstanding
during 31 March 31 March
the year 2021 2020
FARSH
REE —T-—F
HELE =H=+-—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FAT FHET THIT
Mr. Yuen Yu Sum RWRTE 2,757 -
Mr. Chan Lap Jin Kevin BRA R A 2,905 -
Amount due from an associate JE W Bt e 1) B SRR3R

Quick Capital Limited Quick Capital Limited

Maximum
amount
outstanding
during

the year

31 March
2021

31 March

FRAREH
REE
RIEEH
HK$'000
THETT

—E-—F
=A=+—H
HK$'000
TR

HK$ (000)
FETT

6,230 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR R MY T

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE=T=—F=A=+— Eiif)

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER . ReRBRSSEYREMRERE
CASH FLOW INFORMATION &
(a) cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) RERBESEEYEE -
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZT-FF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERE 2,130
Cash and cash equivalents in REFEFHERARAZ RS R
the consolidated statement of HEZEEY
financial position 2,130
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on IRITIHSRIES BIRITF A XRIZ
daily bank deposit rates. B R BEEVF S o
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) EXERMETHNEEYHER

financing activities
Promissory
note Loan froma Other Lease
payables shareholder hborrowings liabilities Total
FEf RE—%
RREE RENER Htbfe & fEafk @ct

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FAr ,

AL 1 April 2019 R=E-NEMA—-H - - - 287 27
Changes from financing cash flows BERENERY - 11,451 6,540 (1,373) 16,618
Other changes: HiEE

New leases entered ATURFRE - - - 4,866 4,866
Interest expenses (note 9 () FERT (Hi298) - 269 260 300 829
Offset against loan receivable (Vorg) FWEEE (Wit - (2,000) - - (2,000)

At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZZZTF=F=1—H

E-2-2¢MmA—-A - 9720 6,800 4,080 20,600
Changes from financing cash flows REREREEY (24,399) (9,824) (7,836) (2,267) (44,326)
Other changes: Hit#s
New leases entered EIMVAE i - - - 7,351 7,351
Interest expenses (note 9(@)) FERT (#:299) 839 104 578 212 1,733
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHB AR 81,000 - 11,658 o 93,079

At 31 March 2021 R-B--E=f=+-H
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—F=A=t+—HILFE)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities (continued)

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2020, an independent
loan debtor, a shareholder of the Company, and the
Group entered into an agreement, pursuant to which a
repayment of HK$2,000,000 from the loan debtor was
offset against by the outstanding loan amount due to a
shareholder by the Group.

(c) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash
flows for leases comprise the following:

Within operating cash flows KRB ERA
Within financing cash flows BEREMRA

ReRReSEYREMRERE
& (@)
(b) EXERMETENEBEYHER
(#)
Wit BE_T-TF=A=+—HIEF
E—EBBUEBREBA - —FBAR
AR EEANEBET Y Wk &
It - B E A B R 792,000,000/
TR IBEAEBERRR 2R EE
B o

(c) HERESRLEKE
GAREREXRPHEHEREENZER
FEUWTIEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR R MY T

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE=T=—F=A=+— Eiif)

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. ESRHMENRIE
2020
—ETF
HK$'000
+A&7T
Trade payables B 5 RENFIA 60
Accrued staff salaries fEtEIH S 423
Amounts due to associates (note (c)) FENERG A TIFRIE (H133C) 3,882
Other payable for acquisition of a subsidiary & & 2 &) E fib E {78 -
Other accruals and payables HithfEsH & R R IER A 8,573
Financial liabilities measured at REHEKATECEREE
amortised cost 12,938
(@  An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end @ MBEHRENEZAHNESEN
of the reporting period based on the invoice date is as R IEEE%’D\T)TZZDT :
follows:
2020
~ Tks000
+A&7T
Over 90 days HBiE90H 60
(b)  All of the trade and other payables are expected to be ()  PFEESREMERFRIESERER
settled or recognised as income within one year or are —FRNENRER BN - SR E K
repayable on demand. B -
() The balances are unsecured, interest fee, repayable on © FESHREER ES - FREXKE

demand and will be settled in cash. BHBURSES -
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e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(%z —F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 28. AHERE

2021 2020
—E_—F —ZF-F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT TAET

Contract liabilities BHIEE
Billings in advance of performance BARTBREE 29,808
29,808

The contract liabilities primarily related to below: SREEFEETIFIEREA

- advance consideration received from the customers - SREVEAREEHEREEEFPHK
for the provision of financial quotient and investment FIFERARAE - E LR ARG BIRERR
education courses, for which revenue is recognised B
when the services have been rendered;

- certain customers are required to pay deposits when — ATEFARTEHEERIFE
they place the sales order, which resulted in contract & eI (EEAEERNEREA
liabilities until the Group delivers the products and the EFESHEMMEEIRD) 64
customers obtain control of the products. afE-

The significant increase (2020: increase) in contract liabilities REEAHNABREBIEN (ZZFF : 1

in the current year was mainly due to the HK$29,808,000 ) FEFHREWE P #5829,808,000%

(2020: HK$3,075,000) advances received from customers T (ZEZFF 30750008 7L) SE4HE

resulting in an increase (2020: increase) in contract liabilities of E1Z (— T = T ) 26,733,00055

HK$26,733,000 (2020: HK$2,940,000). T (ZZ-F4F : 2,940,000 7T) °

There was no revenue recognised in the current reporting ERMEHEYEEREENBTFETK

period that related to performance obligations that were Z BB R

satisfied in prior year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 28. S8R’ ©)
Movements in contract liabilities BNAEED

Balance at beginning of the year EXEERR

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result  REYEASLBENEE
of recognising revenue during the W R EE M8 ER
year that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year

Increase in contract liabilities as a result TEWSHE /R BN AR BB B By

of billing in advance of sales activities ARAEEN

Balance at end of the year FREEE

LOANS FROM A SHAREHOLDER 29. RE—BRRNER

As at 31 March 2020, loans from a shareholder of the Company RZZEZZTF=A=+—H RE—BELRQ
of HK$9,720,000 are unsecured and repayable after 1 year but A I B & B 709,720,00078 T A EE R - B
within 2 years in cash. The effective interest rates ranged from BAR—FRERMFANBRREE - BRF
4.5% to 5% per annum. The loans from a shareholder were FIENFA5%ES% ° RE —BBRRAOER
fully repaid during the year ended 31 March 2021. REBEE—Z-_—F=A=+—HILFERNE

BHEE -
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(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(EﬁzE T—F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

30. OTHER BORROWINGS
At 31 March 2021, the other borrowings were repayable as
follows:

Repayable within 1 year or on demand —FANIREREERE
After 1 year but within 2 years R—FEERRER

30. HifEE

RIZE-—F=A=+—B  EEEHEME
&

The above borrowings are secured and guaranteed by:
(i)  pledges over the Group's investment property with an
aggregate carrying amount at the ended of the reporting

period of HK$20,000,000; and

(i) personal guarantees provided by Mr. Yuen Yu Sam, an
executive director of the Company.

The other borrowings comprise of:

(i)  HK$11,200,000 which is unsecured, interest bearing at
10% per annum and repayable on 25 March 2022;

(i) HK$1,800,000 which is unsecured, interest bearing at

15% per annum and fully repaid during the year,

(i) HK$5,000,000 which is unsecured, interest bearing at
2.5% per month and fully repaid during the year.
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EREERBIAT T N ESER MR

0]

(if)

AEBRRERARZABEEER
20,000,000 7T K& & W) S AF K4
&

ARBATEERMRTERENE
AFER -

HiEEEHE

0]

(if)

(iii)

11,200,000 7t + AEEF - & E
FI0%:T B R BER T =-_—_F=A
—t+hRBEEE:

1,800,000 T © AEIKIT  HEF
15%+ B R BN FNREER

5,000,000 T BEER  EF A
2.5%xH B R B FENBEEE o
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(E#= —F=A=+—RALFE )
31. LEASE LIABILITIES 31. HEEE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities TREFESENHEHERBERER KBAER
of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the current and HHIRHB T AL EER

previous reporting period:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
—E-—-f=ZA=+—-H —E_EZF=A=+—-H
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease

payments payments  payments  payments
BiXHEE XS BEEE BEHEE
NRNEE IREE [RHNERE RE L]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET FHET &L

Within 1 year 1R 2,352 2,602 1,047 1,636
After 1 year but within 2 years (EVES 2,255 2,434 623 1,074
After 2 years but within 5 years 2E5%F 5,190 5,374 2,410 3,120
7,445 7,808 3,033 4,194

9,797 10,410 4,080 5,830

Less: total future interest expenses B RRF B AR (613) (1,750)

Present value of lease liabilities HEBENRE 9,797 4,080
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(%Z?: - —F=A=t+—HIFE)

32. DEFERRED TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 32. FEMBRRARAZIELERIE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (a) ERRELEHBEERES

recognised
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

TRARMIGERTR B 6 2 IEET IR
EROAT -

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets

EEHRIAAE
EIETIRE B

122

122

The components of deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as

follows:

Depreciation

RERFABRRARAERIRET
MIRE BN EEMER SR EEIT

allowances
in excess
of related Credit loss
deprecation allowance Total
AT E BEEEE
ZITERE B’iE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TBT T
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFWMA—H 114 (1,559) (1,445)
Charged to profit or loss kBB
(note 10(a)) (H1:#10@@) 8 1,559 1,567
At 31 March 2020 R-ZTE-_TF=FA
=t+—H 122 - 122
At 1 April 2020 and RZZE-ZTFMHHA—H
at 31 March 2021 N—ZE-—F=A1
=+—H 122 - 122
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(BE_Z-_—F=A=1+—HBILFE )
32. DEFERRED TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 32. KEUBMRRARAZELERIE (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised (b) RERAZELEMRBEE
As at 31 March 2021, the Group has unused tax losses R-ZZE-—F=fA=+—H F5£H
of approximately HK$63,928,000 (2020: HK$79,248,000) B R B) A 1% 18 B 18 063,928,000
available for offset against future profits that may be T (ZZE =4 79,248,000/ 7T) A]
carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset was LR $5 7] e SR PR HA S BB A R As A ©
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial RZEZ—F=A=+—H ' @R
position as at 31 March 2021 (2020: nil) since it is not RIS REE R R BB A iR
probable that future taxable profits against which the RIRFERBEF B AB AT IBEE - &
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax I BAE AR & BRSO 2R P HERIR IE A
jurisdiction and entity. BHEE (ZT-FF : |m) -
33. PROMISSORY NOTE PAYABLES 33. EAERRLE
As at 31 March 2021, the promissory note payables were RZFEZ—F=A=+—H  ENELEE
repayable as follows: BRI

Repayable within 1 year or on demand —FANIREREER
After 1 year but within 2 years R—FRERRFTR

Movements in promissory note payables: JE < S

2021
—E——F
HK$’000
FET

Balance at beginning of the year FHEER =
Consideration on acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHIE A 72 HK(E 81,000
Repayment B (23,560)

Balance at end of the year FREH 57,440
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—F=A=t+—HILFE)

PROMISSORY NOTE PAYABLES (continued)
The promissory note payables comprise of:

(i) HK$40,000,000 which is interest bearing at 5% per annum
and repayable on 16 August 2022.

i) HK$41,000,000 which is unsecured, interest bearing at 3%
per annum and repayable on 31 March 2023;

On 17 August 2020, the Group acquired of the entire
equity interest in Zone Galaxy Limited from Mr. Lam Yat
Nam, an independent third party, at total consideration of
HK$40,000,000, which will be satisfied by issue of promissory
note by the Company.

On 27 October 2020, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreement with Mr. Yuen Yu Sum pursuant to which the Group
agreed to purchase the remaining 70% of equity interests in
Prestige Concord at the consideration of HK$80,000,000. The
consideration will be satisfied (i) as to HK$41,000,000 by issue
of promissory note by the Group, (i) as to HK$29,000,000 by
the assumption of the liabilities from Mr. Yuen Yu Sum to the
Group; and (i) as to HK$10,000,000 by cash. The transaction
was completed on 31 March 2021 and Prestige Concord
became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.
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33. BAERLRE @)

ANESIE S SRR

() 40,000,000/ 7T © FFI=E A% AR
ZE-FN\ATAAAEE-

i) 41,000,000 T © AEEE - FHE
A3%  ARZE-—=F=A=+—8H
Big

RZZEZTFNA+EH - AEBEAWNRS
S BgzZone Galaxy Limitedz 2 SPR%#E -
RAB 47 /340,000,000 7T + THREITAR
Al ER A o

RZBEZEF+A=-++tH AEHEHER
WREEIIVEE W - Bt AEEER
& & Ut BEPrestige Concordfs T70%P% #
K & /480,000,000 7T, © B ¥ ()N & 2
B 173 B H541,000,00078 7T ¢ (i) =R T
A IR A B2 EFGE B (529,000,000 7T 5 K (i)
I 910,000,000 Tz A REZMN - RHE
R-ZZT=—F = A =+—H5EM &Prestige
concordpk A E 2 2B B AT
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34. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION

35.

At 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 i

—x—

=

e RS ERAR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

. ATEAREfE

Litigation claim
FRAARE
HK$'000

FET
Note 47(a)
KizF47(a)

CFEMA—BR
—F=A=+—H 1,735

The litigation claim brought against Sino Shine Retailing
Limited (“Sino Shine”) arose from a repudiatory breach of a
tenancy agreement between Sino Shine as the tenant and an
independent third party landlord entered into on 27 October
2016. The details of the litigation claim is disclosed in note
46(a).

Though Sino Shine was disposed by the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2020, according to the terms in the agreement
for sale and purchase of shares in Sino Shine with the buyer
of Sino Shine, the legal claim incurred for Sino Shine which
related to event before the date of disposal on 20 September
2019 shall be payable by the Group. Accordingly, the provision
for litigation claim of HK$1,735,000 remained a liability of the
Group as at 31 March 2021.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$204,000 (2020:
HK$193,000) represents contributions paid to the MPF scheme
by the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021. As at 31
March 2021, there were no material forfeitures available to
offset the Group’s future contributions (2020: nil).

HHABETEARAF ([FHE]) REMFR
REDEEBRNHERRITE ERAME

AN) B—E2BYE=TFERN_F—RET+
AZT A2 BE R - BRFARE
BV FHIB M T 46(a) 1R 5E

BEAEEREE_ZT-_ZEF=A=+—H
iiraﬁﬁﬂrﬁﬁ% R ARIBTTIE R
FHEM B R 2 HRI LM B & ik P 5
R MERBERNEERR - NFNA
ZHHEAZEM RN AERERH A E
BEMN At RZE=Z—F=A=+—
H - SFAARE 1,735,000 T AER
REE—IBALE -

. EERKER

EBEMHFCRIKGHE
REBRBEES CGamllE ATE ST EMEO)
BZEE(ERBIED) EEMNEBR AT
MABETE (MRBESTE] - Bt
R —IHRE XA EMNEBHBGRIK
FHEl - BiFaEEHE - BEREESRIZE
ZIEBMBRAZS%AEIEL R
78 A U A LA30,00058 7T A& LBR » MstEI1E
RN RS -

SFABZ R AR204,0008 T (ZE =T
F 193,000 7T) NASEEEE T = —
FZA=T—HIFERRESFEEN
TR R—T-_—F=ZA=1+—8 - jﬂﬂ@
REWSFEAHEEAEE 2 KRR (=
ZEFE ) o
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 25 September
2014 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible participants, and will expire on 10 October
2024, after which no further options will be granted. Under the
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may grant
options to:

180

@)

any employee or proposed employee (whether fulltime
or part-time and including any executive director),
consultants or advisers of or to the Company, any of the
subsidiaries or any entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which
the Company holds an equity interest;

any non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of the
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity; and

any shareholders or any shareholder of any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

On 14 July 2020, a total of 10,000,000 share options were
granted to Mr. Yuen Yu Sum, an executive Director of the
Company to subscribe for shares of HK$0.04 each of the
Company under the share option scheme of the Company
adopted on 25 September 2014, subject to acceptance of
the Grantee and the payment of HK$1 by the Grantee upon
acceptance of the Options.

On 26 March 2021, a total of 127,992,000 share options were
granted to certain grantees to subscribe for an aggregate of
127,992,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each in the share
capital of the Company under the share option scheme of
the Company adopted on 25 September 2014, subject to
acceptance of the Grantees and the payment of HK$1 by each
of the Grantees upon acceptance of the Options.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company'’s shareholders. The
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval
from the Company's shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options may be
exercised at any time from the date of grant of the share
option. The exercise price is determined by the directors of
the Company, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the
average closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option
(which must be a business day); and (i) the closing price of
the ordinary shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option (which
must be a business day).

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(EﬁzE T—F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The following share options were outstanding under the share
options during the year:

IBRRESTE (®)
7R PR IR B AR 581 4 R 7T 8 O B AR
T

Weighted Number

average of share

exercrise price options

IEEHTEE EREHE

At 1 April 2020 R-ZEZFFMA—H - -
Granted during the year FRFT 0.323 137,992,000
Forfeited during the year FRRRK - -
At 31 March 2021 R-ZE-—F=A=+—H 0.323 137,992,000

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting periods are as
follows:

Number of share options

Exercise Price (HK$)

RIREBR M RITE A BT TE(E R AT
EEANT -

Exercise period

BREHE 1TfEE (BT)

1T

10,000,000 0.227 From 14 July 2020 to 13 July 2030
BE-ZE-_ZF+tATHAE_T=FtA+=H
127,992,000 0.330 From 26 March 2021 to 25 March 2031
BE-E- =A==+ BHZ= —%®=A=-+HH

137,992,000

The share options are fully vested upon the acceptance of the
grant.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 March 2021 was HK$5,437,000, of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$5,437,000 during the
year ended 31 March 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year ended 31 March 2021 was estimated as at the date
of grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the share options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

e RS ERAR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(BE-F-—F=A=+— a¢¢m
36. BRAESE (®)
BE-B-—4=A=+—BLLFE FE

HEVA S E N RERE 2 2 FERRH B
HAE R IR VE B TT iR - SRt AR AR
RO R R ARME - TRIIBAERER
HEAE -

2021
—E_—fF

Dividend yield (%) 1% B 2(%)
Expected volatility (%) %EHE&IFE(%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 95 1) 22 (%)
Forfeiture rate (%) /xuﬁzf %)

The expected life of the share options is based on the historical
data over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative
of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the sahre options granted was incorporated
into measurement of fair value.

0-2%
34.93%-35.24%
0.492%-1.381%

58%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(EﬁzE T—F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

37. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 37. EXKRE
(a) Share capital (@ B’=&
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) SEERBEITRA

Authorised:
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020,
and 1 April 2020 ordinary

EE
RZE—NFEHA—H -
:2_35 A=+—A”

Amount

Number of +5
HK$'000
T

shares
gl 4=

shares of HK$0.04 each M= TFHA— El
FRR0.04E T iR 12,500,000,000 500,000
Capital reorganisation R ANE 4R 4,987,500,000,000 -
At 31 March 2021 ordinary R-TE-——F=A=+—
shares of HK$0.0001 each FH0.0001B L2 BB 5,000,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: E?&ﬁ&%&ﬂ
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, W=-Z—hEmMA—H
and 1 April 2020 ordinary :gfgi A=+—H
shares of HK$0.04 each E-E-FEA— EI
BRR0.04B T TR 1,280,000,000 51,200
Capital reorganisation IR EA - (51,072
Placing shares [ eh) 255,984,000 26
At 31 March 2021 ordinary AT —F= HE+
shares of HK$0.0001 each FR%0.00018 T2 & % 1,535,984,000 154

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to LR 2 B A YT R
receive dividends as declared from time to time BIRAIAR S - I 5T AR D 1
and are entitled to one vote per share at general RRAIREREG L=F—F%
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank RHE e PTA SRR EART
equally with regard to the Company’s residual 2R EEZ A EESRER -
assets.

The Company was completed capital reorganisation RRAFE TR ARELAR ([IRAR

(“Capital Reorganisation”) which include the BHE]) - BRPRATEIE
followings:
a) capital reduction (“Capital Reduction”) a) A E R’ R

whereby the share capital of the Company ) L - RARRA
will be reduced by () the cancellation of 1335 38 LA T 77 U EIR -
HK$0.0399 paid-up capital on each issued (FIsEEREETRNG

share such that each issued share shall 0.03998 TR B R AR AN
be treated as one fully paid-up share of SR E BTG 1R
HK$0.0001 each (the “New Share”) in the BN EIRAR FRREE

capital of the Company; and (i) the reduction 0.0001%8 T H) — B 41 2 X

of the par value of each and every unissued o (T Bx ) R

share from HK$0.04 to HK$0.0001; IR R ITRR 0 8 E B
0.047% JT Hl J £0.000178%
T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(@) Share capital (continued)
(i) Authorised and issued share capital
(Continued)

b)

share premium cancellation whereby upon
the Capital Reduction becoming effective, the
entire amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company will
be cancelled (“Share Premium Cancellation”),

the credit arising from the Capital Reduction
and Share Premium Cancellation will be
applied towards offsetting the accumulated
losses of the Company as at the effective
date of the Capital Reduction. The balance
of credit after offsetting, if any, will be
transferred to a distributable reserve account
of the Company and be applied for such
purposes as permitted by all applicable
laws and the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company and as the board
of directors considers appropriate; and

immediately following the Capital Reduction,
the authorised share capital of the Company
will be increased from HK$1,250,000 divided
into 12,500,000,000 New Shares of par value
of HK$0.0001 each to HK$500,000,000 divided
into 5,000,000,000,000 New Shares of par
value of HK$0.0001 each, by the creation of
4,987,500,000,000 additional New Shares of
par value of HK$0.0001 each.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 23 March 2020 (the "EGM"),
the proposed resolution to approve the Capital
Reorganisation and the transactions contemplated
thereunder was duly passed as a special resolution
by way of poll by the shareholders.
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(@ K& @)
() ZFEERSBITRE (&)

by  FEHEERMEE - &t R
PRI AR + RAE]
iR ERMERZ 25
FIE A A 8 (TR 8E R
HmEl)

0 BARHIR R ER O (E
A 2 E RS AR SR
RNARBAEIR A2 A HA
Z RETEAL - RETDREAR
NAZ RETEAL © BURIZ
MERSE () KB
BERRBA DR
R RERTAERAD R A
NAZEEERAM R A
E“Jﬁﬁ/f?ﬂi%@?ﬁ a

W2 RE R

d  E R K R ®:
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37. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(@) Share capital (continued)

186

(M

Authorised and issued share capital
(Continued)

Subsequent to the passing of the resolution at
the EGM, the Capital Reorganisation will become
effective after the other conditions are fulfilled,
inter alia, the approval from The Grand Court of the
Cayman Islands (the “Court”) and registration of the
order of the Court confirming the Capital Reduction
and the minutes approved by the Court containing
the particulars required under the Companies Law
(2020 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, as amended
or modified from time to time, with respect to the
Capital Reduction.

The Capital Reorganisation has confirmed by an
Order of the Court on 7 October 2020 and all
conditions were fulfiled. The Capital Reorganisation
was completed at the same date.

On 27 November 2020, the Company entered into
the Placing Agreement with the Placing Agent,
pursuant to which, the Company has conditionally
agreed to place, through the Placing Agent up
to 255,984,000 Placing Shares to not less than
six independent Placees at the Placing Price of
HK$0.345 per Placing Share. The condition of the
Placing has been fulfilled and the completion of the
Placing took place on 22 December 2020.

The Placing Price represents (i) a discount of 8.00%
to the closing price of HK$0.375 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 27 November
2020, being the date of the Placing Agreement;
and (i) a discount of approximately 6.76% to the
average closing price per Share of HK$0.370 as
quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five
consecutive trading days up to and including
26 November 2020, being the date immediately
preceding the date of the Placing Agreement.
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37. EXKREE #)
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(a)

)

FEERBBITRA (8)

BEERREFRIAEG L 2RER
ERBRE FEMKFEX
% BAEABRNFEEEEX
EB (DEBE)) #Ef K & 5T g
R AR Z AR R < A R 48
ERALEHAEREREREE
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RIS EER) FTARE B B H)
BB BRRCERIR R -

BAEHEER T =_FTF+A
+tHE AR EREME K
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RRBB AR ARE &%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Capital and reserves
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
financial statements.

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the
end of the year are set out below:

The Company

e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

37. BEXRKRE @)
(b) BEAXRKEE

ARTEIRBEER RELER
ERRRGARREDE -

7R IR R (R AR 0 TR ) B A R
BRI -

/N

Share
Share Share Special option  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve loss Total
S RRE KRRk BERERE By @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BT BT B Thr Thr
At 1 April 2019 RZZ-NEBA-A 51,200 618133 5,102 - (666,625) 58,810
Loss and total EMEERZERXEE
comprenensive
expense for the year - - - - (9,754) (9,754)
At 31 March 2020 and R-E-ZFZA=1+-H
1 April 2020 R=2-%FmA-A 51,200 618,133 56,102 - (676,379) 49,05
Profit and total FRENRZERR 2%
comprenensive
expense for the year - - - - 2018 218
Proposed dividend BERE - (10,137) - - - (10,137)
Capital reorganisation FAER (51,072 (618,133) - - 669,205 -
Placing shares RERR 2% 83,289 - - - 88,315
Equity-settled share option Mgﬁ*ﬁ% RELRH
arrangement - - - 5437 - 5437

At 31 March 2021 R-E--¥=fA=1-H 154 78,152

56,102

5,437 (4,956) 134,889
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37. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

188

(M

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which a dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(u).

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
instrument designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9
that are held at the end of the reporting period (see
note 2(f)).

Special reserve

Special reserve represented the difference
between the nominal amount of the share capital
and share premium of a former subsidiary of the
Company and the nominal amount of the share
capital issued by the Company pursuant to a group
reorganisation.

Other reserve

Other reserve arose from the waiver of loan from a
controlling shareholder of the Company in previous
years.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve represent equity reserve
arising from equity-settled share option expense
under share option scheme of the Company
provided to directors and employees, details are
set out in note 36.

L & A International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

37. EXRf#E @)
(c) REMHERRAR

R4 E
BERSHESQREEE
i) - AREl 2RO EBRAI 5
ﬁ%zﬁ’\ﬂﬂﬁﬁ CMERER
FEORBREEBE  ARAA
BRNEEBEEBTHDE
&7 o

I 5 51

FE S R A B0
T2 8RR E LS E £
o EEEBRERANE2AZ
SHBAREE -

DHERE (TER)

N ERFE (TAEE) BHFE

BERRBFENRIEB B
SFEAFIRIEER R FER

AR EEREHBRATAR

FEMRFEESHFE (RHE

2(f)) »

R

i Bl R FE AN X B AT P 1 2 )
MkABREEERDEEZ
RHZH - WRARFIRES
BEHESHTRARREE -

Hfthfek 5
HipEBEEB AR E —&E
RRRNBEFEREER

BRERE
BREREEARFDESER
EERHMBERETSETZ
I 1 4 L S M D S P AR 9
PR - FHIBENPRESS ©



n [
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(d) capital management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern,
so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the total equity of the Group. Net debt
includes other borrowings, loans from a shareholder,
promissory note payables and lease liabilities less cash
and cash equivalents. The net gearing ratios as at the
end of the reporting periods were as follows:

Other borrowings HivfgE

e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

37. BEXRKRE @)
(d) BEXEE
AREEREAZ BRAREAEE
FEEEREN - B RBREREE
(Bl % 2 A E A 50 2 5 R F 25 A R i
FREERERARDERKE -

REFLRBREARRE  AREMH
BN TRRORSSHE - ARFR
BEAXR - BITHBRSLEEERRD
&7 -

AEENEERBLL R (BAIAKEF
BERNERER) EREERF
BESEEMEER KA —BBERN
ER - BNAAREBEREERERR

ERREEFEY RREPRNFE
ERELENT

2021
— T —fF

HK$'000
TET

11,200

Loans from a shareholder KE—BREHER =
Promissory note payables JEAE L IR 57,440
Lease liabilities HEaE 9.797
Less: cash and cash equivalents W BEMBEEEYD (72,944)
Net debt FAE 5,493
Total equity Rz HEEE 174,019

Net gearing ratio SEEEARILE

3%




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(Eﬁz:‘é —F=A=+—HIEFE)
38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. EXRFEHARS
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed (@) MBMKRFBERNIZRS °
in the financial statements.
The Group had the following transactions with related RNEEEARFEN AT ET TS
party during the year: R
2021 2020
—E--F —=TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Company controlled by
Mr. Yuen Yu Sum RREERFIN AT FEx FAT
Management fee income EEBIA 65
(b) Key management personnel (b) FEEE ABSHMH
remuneration
The key management personnel include directors of FTEEEABREARAES (HHF
the Company (the remuneration for them disclosed in B H2 BE OB 5E11) K B BB BT 511289
note 11) and certain highest paid employees disclosed ETEaFHMES  BEA—HEZE
in note 12 who is director of a principal subsidiary, and MBARCEE UREFEEEAS
the remuneration for key management personnel are as T -
follows:

2020
—E-FTF

HK$°000
TET

Short-term employee benefits GHEAE B @A

2,965
Equity-settled share option expense i 45 H R AR R 2 -

Post-employment benefits BERk 2R
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note FNemEe s EIkAl R (B
9(b)). (b)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c)

(c)

Financing arrangement

During the year ended 31 March 2020, a shareholder of
the Company advanced loans of HK$9,720,000 to the
Group, which is unsecured, interest-bearing at 4.5%-5.0%
per annum and repayable within 24 months from the
draw down dates. The outstanding loan balance was fully
repaid during the year ended 31 March 2021.

The interest expense on loans from a shareholder during
the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to HK$104,000
(2020: HK$269,000).

Other transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company
provided a financial guarantee to an independent third
party lender (the “Lender”) for a loan of HK$11,200,000
(the “Loan”) granted by the Lender to Prestige Concord,
an associate of the Group. The Loan was then replaced
by another loan of same amount granted by the Lender
which a property indirectly owned by Prestige Concord
was pledged to the Lender, and the financial guarantee
provided by the Company under the Loan was released
during the year ended 31 March 2020. As at 31 March
2021, the Group acquired the remaining 70% of equity
interests in Prestige Concord from Mr. Yuen Yu Sam and
Prestige Concord became a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group.

Mr. Yuen Yu Sum, an executive director of the Company,
is interested in this transaction or arrangement to the
extent that Prestige Concord is controlled by him.
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e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
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39. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Acquisition of subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 March 2021

192

(i)

Bewisekid Holding Limited

On 10 August 2020, the Group acquired of the entire
equity interest in Bewisekid Holding Limited from Mr.
Poon Chi Ming, an independent third party, at total
consideration of HK$33,250,000, which will be satisfied by
the issue and allotment of the shares at the issue price
of HK$0.135 per share by the Company.

A guarantee of audited profit with minimum amount of
HK$5,000,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021 has
been undertaken by Mr. Poon Chi Ming to the Group for
the Group’s acquisition of Bewisekid Holding Limited,
or in case there is a shortfall, a compensation would be
provided by Mr. Poon Chi Ming to the Group as stipulated
in the Agreement. According to the audited results for
the year ended 31 March 2021, the profit has meet the
requirement and therefore there is no compensation
receivable by the Group.
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39. WEBERHENEBLR

W BB B B B

Bz=

(i)

E-_—-F=ZA=+—HLEE
Bewisekid Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Continued)

(i) Bewisekid Holding Limited (Continued)

e RS ERAR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

39. WK EREAT ()
IR AR (50

BE_Z-_—F=A=1+—HILFE #)
(i)  Bewisekid Holding Limited (#)

HK$'000
T

Consideration ~RE
Consideration share REKR D 33,250
Total consideration RIEREE 33,250

Analysis of assets and liabilities as at the

date of acquisition:

REBERERNEERREST

Property, plant and equipment M - BE MR 42
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E b FEUGRIE 7,070
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEED 6,792
Contract liabilities AHaE (11,619)
Other payables and accrued expenses Hfth B 5P RRIA R AT RS2 (117)
Tax payable JERTL IR (670)
Fair value of the net assets BEFEZATE 1,498
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries WK A R B

Total consideration REmEzE 33,250
Fair value of the net assets BEFEZATE (1,498)
Goodwill S 31,752
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WESEEELENRESRATR

Consideration received in cash and cash
equivalents

Less: Cash and cash equivalents for acquisition

N & N & FEYPEZ K(E
6,792
o WEER RS MRS EFEY -

6,792
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T —FZA=1+—HLFE)

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Continued)
(i) Zone Galaxy Limited

On 17 August 2020, the Group acquired of the entire
equity interest in Zone Galaxy Limited from Mr. Lam Yat
Nam, an independent third party, at total consideration
of HK$40,000,000, which will be satisfied by the issue of

promissory note by the Company.

A guarantee of audited profit with minimum amount of
HK$6,000,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021 has
been undertaken by Mr. Lam Yat Nam to the Group
for the Group’s acquisition of Zone Galaxy Limited, or
in case there is a shortfall, a compensation would be
provided by Mr. Lam Yat Lam to the Group as stipulated
in the Agreement. According to the audited results for
the year ended 31 March 2021, the profit has meet the
requirement and therefore there is no compensation

receivable by the Group.

L & A International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

39. WEBRHENMBAR (#)

WREME AT (2)

BE-Z-_—5=A=+—HLFE #)

(i) Zone Galaxy Limited
RZZEZZFENA+ER - A&HE
M98 37 8 = 75 Mk 55 5 A U BB Zone
Galaxy Limitedz 2 5BA%AE - R ELRE
/440,000,000 7T * #% AR R Bl iR 8
TEREEBEOAAZA -

Mok B 5 A Bt AR & E Y fEZone
Galaxy Limitedra 7~ £ [ {5 H & 7

REEZZEZ—F=F=+—HBL
FEMNKEZNERERESHER
6,000,000 7T + tNEZE5E - RIfEMiR
BEEREHRRTRARNEEIELH
B BBREEZES BE-T——
F=ZA=T—BILFE  Z%FHEEZE
FESR - AHl - WERENAEEZ M/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS ERAR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

39. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF 39. WBERLHERBAR (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Continued)

(i) Zone Galaxy Limited (Continued)

WEEHE AT (2)
BE_Z-_—F=A=1+—HILFE #)
(ii) Zone Galaxy Limited (&)

HK$'000

T
Consideration RE
Promissory note A 40,000
Total consideration REHAZE 40,000
Analysis of assets and liabilities as at the RWKBE=EEANEEREBIN

date of acquisition:
Other receivables H e FRIE 28,541
Cash and cash equivalents RERBSEEY 2,276
Contract liabilities AHAaE (16,964)
Trade and other payables Z 5 NEAMRENTRIA (1,469)
Amount due to a director fEUR — R EBAFE (3,750)
Short term loan EEER (458)
Tax payable e #E1E (1,165)
Fair value of the net assets BEEFECATE 7,0M
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries W ES B A Bl Y
Total consideration REEzE 40,000
Fair value of the net assets BEFEZATE (7,011
Goodwill EES 32,989
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WBEEEENRERAFE
Consideration received in cash and cash LR € IR & SEYUER 2 R E
equivalents 2,276

Less: Cash and cash equivalents for acquisition

B WSR2 R MR EHEY) -

2,276
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ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Continued)
(iii) Prestige Concord Limited

39. WEBRHENMBAR (#)

WREME AT (2)
BE-Z-_—5=A=+—HLFE #)
(iii)  Prestige Cconcord Limited

On 27 October 2020, the Group entered into sale and
purchase agreement with Mr. Yuen Yu Sum pursuant
to which the Group agreed to purchase the remaining
70% of equity interests in Prestige Concord at the
consideration of HK$80,000,000. The consideration will
be satisfied (i) as to HK$41,000,000 by issued of the
Promissory Note by the Group, (i) as to HK$29,000,000
by the assumption of the liabilities from Mr. Yuen Yu
Sum to the Group; and (i) as to HK$10,000,000 by cash.
The transaction was completed on 31 March 2021 and
Prestige Concord became a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group.

A guarantee of audited profit with minimum amount of
HK$17,000,000 for the 12-month period from 1 April 2020
to 31 March 2021 has been undertaken by Mr. Yuen Yu
Sum to the Group for the Group’s acquisition of Prestige
Concord, or in case there is a shortfall, a compensation
would be provided by Mr. Yuen Yu Sum to the Group as
stipulated in the Agreement. According to the audited
results for the year ended 31 March 2021, the profit
has meet the requirement and therefore there is no
compensation receivable by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS ERAR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

39. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF 39. WBERLHERBAR (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Continued)

(iii) Prestige Concord Limited (Continued)

HK$'000
T

I A F ()
BE_Z-_—F=A=1+—HILFE #)
(iii) Prestige Concord Limited (#)

Consideration RE
Promissory note A B 41,000
Setoff by liabilities from Mr. Yuen Yu Sum to the  &RWELE B AREE RN B S

Group 29,000
Cash consideration HERE 10,000
Total consideration RERTE 80,000
Analysis of assets and liabilities as at the RWBEEERNEEREEIN

date of acquisition:

Property, plant and equipment ME - B KR & 621
Investment property MERE 20,000
Trade and other receivables B 5 M EAFEWFRIA 1,448
Amounts due from directors fEURE = FUE 29,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEED 7,01
Contract liabilities AHaE (6,263)
Trade and other payables E 5 NREAMRENFRIE (3,245)
Other borrowings HipbfgE (11,200)
Lease liabilities HEa’ 421)
Tax payable e #1E (5,614)
Fair value of the net assets BEEFECATE 31,337
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries W BB F B A Bl RV

Total consideration of 70% equity interest 70% &R (B 80,000
Investment in associate for 30% equity interest & &E# N FI30%A%KE (F17£18)

(note 18) 21,667
Fair value of the net assets BEFE2ATE (31,337)
Goodwill EES 70,330
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WESEEELENESREFEHE
Consideration received in cash and cash LR € MR & EEYUE 2 RE

equivalents 7,0M
Less: Cash and cash equivalents for acquisition ¥ : WHEEEZIRS KIS EED (10,000)

(2,989)
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ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Continued)

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Bewisekid Holding
Limited, Zone Galaxy Limited and Prestige Concord Limited is
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the distribution
of the Group's future development on the market of financial
quotient and investment education business.

Bewisekid Holding Limited, Zone Galaxy Limited and Prestige
Concord Limited contributed approximately HK$33,024,000,
HK$35,086,000 and HK$Nil to the Group’s revenue for the year
respectively for the period between the date of acquisition and
the end of the reporting period. Bewisekid Holding Limited,
Zone Galaxy Limited and Prestige Concord Limited contributed
approximately HK$14,031,000, HK$15,083,000 and HK$NIl to the
Group's profit for the year respectively for the period between
the date of acquisition and the ended of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2020, total
Group revenue for the year from continuing operations would
have been HK$146,222,000, and profit for the year from
continuing operations would have been HK$62,659,000. The
proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of the revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2020,
nor is intended to be a projection of future results.
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39. WEBRHENMBAR (#)

WREME AT (2)
BE—ZT-—5=A=1+—HLEE #)
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Galaxy Limited &zPrestige Concord Limited
EEERERRARAEBRRET S HI
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(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

39. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF 39. WIBREENBAR (&)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Disposal of Subsidiaries HEMNE A A

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Continued) BE-_Z-_—F=A=+—HLEE #)

()  On 5 May 2019, the Group disposed of the entire equity () —hWERARB  AEEHE
interest in Winsky Management Limited, a dormant HAWinsky Management Limited (—f&
company, at total consideration of HK$100,000. TEERENR]) 22 HRE - RE

4858 5100,00078 7T °

HK$'000
THT

Consideration received 2R RE
Cash received BUE 4 100
Total consideration received BRERE 100
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which &k ZiZ4IENEEREBDT :

control was lost:
Other receivables Hib e RIA 14
Other payables and accrued expenses EMENRIBE R ETE A (13)
Net assets disposed of FIHEEEFE 1
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A RN KRG
Consideration received BURE 100
Net assets disposed of I EEEFE (1
Gain on disposal K 99

The gain on disposal is included in the “other net
(losses)/gains” line item in the consolidated

HEWREFT AGAER R EA
2EMERP R [EAM (F518), 7

statement of profit or loss and other W FgE ] fTIBEH -
comprehensive income.
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEEZRESRANTE

Consideration received in cash and cash
equivalents
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

BEWRE MRS EEMRE
B T ERE MRS EEY)
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39. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2020

(i)

200

39. WEBRHENMBAR (#)

HEWEAR (5
E-R-RF=A=t+—HLEE

Oon 1 April 2019, the Group disposed of the entire i) RZZE—NAFOA—A A£EH
equity interest in Rex Max Investments Limited and E M Rex Max Investments Limited &
its subsidiary, Inten International Co., Limited, within H f B A Flinten International Co.,
the OEM Business segment at total consideration of Limited RER B BLEEE D BN &
HK$500,000. [t - R{E4R%E /500,000 7T °

HK$'000
T

Consideration received 2R E
Cash received YIRS 500
Total consideration received Bl EREE 500

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:

REEFENEERBEDON

Property, plant and equipment L E N 63
Goodwill kS 219
Intangible assets m AR 359
Trade and other receivables Z 5 REMBERFIEA 450
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 32
Other payables and accrued expenses Hib e RIB R EFTER (225)
Tax payable FERIEIE (10)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE (59)
Net assets disposed of T EEEFE 829
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB ARG

Consideration received BURE 500
Net assets disposed of FTEEETE (829)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR S 332
Gain on disposal & 3

The gain on disposal is included in the “other net
(losses)/gains” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

HEWEFT ASREIBE R EM
EERERFH [Elas (5
18) F5 ] 7EEH -

Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELEZHERATFEHE
Consideration received in cash and cash BUERE MRS EEYRE
equivalents 500
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B TR ERE MRS EEY (32)
468
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39. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF 39. WIBREENBAR (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

HEE M2 F) ()
BE-S-SF=AST-ALFE

(#)

@iy On 20 September 2019, the Group disposed of the entire (i) RZZE—-—NFHLA=Z+H FREEY
equity interest in Sino Shine Retailing Limited. Within the ERFBZEERAT 2 2 ERME -
Retail Business segment at total consideration of HK$1. REEEBI BN 2RELFERVE

7T

HK$'000
T

Consideration received 2R E
Cash received BUIRE -
Total consideration received B ELERE -

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:

REEFENEERBBDON

Property, plant and equipment Y - BE k& 7
Other payables and accrued expenses HiErRIB R ET R (145)
Net liabilities disposed of T EaEFE (138)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEMBARNKE

Consideration received BUHRE -
Net liabilities disposed of FrHEaEFE 138
Gain on disposal e 138

The gain on disposal is included in the “other net
(losses)/gains” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Net cash inflow arising on disposal

Consideration received in cash and cash
equivalents

Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

HEWESHAGABEREM
2EMEERTR [ B (B5E),
e/ FRE ] fTIEHES ©

HEEEZRERAFHE
BEUWRE MRS FEMRE

B T ERE MR EEY)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(EﬁzE T—F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. RARIMB AR ZFHE
COMPANY
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2021 are as RZZZ—F=A=+—H  WBARZ:H
follows: BT
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully equity attributable
operation paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
HMRY /S BETRBREER FAREERERSL  EEXE
Direct Indirect
B R
% %
Mutli Vision Development Limited BVI/HK 1 ordinary share 100 - Investment holding
0f US$1 each
Mutli Vision Development Limited RERUBE /&5 TRERIETHLRER 100 - RERK
Able Glorious Limited BVI/HK 1 ordinary share 100 - Investment holding
of US$1 each
Able Glorious Limited EBRANE /FE RERIETHERR 100 - BEER
Peaceful Success Enterprises Limited ~ BVI/HK 1 ordinary share 100 - Investment holding
of US$1 each
BRAEERAT ZBRuHE /B RERIZ T L AR 100 - REER
Able Glorious (HK) Limited HK/HK 1 ordinary share - 100 Provision of financial
quotient and
investment education
COUrses
Able Glorious (HK) Limited BE/EE 1REER - 00 REHNERREHEFE
Able Rich Management Limited BVI/HK 1 ordinary share - 100 Investment holding
of US$1 each
ENERERAT RBRRES /B IRERIETAEER - 00 ®EER
L & A Group of Companies Limited HK/HK 38,400,000 - 100 Manufacturing, sales and
ordinary shares retailing of garment
products
HOREERAA &b/ BE 33,400,0008% &% - 100 REEREE - HER
T8
Times Asia Limited HK/HK 10,000 ordinary shares - 100  Dormant
ROARAR BB/ Bk 100008 & AR - 100 EEEH
L & A Management Limited BVI/HK 1 ordinary share - 100 Investment holding
of US$1 each
L & A Management Limited EBRAHE /B TRERIETHLBR - 100 REZR
Sun Dynamic Group Limited BVI/HK 3,000 ordinary shares - 100 Investment holding
0f US$1 each
Sun Dynamic Group Limited RBRI#ES /B4 3000 ERE TR LB - 00 REER
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. XATMBATZFHE (&)
COMPANY (Continued)

Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully equity attributable
operation paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
ML/ EE S ERTRARER NG Rl A
Direct Indirect
HE i
% %
Maxi Chain Enterprises Limited HK/HK 1 ordinary share - 100  Dormant
REMEERAT &8/ BA REER - 0 EEXE
Hung Lee Asia Trading Limited HK/HK 100 ordinary shares - 70 Wholesaling of seafood
ERENESERAR Bk /B 100K EBR - 70 ERE
L & AFood Trading Limited HK/HK 1 ordinary share - 100 Property investment
ETRnESERAR &b/ BA 1REER - 100 MERE
L & A Solutions Limited HK/HK 1 ordinary share - 100 Money Lending
L & A Solutions Limited BE/ER 1REER - 00
Winsky Management Limited HK/HK 100 ordinary shares - 100 Dormant
BRERERAA &b/ BA 1008 & Bk - 100 ZEEH
Rise More Corporation Limited HK/HK 100 ordinary shares - 100  Dormant
BHBRAR &b/ R 1008k X Bk - 100 Z&EEH
Well Allied Catering Services Limited ~ HK/HK 10,000 ordinary shares - 100 Dormant
BRERRBERAF &b/ BA 10000 &A% - 100 L&
Zone Galaxy Limited BVI/HK 1 ordinary share - 100 Investment holding
Zone Galaxy Limited KBRLEE /B4 TRL B - 100 KEER
Freemaker Institute Limited HK/HK 1,000 ordinary shares - 100 Provision of financial
quotient and
investment education
COUrses
BRELIXSERRAF Bk /B 10008 @k - 00 REHBRREHERE
Bewisekid Holding Limited BVI/HK 1 ordinary share - 100 Investment holding
Bewisekid Holding Limited EERLEE /EF TREER - 100 HARR
Be Wise Kid Education Limited HK/HK 10,000 ordinary shares - 100 Provision of financial
quotient and
investment education
COUrses
—A—HRERAT &b/ Bh 100008 & @k - 100 REFERREUERE
Initial Aim Limited BVI/HK 1 ordinary share of 100 Investment holding
US$1 each

Initial Aim Limited RERLHE /BB RERIETHLER 00 REER
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ENI) - PN PA S )

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40.
COMPANY (Continued)

Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully equity attributable
operation paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
SRR/ EEh ERTRARER NG Rl A
Direct Indirect
HE i
% %
FQ Education Holding Limited BVI/HK 2 ordinary shares 50 Dormant
FQ Education Holding Limited EBRLEE /EF PRERR 50 EEEE
FQ Education (International) Limited HK/HK 1 ordinary share 50 Dormant
FQ Education (ntemational) Limited &/ /&5 MEER 50 EEEHR
Prestige Concord Limited BVI/HK 1,000 ordinary shares of 100 Investment holding
US$1 each
Prestige Concord Limited EERLEE /EF 1000 R ETOLBR 100 HEZR
YH Group Limited HK/HK 150,000 ordinary shares 100 Provision of financial
(uotient and
investment education
CoUrses
TFEXERERAR] B/ B 150,000 B 100 REMERREHFRE
YH Education Limited HK/HK 1 ordinary share 100 Provision of financial
(uotient and
investment education
COUrses
TFHRARRT B/ B REER 100 REMERREHFRE
98 SHH Limited BVI/HK 1 ordinary share of 100 Investment holding
US$1 each
98 SHH Limited ABRuls /B RERETHERR 100 RERR
31 Edutech Limited HK/HK 1,320 ordinary shares 66 Dormant
31 Edutech Limited &b/ R 13008 &R 66 EEEH
At 31 March 2021 and 2020, there is no subsidiary of the Group N—E—FRIFSFEF=A=+—H "
which has material non-controlling interests. N 3 .Tﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁiﬁiﬁ [ 2 1) BT /2B
ET °
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. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE = 41. FRRQ BRI T
COMPANY

2020
Notes HK$'000
HiaF T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRE 19
Investments in subsidiaries RIBATNEE 1
20
current assets RBEE
Prepayments and deposits B3 IE&&% 46 55
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEWHI B A FI3RIE 201,668 105,956
Cash and cash equivalents fﬁ@&fﬁﬁ%{%% 180 20
201,894 106,031
Current liabilities RENIEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries BB ATFIE 53,051 52,822
Other payables and accrued A A 3RE R AT R S
expenses 3,827 4,173
Dividend payable FEAHAR B 10,137 -
67,015 56,995
Net current assets REBEERE 134,879 49,036
NET ASSETS BEEFE 134,889 49,056
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARKFE
Share capital ¥ 37(a) 154 51,200
Reserves i 37(b) 134,735 (2,144)
TOTAL EQUITY EREEE 134,889 49,056
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors RZEZ—F AT NBEESTEHER
on 29 June 2021. TR o
Yuen Yu Sam Lau Chun Kavan
RWFE 2%
Director Director
= 2
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES
The Group’s major financial instruments include the followings:

Categories of financial instruments

. CREREEEERBEK

AEETESRIABETIIRE

ST AER

2021
—EZ—F

HK$'000
FTERT

Financial assets SMEE

Trade receivables Z 5 W FRIA 1,403
Loan receivables eI E R 73,095
Other receivables HAbfEUGRIA 21,374
Cash and cash equivalents ReMEEEEY 72,944
Financial assets at amortised cost RN AT R SREE 168,816
Financial assets at FVPL BATEFABSHESMEE

Mandatorily measured at FVPL — BHHZ AT ETAERTE -

Held for trading BIEEE

Financial liabilities NN

Trade and other payables B 5 R EAM R FIE 45,294
Loan from a shareholder RE—BRENER =
Other borrowings HiEE 11,200
Promissory note payables FERTAECH IR 57,440
Financial liabilities at amortised cost LA SR AP BR ) S B B 1S 113,934

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and other price risk. The Group’s exposure to these risks
and the financial risk management policies and practices used
by the Group to manage these risks are described below.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
(a) Fair values

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technigue as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

. Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, that is, observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a team headed by the finance
manager with the assistance of independent
professionally qualified valuers to perform
valuations for the financial instruments, including
unlisted equity investment which is categorised
into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The team
reports directly to the executive directors and the
audit committee. A valuation report with analysis of
changes in fair value measurement is prepared by
the team at each interim and annual reporting date,
and is reviewed and approved by the executive
directors. Discussion of the valuation process and
results with the executive directors and the audit
committee is held every three months to coincide
with the reporting dates.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. ¢RiEMREEBERBER (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Fair values (continued) (@ FE @)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at () HBAFEIAENEHBEERSA
fair value (Continued) & (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N FEER (F)

Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2021 categorised into
R-B-—F=A=1+—-H2EATIBEZ
AFEFE

Fair value at
31 March
2021 Level 1
R-Z-—-%
=HA=+-H
AN F—
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT

Recurring fair value
measurements
Assets: BE:
Financial assets at FVPL BRTFEABED
SREE
- Held for trading - -FEEE -

Listed equity securities FilAES
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. SRIEREEEERBE &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Fair values (continued) (@) AFE @)
()  Financial assets and liabilities measured at () BAFEIEHNTHBEERE

fair value (Continued) & (&)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) INFEER (E)
Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2020 categorised into
R-ZE-ZE=B=1+-H2BATIEEZ
AFEFE

Fair value at
31 March
2020 Level 1
R-Z-Zf§
=RA=t—H
ZAYE F—
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TET

Recurring fair value

measurements
Assets: BE:
Equity instrument BATEGARBZE
at FVOCl WamRATA
- Unlisted equity - FEIRARE
investment
Financial assets at FVPL BRFERABER
TREE
- Held for trading - -FEEE -

Listed equity securities EmRAES

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, HE-Z-—FR-F-FF
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level ZA=T-BLEFE &
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s HE QML EBE - hEE
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of ASEEHF =4 o AEREBR
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting TR EEEOREPRERD
period in which they occur. HEERRNEE -

REEBEE AR l 209
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. sRIEREEEERBEK &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Fair values (continued) (@) A¥E #)
()  Financial assets and liabilities measured at () BAFEIENTHBEERE
fair value (Continued) & (&)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements BHE =R FEG B AR
Valuation techniques  Significant unobservable inputs Range

fEER EXRUBRGAYE HE

Unlisted equity instrument  2020: Discounted cash flow 2020: Revenue growth rate (note) 2020: 12.02%-15.24%

FImRATA ZTITECHBRERE —ToTF WEERE (M) “ECTE 1200%15.24%
The fair value of unlisted equity investment is ELEMREREN D FEIIER
determined using the discounted cash flow FERE RS 5 mm T8 &
adjusted for lack of marketability discount and lack BRI H T E T AR 25T
of control discount. The fair value measurement RELMEET - A VEFE
is negatively correlated to the discount for lack of BT IS RBM TS - B
marketability, lack of control discount and weighted VRSB ITRE M DN 9 B AR
average cost of capital. NEFEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Fair values (continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the fair value
of unlisted equity instruments was determined
using the market approach by reference to share
price in recent precedent share transactions of
the investee and the weight was adjusted for
timing of precedent transactions. As at 31 March
2020, it was estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an increase/decrease in weighted
average share price by 10% would had increased/
decreased the Group’s other comprehensive
income by HK$1,400,000.

The movements during the year in the balance
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as
follow:

A1 April 2019
Loss recognised in other comprehensive income

RZE-NENA—-A
REM2ERENEDZEE

e RS ERAR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)

42. eREMREEEERBEEK &)

(@ 2A¥E @@

() HEAFHEFENTHBEERSE
& (&)
BHE=RAFEGTEHEH
(&)
HE-_Z-TF=H=+—H

IEFE - ELEMBRATAQF

BNEL2E I BN EE
IR 722 5 KRB AT 5%
EEE - WKEHNRZSHREA
BE - R_TE_TF=A
=+—H WABEEMEER
B MEFEHRE LA
T FE10%TE AR (0 A S B H
2TE R 0, 21,400,000
BIT ©

FRNZEFE=MAFEFEE
Rz BT

Unlisted
equity
securities
kL

BARS
HK$'000
BT

14,000
(14,000)

At 31 March 2020 and at 31 March 2021

W_E-EF=A=+-BR-ZF-_-FE=A=t-H
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(@) Fair values (continued)

212

(ii)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried of other than fair value

For the Group's assets and liabilities not measured
at fair value in the consolidated statement of
financial position but for which the fair value is
disclosed, the carrying amounts of loans from a
shareholder, other borrowings and promissory
note payables approximated to their fair values and
were determined as Level 3.

The fair values of loans from a shareholder, other
borrowings and promissory note payables have
been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings was assessed to be insignificant
and the fair values of the non-current portion
of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
approximate to their carrying amounts.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to loan
receivables and trade receivables. The Group's exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents is
limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies, for which the Group considers to have low
credit risk.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Credit risk arising from loan business

The Group has taken measures to identify credit
risks arising from loan business. The Group
manages credit risk at every stage of the risk
management system, including pre-approval,
review and credit approval and post-transaction
monitoring processes. The Group conducts
customer acceptance and due diligence during the
pre-approval process. A transaction is subject to
the review and approval by the executive directors.

During the post-transaction monitoring process,
the Group performs credit evaluations on each
and every major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.

Certain loans granted are backed by collateral
(e.g. property, unlisted equity investments) as
security. The Group also focuses on ascertaining
legal ownership and the valuation of the collateral.
The Group closely monitors the ownership and
the value of the collateral throughout the loan
period. The loan receivables are due by the date as
specified in the corresponding loan agreements.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

214

(i)

Credit risk arising from loan business
(Continued)

In accordance with accounting policies, if there is
objective evidence that indicates the cash flows
for a particular loan is expected to decrease, and
the amount can be estimated, the loan is recorded
as an impaired loan and the impairment loss is
recognised in profit or 10ss.

The Group’s policy requires regular review of the
quality of individually significant financial assets. For
assets for which an allowance for impairment loss
is provided individually, the amount is determined
by an evaluation of the incurred loss at the
reporting date on a case-by-case basis. In making
such assessments, the Group considers the value
of collateral held and expected future cash flows
from the asset.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 27% (2020: 43%) and 71% (2020: 81%) of
the loan receivables was due from the Group's
largest loan debtor and the five largest loan debtors
respectively.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Credit risk arising from loan business
(Continued)

The Group adopts a loan risk classification
approach to manage its loan receivables portfolio
risk. Loan receivables are categorised into the
following stages by the Group:

Stage 1

Loan receivables have not experienced a significant
increase in credit risk since origination and
impairment recognised on the basis of 12 months
expected credit losses (12-month ECLS).

Stage 2

Loan receivables have experienced a significant
increase in credit risk since origination and
impairment is recognised on the basis of lifetime
expected credit losses (Lifetime ECLs non credit-
impaired).
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

216

(i)

Credit risk arising from loan business
(Continued)

Stage 3

Loan receivables that are in default and considered
credit impaired (Lifetime ECLs credit-impaired).

The Group applies the ECL model to measure the
impairment loss of the loan receivables.

Parameters of ECL measurement

According to whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk and whether there is an impairment
of assets, the Group measures the impairment
loss for different assets with ECL of 12 months or
the entire lifetime respectively. The key measuring
parameters of ECL include probability of default
(PD), loss given default (LGD) and exposure at
default (EAD). Based on the requirements of HKFRS
9, the Group takes into account the quantitative
analysis of historical statistics (such as ratings of
counterparties, manners of guarantees and types
of collaterals, repayments, etc.) and forward-
looking information in order to establish the model
of PD, LGD and EAD.

Relative definitions are listed as follows:

PD refers to the possibility that the debtor will not
be able to fulfil its obligations of repayment over the
next 12 months or throughout the entire remaining
lifetime. The Group’s PD is adjusted based on the
results of the internal rating-based approach, taking
into account the forward-looking information and
deducting the prudential adjustment to reflect the
debtor’s point-in-time (PIT) PD under the current
macroeconomic environment;
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Credit risk arising from loan business
(Continued)

Parameters of ECL measurement (Continued)

LGD refers to the Group's expectation of the extent
of the loss resulting from the default exposure.
Depending on the type of counterparty, the method
and priority of the recourse, and the type of
collaterals, the LGD varies,

EAD is the amount that the Group should be
reimbursed at the time of the default in the next 12
months or throughout the entire remaining lifetime.

Forward-looking information

The assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk and the calculation of ECL both involve
forward-looking information. Through the analysis
of historical data, the Group identifies the key
economic indicators that affect the credit risk and
ECL of various business types.

The impact of these economic indicators on the PD
and the LGD varies according to different types of
business. The Group applied experts’ judgement
in this process, according to the result of experts’
judgement, the Group predicts these economic
indicators on a quarterly basis and determines the
impact of these economic indicators on the PD and
the LGD by conducting regression analysis.

Modification of contractual cash flows

A modification or re-negotiation of a contract
between the Group and a counterparty may result
in a change to the contractual cash flows without
resulting in the derecognition of the financial
assets.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

218

(i)

Credit risk arising from loan business
(Continued)

Modification of contractual cash flows (Continued)
Such restructuring activities include extended
payment term arrangements, repayment schedule
modifications and changes to the interest
settlement method. The risk of default of such
assets after modification is assessed at the
reporting date and compared with the risk under
the original terms at initial recognition, when the
modification is not substantial and so does not
result in derecognition of the original asset and the
book value of the financial asset is recalculated
and the related gain or loss is included in current
profit and loss. The recalculated book value of the
financial asset is determined based on the present
value of the contractual cash flows following the
renegotiation or modification, as calculated using
the original effective interest rate of the financial
asset.

The Group monitors the subsequent performance
of modified assets. The Group may determine
that the credit risk has significantly improved after
restructuring, so that the assets are moved from
Stage 3 or Stage 2 to Stage 1. At 31 March 2021,
the carrying amount of financial assets with such
modified contractual cash flows amounted to
HK$30,313,000 (2020: HK$30,116,000).
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. sRIEREEEERBEK &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (continuea) (b) EER &)
(i)  Credit risk arising from loan business (i) FKEEFEBWSERLE (&)
(Continued)
(1) Concentrations of risk for loan receivables (1) JEWE A E
(i) Analysis of loan receivables by collateral () HEBERRELES
type with maturity profile R FEU B R EIHR 1B

AT

2021
8z-f%
Loans secured by
EREUATRBER
Guarantee
Unsecured  Propertiesand provided by

loans  otherassets third parties Total
HE=H

BERER  NRRHABEE RtER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Thx Thx T Tén

Due within 3months orondemand  3EAREIHREEREE

Dug after 3 months but within 3(E A& 1B6(E A NI
6 months

Dug after 6 months but within 68 AL (B 128 A M3
12 months

Dug after 12 months AR

Sub-total N5t

Impairment allowances HERE

“ Guarantee
Unsecured  Properties and provided by

[oans other assets third pa |es

HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TE1
Due within 3months orondemand 3B ARZISzEREE 247 - 2 29
Dug after 3 months but within 3(E Ak {B6E A NI
6 months 4,683 5,000 16,574 26,257
Dug after 6 months but within 6[E A& 120 AREIS
12 months 1,09 - 5,600 6,699
Due after 12 months 12{ERESH 640 2978 - 2618
Sub-total et 6,609 28978 2176 57823
Impairment allowances TERE (2009 4931) (6,310) (13.790)

4620 24,047 15,366 44,033
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES 42. cREMREEBEEREE &)
AND POLICIES (continuead)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) FERME &)
(i)  Credit risk arising from loan business (i) FREEXEBWSERLE (&)
(Continued)
(1) Concentrations of risk for loan receivables (1) BEREZNEFELR (&)
(Continued)
(i) Analysis of loan receivables by collateral (i) REFREEE S
type with credit quality WEREREEE
DT

2021
—E--F
Loans secured by
ERHATREEER
Guarantee
Unsecured  Properties and provided by

loans  otherassets third parties
mE=R

RERER MEREMEE RitER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn T T

Loan receivables that are credit — EEWEENER
impaired
- Not past due - K8 = =
- Less than 3 months past due - B8 A3EA 3 =
- Over 3 months past cue - BHHE3EA 6,500 6,500
Sub-fotal 1t 6,500 6,500
Impairment allowances HERE (0] (6,500)

Loan receivables that are not AEEHEZENER
credit impaired

- Not past due - R 16,392 11,396 28,388
- Less than 3 months past due - BHMR3EA = = =
- Over 3 months past due - BEHEEA 2,753 - 2753
- Over due rescheduled loans - BHREAER - 2919 2979
Sub-total et 39,145 35,375 75,120
Impairment allowances WERE (139) (1,884) (2,025)

39,006 33491 73,095
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. sRIEREEEERBEK &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (continueq) (b) EER &)
(i)  Credit risk arising from loan business (i) FKEEFEBWSERLE (&)
(Continued)
(1) Concentrations of risk for loan receivables (1) EREFmEFEE (F)
(Continued)
(i) Analysis of loan receivables by collateral (i) HEFRERES
type with credit quality (Continued) WEREREEE

=0 (&)
200

Gua antee
Unsecured  Properties and provided by

loans other assets third par |es

BER
HK$000
A

Loan receivables that are credit & HERKER

impaired

- Not past due - KB - - - -

- Less than 3 months past due - BHHEA - - - -

- Over 3 months past due - BERE3EA 197 - - 197

- Over due rescheduled loans - ERERET 6,138 23978 - N6
Sub-total INef 6,335 23978 - 30313
Impairment allowances HERE (1945) (4,931) - (6876)

4,39 19,047 - 23437

Loan receivables that are not AEEREZENER

credit impaired

- Not past due - R 284 5000 D4 27458

- Less than 3 months past due - BE3EA 50 - 2 5

- Over 3 months past due - BHEE3MEA - - - -
Sub-total 1Nef 334 5,000 2,176 21510
Impairment allowances HERE (104 - (6,810 (6,914)

20 5000 15,366 20,59




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR M

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)

(%E

=

—F=A=t+—HILFE)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

222

(ii)

Other credit risk

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 100% (2020: 97%) and 100% (2020: 100%)
of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group's largest trade debtor and the five largest
trade debtors respectively within the OEM Business
and Wholesaling Business segment.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are usually due
within 30 days to 60 days from the date of billing.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
trade customers.
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42. eREMREEEERBE &)

(b) EERB (&)

(i)

B EmE
SN T IE
TEEEAZZEERREER
EBEPMERFPEEMBITE
FEARzEREIZE - B
I BEXEESEFEREER
H%s’%l%uéﬂlﬁuzﬁﬂ
o RIREHIR - B H B
IEZ@%EZWO% -
97%) K100% (= F Z & 4F -
100%) 9 Ak B A& B R &
BUEEBRMBEEBI>BAZ
BAESHEBARAKRESE
BA o
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continuea)

(ii)

Other credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLS,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group's historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group's different
customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
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42. eREMREEEERBEEK &)

(b)
(ii)

FERR ()

Atz EmbE ()
ESEWHE (&)
AEBERBERZ2HBEREE
BiEMNSE (ERBREERET
B) ST EE 5 WA R
e IR AEBELEERHE
BRI TR TREP D
FBIEEAFBEREZE  FtH
RERBEROBERBEEREZA
SETRATEPHETE ST
Rl o

TEREINR B —FR_-F
:?E—H—+*E$E@2

receivables as at 31 March 2021 and 2020: sERRH O RE 5 EKK
i‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%‘%)ﬁﬂﬁéﬂ :
Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount  allowance
BHEEER REAE EERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET

At 31 March 2021: RZZZ—F=A=+—8:
Current (not past due) B (Ra) - 641 -
1-30 days past due #E12E30H - 672 -
31-60 days past due #3120 - - -
61-90 days past due #HEI61Z=90H - - -
Over 91 days past due HHRBE91A 93.5% 1,389 1,299
2,702 1,299

At 31 March 2020: RZZZZF=A=1+—H:
Current (not past due) e (R#E) - 4,526 -
1-30 days past due #HR1E30H - 17 -
31-60 days past due BHI31Z260H - - -
61-90 days past due BHEI61290H 64.7% 255 165
Over 91 days past due BEREER91H 100% 1,119 1,119
6,017 1,284
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. sRIEREEEERBEK &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) FERME &)
(i)  Other credit risk (Continued) (i) EBft=EmE (&)

Trade receivables (Continued) B G EWHIE (&)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss BEERENDEREREBEL
experience and adjusted to reflect differences B A AR ERE S &
between economic conditions during the period BEARMEEMR - BRI
over which the historic data has been collected, R RS B A FE W R IB TR B 4F
current conditions and the Group’s view of RASERANERNER o
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect FRNE SHERFIBEERER
of trade receivables during the year is as follows: gt -

2020

— = — r:|=~
==

HKS'000
TAT

Balance at beginning of the year FHERR

Amounts written off during the year R4 ERER

Impairment losses recognised during  ERERHIREEE
the year

Balance at end of the year FRER

L & A International Holdings Limited
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(ii)

Other credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The following changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade receivables contributed to the
increase (2020: increase) in the loss allowance:

- origination of new trade receivables net
of those settled resulted in an increase
in loss allowance of HK$1,299,000 (2020:
HK$1,284,000); and

Other receivables

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of
the Company make periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables and
deposits based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The
directors of the Company believe that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts
since initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12m ECL. For the year ended
31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group assessed
the ECL for other receivables and deposits were
insignificant and thus no loss allowance was
recognised.
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42. eREMREEEERBEEK &)

(b) EERE &)

HpEEAR (F)
ESEUHE ()

AT H 5 8 R E S 1
S HEERERN (—F
—EE ) ¢

- VAFESREGIERE
HEHE 2B HEWGIREE
&5 18 5 15 15 11,299,000
BL(ZE T F:
1,284,000/ 7T) + &

At fE K E
HEMERFIBERIESMS
KRR ESREBEENMNT
5 BAECBURAREAARR
BEEMIEEEERERE
K 8 E At EUGRIE RIR e 8
WW@ELﬁE%M%%ﬁ
RRBEERRBVIRERD
RZEFIENEER Am%@
ERMEAREERE120 A
BHEEEBERERE BE
ZECFER-IZTFZTF=R
=+—BHIEFE  RNEEFG
HAth fE YR IE R iR & B0 FE B
BEBYTEKX - AL s
RIGERAE -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk arises primarily from loan receivables, bank
deposits, loan from a shareholder, other borrowings,
promissory note payables and lease liabilities.

Loan receivables, loan from a shareholder, other
borrowings, promissory note payables and lease liabilities
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate

risk.

Bank deposits are carried at low interest rates and the

interest income thereon is not significant.
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(c)
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. SRIEREEEERBE &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) FI=E@p (&)
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIE#x
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRAFMKREEFEERIA
the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments RS BRR A=A, -

at the end of the reporting period:

2021
—EBC-F -
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate

BRR=
% HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR

Fixed interest rate EEFI=
Financial assets SREE
— Loan receivables - EWER 5%-36% l 3%-36% 44,033
Financial liabilities SRaR
- loans from a shareholder - EE—2BREHES - = 4.5%-5% (9,720)
- other borrowings - At g 10% (11,200) 2.5%-15% (6,800)
- promissory note payables - R EiE 3%-5% (57,440) - -
- lease liabilities -HEak 2%-18.2% (9,797) 4.9%-22.2% (4,080)
Variable interest rate FBHF=E
Financial assets SREAE
- Cash at bank - fiTHE 0.001% 72,944 0.001% 2,126
Net T 67,602 25,559
Fixed rate instruments EEFIRIAGTA
as a percentage of net SRIAFERNL
interest-bearing financial
instruments - 91.7%

REEBEE AR l 227
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

228

(c)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis
Loan receivables, loans from a shareholder,
other borrowings, promissory note payables and
lease liabilities are fixed rate instruments and
are insensitive to any change in interest rates. A
change in interest rates at the end of the reporting
period would not affect profit or loss.

The Group does not have significant exposure
to interest rates arising from variable rate cash
at bank, accordingly no sensitivity analysis is
presented.

Currency risk

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the executive directors monitor
its foreign exchange exposures and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the
need arises. At the end of the reporting period, there
is minimal exposure to currency risk by the Group as
substantially all financial assets and all financial liabilities
recognised are denominated in the functional currency of
the respective Group entities.

Liquidity risk
Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to the parent company’s board approval. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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42. SRIEREEEERBEK (4)

(c)

(d)

(e)

MRERR (#)

(ii)  GRERHT
REBEKER KA BB
REOEH - BEE - EAE

REBENMEERBEREEME
TARBHMEXZHHEER
Ko RmEPRZAEEE T

@EEIB .

AEBEYEELBTSRITR

EHMEAMNERE ALtk
FIBURME DT ©

E¥E b

AN B E AT NE E R ER o A

- MITEREEESNERR - X
EBHERZBLIMERINER R o
RImERR - AEEEERRHOR
N RAREHERNETAESRE
ERMBELRAEDNASEERER .
WEEEEE -

REEZER
AEERENEEERAQTAER
SrRSERTE BERSBHY

EERERERETARNEDRRS
X WAEER T%%Azﬁt/&fﬁ
FAMER - AEBZRERREHE
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative

[
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42. SRIEAREEEERBEK (4)

(e)

REBESERE (&)
RBEER  AEBZIETESHE

financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, BERBESARMIRNR (BENUEEL
based on the contractual undiscounted payments ML (BFEF ) 2R HEH
including interest payments computed using contractual RZBOIFERFEZFBFIE) 25

rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay, is as follows:

HERRASEEES &S A
™

2021
—EC-%

Contractual undiscounted
cash outflow
EHRERRSRE
More than

More than

Within
1 year or
on demand

—ERFRER
HK$'000
TER

Non-derivative financial FiEERER

1 year

but less than

2 years

—EREMFA

HKS'000
T

2 years but
less than
5 year

Carrying
amount

at 31 March
R=A
=t-B2
FEE
HK$'000
T

Total

RS
BEER
HK$'000

7

a3t
HK$'000
T

liabilities
Trade and other payables L5 R A MENTE 45,294 45,294 45,294
Other borrowings EftfeE 12,302 12,302 11,200
Promissory note payables AHEREMNTUE - 61,033 57,440
Lease liabilities BERE 2,602 10,410 9,797

60,198

129,039 123,731
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. ¢RiEMREEBERBER (&)
AND POLICIES (continuead)
(e) Liquidity risk (continued)

(e) RBEELRAE (&)

Contractual und\scoumed
cash outflow
SORURBRSR
More than More than
Within 1year 2 years but Carrying

Tyearor  butlessthan less than amount

on demand 2years 5 year at 31 March
R=A

M =+-B2

—FRFEER —FREMER BRER a5t ARE(E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000

BT T THL BT TAT

Non-derivative financial FTEERAE

liabilities
Trade and other payables B REMENTE 12938 - - 12938 12,938
Loan from a shareholder RE—EBERNER 462 10,099 - 10,51 9,720
Other borrowings HifEE 3480 5,625 - 9,105 6,800
Lease liabilities HERE 1,636 1,074 3,120 53830 4,080

18,516 16,798 3120 38,434 33,538
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments held for trading and non-trading
purposes. Other than unguoted securities held for
strategic purposes, all of these investments are listed.

The Group's listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell trading securities
are based on daily monitoring of the performance of
individual securities, other industry indicators, as well as
the Group's liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in
terms of industry distribution.

All of the Group’s unquoted investments are held for long
term strategic purposes. Their performance is assessed
regularly based on the limited information available to the
Group, together with an assessment of their relevance to
the Group’s long term strategic plans.

e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
(BE_Z-_—F=HA=+— Eiif)
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

232

(f)

Equity price risk (continued)
At 31 March 2021, it is estimated that an increase/
(decrease) of 10% (2020: 10%) in the relevant stock
market index with all other variables held constant would
have decreased/increased the Group's profit after tax
(and accumulated profit) as follows:

Change in the relevant equity HEREERRAKRSELE
price risk variable:

Increase #n

Decrease HA

42. SRIEREEEEREE (&)

(f)

REERER (2
WoB-—#=A=+—R EHE
R R ERHTEOERT - AHR

MR LA (FFE) 10% (=
TERT AL E R

£ :10%)

ET-F

b B 12 i A

(RZFHER) $RAAZ SR T

2021
—E-—fF
Increase/
(decrease) in
profit after
tax and

accumulated
profit
BRBBERRR
E-Spivil

#i,/ (Bd)
HK$'000
TERT

133
(133)

2020
—BCEHE
(Decrease)/
increase in
loss after
tax and
accumulated
losses
BREZBER
R
m2),/
HK$'000
TERT

(655)
655

There is no effect of the change in the relevant stock
market index on other components of consolidated
equity.

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's loss after tax (and accumulated
losses) and other components of consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the changes in the stock
market index had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period. It is also assumed that the fair values of the
Group’s equity investments would change in accordance
with the historical correlation with the relevant stock
market index, and that all other variables remain
constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2021 and which have not been early adopted in these
financial statements. These developments include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 22
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concesions'
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
currentt
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds

before Intended Use®

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a
Contract®
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
HKFRSs 2018-2020 lllustrative Examples accompanying

HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41°

e ISR M EE

(For the year ended 31 March 2021)
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43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 (Continued)

234

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
early adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a

Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments results
in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (ii) any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2021, and (iii) there is no substantive change
to other terms and conditions of the lease. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020 with earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively. This amendment is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for
an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(FRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the date of first application, the Group will not be affected
by these amendments on the date of transition.
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43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

236

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative RFR.
The Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient to
allow the effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting
the carrying amount when accounting for changes in the
basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence
of the interest rate benchmark reform and the new basis
for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding the
change. In addition, the amendments permit changes required
by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that
could arise on transition are dealt with through the normal
requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary
relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component.
The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on
an entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively,
but entities are not required to restate the comparative
information.
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43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify
that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject
to the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that
date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
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STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only
to items of property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well
as contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 (continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group
are as follows:

- HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendment. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Group'’s financial statements.

- HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2021, Mr. Yuen Yu Sam, an
executive director of the Company, and the Group entered an
agreement, pursuant to which a repayment of HK$80,000,000
for the consideration of acquired 70% equity interest of
Prestige Concord from Mr. Yuen Yu Sam was offset against
by the amount due from Mr. Yuen Yu Sum of the Group of
HK$29,000,000 and by the issue of promissory note to Mr. Yuen
Yu Sam by the Group of HK$41,000,000 and HK$10,000,000
settled by cash.

Mr. Poon Chi Ming, an independent third party, and the Group
entered an agreement, pursuant to which a repayment of
HK$33,250,000 for the consideration of acquired 100% equity
interest of Bewisekid Holding Limited from Mr. Poon Chi Ming
was offset against by the issue and allotment of the shares
of the Company. The shares were not issued and allotted to
Mr. Poon Chi Ming as at 31 March 2021 and the outstanding
balance included in other payables of the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Mr. Lam Yat Nam, an independent third party, and the Group
entered an agreement, pursuant to which a repayment of
HK$40,000,000 for the consideration of acquired 100% equity
interest of Zone Galaxy Limited from Mr. Lam Yat Nam was
offset against by the issue of promissory note to Mr. Lam Yat
Nam by the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, an independent
loan debtor, a shareholder of the Company, and the Group
entered into an agreement, pursuant to which a repayment of
HK$2,000,000 from the loan debtor was offset against by the
outstanding loan amount due to a shareholder by the Group.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 4 May 2021, 98 SHH Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Provisional
Agreement with the Purchaser, an independent third party,
pursuant to which 98 SHH Limited has agreed to dispose of
and the Purchaser has agreed to purchase the property for
a consideration of HK$20 million in cash. This transaction is
scheduled to be completed upon the day immediately after the
day of receipt of the remaining consideration of HK$18 million
in full on or before 23 December 2021.
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46. LITIGATION

@

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
received a writ of summons in relation to a repudiatory
breach of a tenancy agreement between the plaintiff, an
independent third party landlord, and Sino Shine Retailing
Limited, a former subsidiary of the Group, entered into on
27 October 2016, which the plaintiff is claiming the Group
for, inter alia, damages in the sum of approximately
HK$1,735,000 plus interest. As the directors of the Group
consider that it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the
Group recognised the provision of HK$1,735,000 (note
33) which is considered as a reliable estimate that can
be made. As at 31 March 2021, the legal case is still in
process and the status remain unchanged.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, a petition has
been filed to the court by two shareholders of the
Company (the “Petitioners”), which together holding over
3% of the Company’s issued shares, and the Petitioners
filed and served a re-amended petition to the court on 3
December 2019. The Petitioners pray (i) that the Company
be wound up pursuant to the Companies (Winding Up
and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32); (i)
that the court make such other orders as are deemed
to be just and equitable; and (iii) that provision be made
for Petitioners’ costs. The hearing has been adjourned to
6 July 2020 (with 5 days reserved). The directors of the
Company have discussed with the legal counsel of the
Group and with reference to their own experience, they
believe there is a high chance of striking out the petition
and there is no effect on the going concern assumption
as the basis of preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. As at 31 March 2021, the legal case
is still in process and the status remain unchanged.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T FEHEEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B-—F ZF-TF ZFNWEF ZF/N\&F ZFTF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT THETT T T TETT

Revenue &= 96,468 74,271 71,731 57,881 60,830
Operating profit/(loss) &%/ (E#E) 42,866 (32,809) (7,074) (272,116) (298,202)
Profit/(loss) for the year FER%H /(E18) 40,425 (34,015) (10,131) (271,246) (297,016)

Financial position B IR

Assets and liabilities BENAGE

Total assets EEHE 353,178 89,536 114,408 150,949 427,420
Total liabilities BEERE (179,159) (39,557) (16,082) (13,757) (18,711)
174,019 49,979 98,326 137,192 408,709

Capital and reserves BARREE

Total equity ViN/NETET PN
attributable to FElE R AR EE
owners of the
Company 176,758 52,577 98,177 137,822 407,359
Non-controlling FEPEfR A RS
interests (2,739) (2,598) 149 (630) 1,350

174,019 49,979 98,326 137,192 408,709
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